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January 28, 2010 

The Members of the 
St. Tammany Parish School Board 
Covington, Louisiana: 

The comprehensive annual fmancial report of the St. Tammany Parish School Board for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the 
data, and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with 
the School Board. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all 
material respects and is reported in a marmer designed to present fairly the fmancial position and 
resuhs of operations of the School Board. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain 
an understanding of the School Board's financial activities have been included. 

Postlethwaite &. Netterville, Certified Public Accountants, have issued an unqualified (clean) 
opinion on the St. Tammany Parish School Board's financial statements for the year ended June 
30, 2009. The independent auditors' report is located at the front of the financial section of the 
report. 

Management's discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor's 
report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial 
statements. MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction 
with it. 

The School Board is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the pro\'isions 
of the Single Audit Act, as amended, and U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-
133, Audits of States. Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations. Information related to 
this single audit, including the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, findings and 
recommendations, and the Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial- Statements Performed in 
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards and the Report on Compliance with 
Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program and on Internal Control over Compliance in 
Accordance with 0MB Circular A-133, are included in a separate report. This report includes all 
funds and activities for which the School Board exercises fmancial accountability. The School 
Board is a legislative body authorized to govern the public education system of St. Tammany 
Parish, Louisiana. A fifteen-member board governs the School System with each member 
serving a concurrent four-year term. The current board's term will expire in 2011. 
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PROFILE OF SCHOOL BOARD 

It is the responsibility of the School Board to make public education available to the residents of 
St. Tammany Parish, including instructional personnel, instructional facilities, administrative 
support, business services, operation and maintenance and bus transportation. The School Board 
provides a full range of public education services appropriate to grade levels ranging from pre-
kindergarten through grade 12. These include regular and enriched academic education, special 
education for handicapped children and vocational education. The school system has a current 
enrollment of 35,878 which includes 1,297 pre-kindergarten students. 

The School Board is authorized to establish public schools as it deems necessary, to provide 
adequate school facilities for the children of the parish, to determine the number of teachers to be 
employed and to determine the local supplement to their salaries. Accordingly, since the School 
Board members are elected by the public and have decision-making authority, the power to 
designate management, the ability to significantly influence operations and primary 
accountability for financial matters, the School Board is not included in any other governmental 
reporting entity. See footnote A for more information. 

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK 

St. Tammany Parish is one of the southeastern parishes (counties) of Louisiana and covers an 
area of 1,141 square miles. St. Tammany Parish is located directly north of New Orleans on the 
north shore of Lake Pontchartrain. The Parish's population and economic base continues to 
expand. The population for St. Tammany Parish is estimated at 233,500. 

The economy of St. Tammany Parish is primarily residential, which has brought an influx of 
retail and service establishments, offices and shopping centers. However, there is a unique blend 
of residents employed in a variety of diverse industries ranging from agriculture to space-aged 
technology. 

The Parish has seen significant changes due to the widespread effects of Hurricane Katrina. 
Overall unemployment in the Parish has increased slightly as the number of new jobs has 
decreased due to the current economic downturn. Also, new and existing home sales in St. 
Tammany Parish had decreased significantly due to the current economic downturn. In spite of 
the economic downturn, St. Tammany Parish provides a quality place to live and work which 
results in a sizable contribution to local taxes, property values, and taxes associated with 
property. School Board eru-oliment continues to increase each year. 

The School Board suffered significant damage to its facilities from Hurricane Katrina. The 
School Board continues to refurbish, repair and rebuild its damaged infrastructure. 

The population growth, economic downturn, and storm recovery noted above present both 
opportunities and challenges for the School Board in the coming years. 
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MAJOR INITIA TIVES 

In 2005-2006, the School Board began work on some new educational initiatives. These 
initiatives are designed to continue moving our schools towards higher achievement and expand 
on safety in our schools. 

Some of the programs started in 2005-2006 and continuing through 2008-2009 are the School 
Board's implementation of the guaranteed curriculum, increased elementary planning time, safe 
and caring schools, and higiier pay for our teachers. The cost of these programs is relatively low 
when compared to the positive impact that is expected from these programs. 

The School Board also started an energy conservation effort throughout the District. By 
educating our employees on the need to conserve energy and presenting them with ways to do so, 
the School Board has saved a significant amount of money spent on heating, cooling and 
lighting. Thus far, the amount saved on utilities exceeds 55,200,000. In 2008-2009, the School 
Board and its facilities received several distinguished awards, such as Energy Star, 
Environmental Stewardship Award, and the Top Performed Recognition Award for 2009 
recognizing our efforts in energy conservation. 

The School Board also elected out of the State Group Benefits health plan for the purpose of 
providing less costly, quality health benefits to our employees. Health insurance costs are a 
significant portion of our total budget. By switching to a self-insured plan, the School Board was 
able to offer greater benefits without an increase in cost. The School Board's new self-insurance 
health plan has saved the School Board and the employees millions of dollars by allowing us 
greater cost control. 

The School Board continues to make progress on its major capital expansion programs of its 
existing school facilities. This expansion program started in 1996 and continues today. The 
School Board will have spent in excess of $381 million on this initiative and an additional $120 
million is planned for the next three years with the addition of a new elementary school and 
extended learning center. 

This expansion project has enabled the School Board to reduce the student/teacher ratio for all 
classrooms. The majority of pre-kindergarten through third grade classrooms have on average no 
more than 20 students per classroom. 

Student/teacher ratios are just one piece of the puzzle when it comes to achieving higher levels of 
success through student achievement. The School Board has over time become a magnet for 
attracting highly skilled, experienced, certified teachers and administrators. Virtually all of the 
School Board's nearly 2,617 full-time teachers are certificated and more than 42 percent of our 
teachers hold an advanced level degree. 49 percent of our teachers have more than 10 years 
teaching experience and all of our principals and assistant principals hold both a masters degree 
and teacher certification. 
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The school system has experienced significant gains in student achievement levels by lowering 
the student teacher ratios across the board, retaining more qualified teachers and administrators, 
and dedicating our staff to reach higher goals. St. Tammany Parish School Board was ranked the 
number one District in the State of Louisiana for District Performance Scores (DPS) from 2003-
2005 and continues to be consistently in the top 5 in the state. 

Currently, the Southern Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS) have accredited all schools 
within the St. Tammany Parish School District. The St. Tammany Parish School System became 
the first school district in Louisiana to earn "district-wide" accreditation in 2005 and continues to 
be one of only a few in the nation to have such accreditation. 

Not all of our successes can be attributed to our staff and teachers though. The School Boards 
Parent Involvement Program is utilized in every school in the system. The goal of this program 
is to involve parents in the child's education in whatever capacity the parents offer (first aid 
assistant, library aide, classroom tutor, parenting workshop, etc.). In each year, our parent 
volunteers donate the equivalent of millions of dollars in volunteer hours. 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Internal Controls. Management of the School Board is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal controls designed to ensure that the assets of the School Board are protected 
from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for 
the preparation of fmancial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles. Internal controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that 
these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a 
control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and 
benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. 

Single Audit. As a recipient of federal, state and local fmancial assistance, the School Board 
also is responsible for ensuring that adequate internal controls are in place to ensure compliance 
with applicable laws and regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure is 
subject to periodic evaluation by management. 

As a part of the School Board's single audit, tests are made to determine the adequacy of internal 
controls, including that portion related to federal programs, as well as to determine 

Board's single audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 provided no instances of material 
weaknesses in internal controls or significant violations of applicable laws and regulations. 

Budgeting Controls. In addition, the School Board maintains budgetary controls. The 
objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with the annual appropriated 
budgets, including all subsequent amendments, approved by the School Board. Activities of the 
General Fund, major Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds, and Capital Projects Funds 
are included in the annual appropriated budget. The level of budgetary control (that is, the level 
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at which expenditures cannot exceed the appropriated amount) is established at the fijnction or 
project level within the individual funds. The School Board also maintains an encumbrance 
accounting system as one technique of accomplishing budgetary control throughout the year. 
Encumbered amounts in all funds lapse at year-end; however, encumbrances generally are 
reappropriated as part of the next year's budget. 

As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, 
the School Board continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management. 

Debt Administration. At June 30, 2009 the School Board had a number of debt issues 
outstanding, totaling $236.9 million. Not included in the School Board's long-term debt are 
S73.4 million in defeased debt. The Notes to the Financial Statements contain more detailed 
information on these bonds. 

The School Board is limited by state statute from issuing sales tax bonds in excess of seventy-
five percent of the anticipated sales tax revenues. As of June 30, 2009, the School Board had 
paid off all of its outstanding sales tax bonds. Meanwhile, sales tax collections exceeded $77 
million dollars in 2009. The one-cent sales and use tax of which a portion was dedicated to 
service the bonds was made permanent in April 2004. 

OTHER INFORMA TION 

Independent Audit. State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public 
accountants. The accounting and audifing firm of Postlethwaite and Netterville, APAC 
performed the fiscal year 2009 audit. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state 
statutes, the audit also was designed to meet the requirements of the federal Single Audit Act, as 
amended and related OMB Circular A-133. The independent auditors' report on the financial 
statements is included in the financial section of this report. The independent auditors' reports 
related specifically to the Single Audit Act are included in a separate report. 

Awards. The Government Finance Officers Associafion of the United States and Canada 
(GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the St. 
Tammany Parish School Board for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2008. 

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily 
readable and efficiently organized comprehensive fmancial report, whose contents conform to 
program standards. Such reports must satisfy both generally accepted accpunUng principles and 
applicable legal requirements. 
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The St. Tammany Parish School Board was also awarded a Certificate of Excellence in Financial 
Reporting for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 
by the Association of School Business Officials, International (ASBO). 

The award certifies that the school system has presented its comprehensive annual financial 
report to the ASBO Panel of Review for critical review and evaluation and that the report was 
judged to have complied with the principles and practices of financial reporting recognized by 
ASBO. Receiving the award is recognifion that the school system has met the highest standards 
of excellence in school financial reporting. 

Both a Certificate of Achievement (GFOA) and a Certificate of Excellence (ASBO) are valid for 
a period of one year only. The St. Tammany Parish School Board has received both certificates 
for the last nineteen consecutive years. We believe our current comprehensive annual financial 
report continues to conform to the program requirements of both organizations and we are 
submitting it to GFOA and ASBO to determine its eligibility for each of the certificates. 

Acknowledgments. The preparation of the comprehensive annual financial report on a fimely 
basis was made possible by the dedicated service of the entire staff of the Business Affairs 
Department. Each member of the department has our sincere appreciation for the contributions 
made in the preparation of this report. In addition, our gratitude is extended to the Arts 
Department for their valuable assistance in the design of this report and to the students whose art 
is displayed throughout the report. 

In closing, without the leadership and support of the Members of the School Board, both 
individually and collectively, preparation of this report would not have been possible. 

Respectfully submitted, 

^ f 7 ^ 
Gayle Ŝ bĵ n ^Terri FortenberryT'CPA 
Superintendent Interim Director of Business Affairs 
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Independent Auditors' Report 
The Members of the 
St. Tainmany Parish School Board 
Covington, Louisiana; 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the govermnentai activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remainmg fund infoimation of tlie St. Tammany Parish School 
Board (the School Board), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009, which collectively 
comprise tiie School Board's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These 
financial statements are the responsibility of the School Board's management. Our responsibility 
is to express opinions on these fmancial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are fi-ee of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal 
control over financial reportmg as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
School Board's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such 
opinion. An audit includes examining,, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the fmancial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles 
used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our 
opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statements refen-ed to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective fmancial position of the govenmientaJ activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the School Board as of June 30, 2009, and the respective 
changes in fmancial position, and where applicable, the cash flows, thereof for the year then 
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in tlie United States of 
America. 

As described in note 5 to the financial statements, management has restated beginning net assets 
to reflect its change in its capitalization policy, reclassification of previously reported items and 
adjustment of accumulated depreciation on certain assets. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 
28, 2010, on our consideration of the School Board*s internal control over financial reporting and 
on our test of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, conti-acts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. Tlie purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal controls over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion on the intemal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report 
is an integral part of an audit performed m accordance with Government Auditing Standards and 
should be considered in assessing the results of our audit. 
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The management's discussion and analysis and budgetaiy comparison information on pages 3 
through 13 and 59 through 67 are not a required part of the basic fmancial statements but are 
supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of 
inquiries of management regai'ding tlie metliods of measurement and presentation of the required 
supplementary infonnation. However, we did not audit the infonnation and express no opinion to 
it. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the School Board's basic financial statements. The introductory section, 
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical secfion are presented 
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements have been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic fmancial statements and, in our opinion, are 
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
The introductory section and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on 
them. 

T^Oi H-dhaJa lU -*- U C J U J •'' ̂  

Metairie, Louisiana 
January 28, 2010 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2009 

As management of the St. Tammany Parish School Board, we offer readers of the St. Tammany 
Parish School Board's fmancial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial 
acfivifies of the School Board for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. We encourage readers to 
consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional informafion that we have 
furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages v through x and the School 
Board's financial statements, which begins on page I. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The financial highlights for the St. Tammany Parish School Board for fiscal year ended June 30, 
2009 were: 

• The School Board's general fund expended S338 million dollars on a budgetary basis in 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 on education for St. Tammany Parish. Nearly 71 percent of 
the expenditures were spent on instructional and support programs and 18 percent spent on 
administration, operation, and maintenance of schools. 

• Certified teachers received a salary increase of $2,019 in the fall of 2008 bringing the 
beginning teacher salary to $42,284. 

9 The School Board's general fund revenues on a budgetary basis for fiscal year ending June 
30, 2009 were approximately $258 million. The largest single sources of non-federal funds 
were from the State of Louisiana Minimum Foundation Program ($178.1 million), ad 
valorem taxes ($67.6 million), and transfers from the sales tax funds ($79.9 million). 

• The assets of the School Board exceeded its liabilities at the close of the year by $241.6 
million up fi-om $212.5 in 2008. 

• The School Board's net assets increased by $29.2 million. The majority of this increase was 
due to an increase in ad valorem taxes, $76 million in new bond proceeds not spent at year-
end, and an increase in the State of Louisiana Minimum Foundafion Program revenue. Also, 
expenses by function for 2009 were $8.8 million less when compared to 2008. 

• The School Board's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $254.9 
million, an increase of $51.3 million in comparison of prior year. Increase in property values 
in St. Tammany Parish increased revenue received fi"om ad valorem taxes, and revenues 
received per student were increased in 2009. 

e The School Board expended approximately $85 million on capital projects in 2008-2009. 
The majority of these expenditures were on reconstruction and additional classrooms and 
renovations to existing schools and the construction of a new high school slated to open in 
2009 and our newest elementary school. Also, disaster recovery expenditures continue on 
exisfing facilities. 
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• The School Board's general fund on a budgetary basis had a decrease in fund balance of $5.8 
million. The decrease was a result of increases in salaries and related benefits due to an 
across the board pay raise and a decrease in sales tax revenues of $15.9 million over 2008 as 
a result of the economic downturn. Increases in ad valorem tax revenue and funding fi-om the 
Louisiana Department of Educafion did help offset some of the increases in salary and related 
benefit costs. 

• The School Board was authorized to issue $167 million in new debt in March of 2008. The 
first issue of these bonds was completed in July 2008 for $66.33 million. The second issue 
of these bonds was completed in May 2009 for S20 million. As of June 30, 2009, the School 
Board had $236.9 million in bonds outstanding. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the St. Tammany Parish 
School Board's basic financial statements. The St. Tammany Parish School Board's basic 
financial statements comprise three components; 1) government-wide fmancial statements, 2) 
fund fmancial statements, and 3) notes to the fmancial statements. This report also contains 
other supplementary information in addifion to the basic financial statement themselves. 

Government-wide financial statements include die Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of 
Acfivities (on pages 14 and 15, respecfively); they provide information about the financial 
position of the School Board as a whole and present a longer-term view of the School Board's 
finances. Fund financial statements start on page 16. For governmental activities, these 
statements tell how these services were financed in the short term as well as what remains for 
future spending. Fund financial statements also report the School Board's operations in more 
detail than the government-wide statements by providing information about the School Board's 
most significant funds. The fiduciary fund statements provide financial information about 
activifies for which the School Board acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of those 
outside of the government. 

Our auditor has provided assurance in his independent auditors' report, located immediately 
preceding this management discussion and analysis (MD&A), that the basic fmancial statements 
are fairly stated. The auditor has also provided varying degrees of assurance regarding the 
required supplementary information and other supplementary informafion. A user of this report 
should read the independent auditors' report carefully to ascertain the level of assurance being 
provided for each of the other parts in the financial statements. 

The School Board assumes full responsibility for the accuracy of the introductory and statistical 
secfions as they were prepared without the association of the independent auditors. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 

The notes provide additional informafion that is essenfial to a full understanding of the data 
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the fmancial 
statements can be found on pages 26 through 58 of this report. 

Other Information 

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds 
and intemal service funds are presented immediately following the notes to the financial 
statements. Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 68 
through 99 of this report. 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

Our analysis of the School Board as a whole begins on page 14. One of the most important 
quesfions asked about the School Board's finances is, "Is the School Board as a whole better off 
or worse off as a result of the year's activifies?" The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement 
of Acfivifies report informafion about the School Board as a whole and about activifies in a way 
that helps answer the quesfion. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the 
accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounfing used by most private-sector 
companies. All of the year's revenues and expenses are take into account regardless of when 
cash is received or paid. 

These two statements report the School Board's net assets and changes in them. You can think 
of the School Board's net assets-the difference between assets and liabilifies-as one way to 
measure the School Board's fmancial health, or financial position. Over fime, increase or 
decreases in the School Board's net assets arc one indicator of whether its financial health is 
improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider other nonfmancial factors, however, such 
as changes in the School Board's property tax base and the condifion of the Schools, to assess the 
overall financial health of the School Board. 

In 2008-2009, the School Board's fmancial posifion increased with its net assets increasing $29.2 
million fi-om $212.5 milfion in 2007-2008 to $241.7 million. $19.6 milhon of die School Board's 
net assets is restricted to debt service leaving $19.5 million in unrestricted net assets. 

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activifies, the School Board's acfivities can 
be divided into two kinds of acfivifies: 

Governmental Activities - Most of the School Board's basic services are reported here, including 
instiaicfion, plant services, transportafion, and food services. Property taxes, sales taxes. 
Minimum Foundation Program C'MFP") Funds, and state and federal grants finance most of 
these activifies. In the intemal service funds, the School Board charges fees to departments to 
help cover the costs of certain services it provides by being self insured. The School Board's 
general liability, workers' compensafion, and health insurance programs are accounted for here. 
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Business-type activities - Business-type acfivities are those activifies which are conducted by the 
School Board whereas the fees/charges for those services provided are intended to be sufficient 
to realize a profit. The School Board did not have any such acfivifies. 

Our analysis below focuses on the net assets (Table I) and changes in net assets (Table 2) of the 
School Board's governmental activities. 

TABLE 1 
SUMMARY OF NET ASSETS 

(in thousands) 
Governmental 

Activities 
2009 2008 

Assets: 
Current and other assets $307,484 $261,336 
Capital assets 355,285 269,492 

Total Assets $662.769 $530.828 

Liabilities: 
Long-term debt outstanding $352,620 $268,103 
Other liabilifies 68,499 59,155 

Total Liabilifies $42L119 $327.258 

Net Assets: 
Invested in capital assets, 

net of related debt $202,533 $ 148,067 
Restricted 19,620 11,907 
Unrestricted 19.497 43.596 

Total Net Assets $241.650 $203,570 

By far the largest portion of the School Board's net assets (84 percent) reflects its investment in 
capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to 
acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The School Board uses these capital assets to 
provide services to public; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. 
Although the School Board's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it 
should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other 
sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

The restricted net assets (8 percent) represent resources to be used to pay the remaining amount 
of outstanding debt. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets ($19.5 million) may be 
used to meet the School Board's ongoing obligafions to the public and creditors. 

At the end of June 30, 2009, the School Board is able to report positive balances in all three 
categories of net assets. The same situafion held true for the prior fiscal year. 
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The School Board's net assets increased by $29.2 million mainly due to increased revenues for 
advalorem taxes, increased funding from the Louisiana Department of Education offset by 
decreases in sales tax revenues, and salary and related benefit cost increases in General Fund, 
unspent bond proceeds, and an $8.8 million increase due to the change in the capitalization 
policy. Total expenses by function were down $8.8 million in comparison to 2008. 

TABLE 2 
SUMMARY OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

(in Thousands) 
Governmental 

Activities 
2009 

Revenues 
Program Revenues: 

Charges for services 
Operating grants and contributions 
Capital grants and conuibutions 

General revenues: 
Property taxes 
Sales taxes 
State Equalization (MFP) 
Other general revenues 

Total revenues 

Program expenses 
Regular programs 
Special education programs 
Vocational education 
Other instructional programs 
Special programs 
Adult education programs 
Pupil support 
Instructional staff support 
General administration 
School administration 
Business administration 
Operation and maintenance of plant 
Pupil transportation 
Central services 
Food services 
Community services programs 
Interest on long-term debt 

Total expenses 
Increase (decrease) in net assets 
Beginning net assets (as restated for 2009) 
Restatement 
Ending net assets 

420.951 
29,197 

212,453 

S241.650 

2009 

$ 5,976 
31,956 
35,401 

99,814 
77,360 
180,116 
19.525 

450,148 

142,642 
74,326 
5,804 
14.882 
11,244 
406 

15,700 
15,435 
7,926 

22,142 
2,609 

34,273 
31,604 
8,280 

20,628 
1,441 

11.609 

2008 

$ 6,387 
32,521 
9,348 

83,661 
84,844 
173,501 
15,945 
406.107 

149,056 
75,534 
6,300 
16,303 
12,296 
469 

16,297 
16,967 
8,450 
21,729 
2,760 
37,391 
31,937 
7,909 

21,342 
1,924 

. 3,053 
429.717 
(23,610) 
227.180 

8.883 
S212.453 

Revenues increased 13 percent or approximately S52.9 million. The largest increases were as a 
result of increases in ad valorem taxes, and the Minimum Foundation Program grant from the 
State of Louisiana. During fiscal year 2009, the School Board restated its beginning net assets 
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to reflect a change in capitalization threshold of capital assets and to adjust for over depreciation 
of fixed assets in previous years, as ftirther explained in note 5. 

Student enrollment had a slight increase from 35,523 students in 2008 to 35,878 students in 
2009. MFP funding increased in accordance with growth and state funded raises. 

Expenses decreased 2 percent or approximately $8.8 million in 2009. Salary and benefits costs 
account for nearly 91 percent of general fimd expenditures for the School Board. There was an 
increase in salaries and related benefit due to across the board local and state raises in General 
Fund; however, expenses declined overall in all other funds causing the decrease overall. Cost 
cutting measures were implemented in all expense categories for 2009. 

REPORTING THE SCHOOL BOARD'S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS 

The School Board uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements. 

Our analysis of the School Board's major funds begins on page 59. The fund financial 
statements begin on page 16 and provide detailed information about the most significant funds -
not the School Board as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by State law or by 
bond covenants. However, the School Board establishes other funds to help it control and 
manage fmancial resources for particular purposes or to demonstrate that it is meeting legal 
responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants, and other money. 

The School Board's three types of fiands - governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary funds - use 
different accounting approaches. 

Governmental Funds - Most of the School Board's basic services are reported in the 
governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into and out of these fiinds and the 
balances lef̂  at year-end that are available for spending. These funds are reported using 
modified accrual accounting, v/hich measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily 
be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of 
the School Board's general government operations and the basic services it provides. 
Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial 
resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the School Board's programs. We 
describe the relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the 
Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in 
reconciliation on pages 18 and 21. 

The School Board's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $254.9 
million, an increase of $51.3 million (see Statements C & E) in comparison with the prior year.-
The component of this decrease is described below. 
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The General Fund balance decreased by $5.8 million from prior year to $49.9 million as of June 
30, 2009. General Fund expenditures before transfers and other financing uses increased by 4 
percent or SI2.6 million. General Fund revenue before transfers and other financing sources 
increased 6 percent or $14.9 million. Transfers, mostly fi-om the sales tax funds and grants, 
decreased $11.7 million from 2009. Operating expenditures increased mainly due to salary 
increases given by the state and locally plus benefits. Fuel cost increases also contributed to the 
increase in costs. These increases were offset by revenue increases. Revenues increased as a 
result of increases in the Minimum Foundation Program grant for 2009 and for increases in 
advalorem taxes as a result of increased property values. 

The 1966 Sales Tax Fund had revenues of neariy $39 million in 2008-2009. The 1966 Sales Tax 
Fund accounts for the collection for the 1966 sales taxes for the School Board. Sales taxes 
decreased approximately $7.9 million in 2009. The disbursements from this fund are transfers 
out to applicable funds to cover operational costs as the revenue bonds previously funded with a 
portion of these taxes were paid off in prior years. This fund acts similar to a conduit for sales 
tax collections. 

The 1977 Sales Tax Fund had revenues of neariy 39 million in 2008-2009. The 1977 Sales Tax 
Fund accounts for the collection for the 1977 sales taxes for the School Board. Sales taxes 
decreased approximately $7.9 million in 2009. The disbursements from this fund are transfers 
out to applicable funds to cover operational costs as the revenue bonds previously funded with a 
portion of these taxes were paid off in prior years. This fiind acts similar to a conduit for sales 
tax collections. 

The Katrina Fund accounts for the revenue and expenditures relating to the recovery from 
Hurricane Katrina. Revenues from hurricane recovery grants and insurance proceeds increased 
in 2009 by approximately $29 million or 168 percent. Expenditures relating to hurricane 
recovery increased by approximately $23 million or 183 percent. 

The 2008 Construction Fund accounts for the expenditures of the $167 million in general 
obligation bonds approved by voters to finance $15 million in technology, $2.1 million in 
security cameras, and $149.9 million in capital improvements for new constmction and 
improvements to existing facilities. Expenditures for capital projects in this fund increased by 
$11.6 million in 2009. 

Proprietary Funds - When the School Board charges for the services it provides, whether to 
outside sources or to other units of the School Board, these services are generally reported in 
proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported 
in the Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities. The School Board maintains three 
intemal service (proprietary) fijnds. An intemal service fund accumulates and allocates costs 
internally among the School Board's various functions. The School Board maintains separate 
intemal service fijnds to account for its self-insured portion of its general liability, employee 
workers' compensation, and health insurance programs. 
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Because the services provided in these funds benefit governmental rather than business-
type fianctions, they have been included as governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements. 

Fiduciary Funds - The School Board is trustee, or fiduciary, for its student activity funds 
that are under the control and administration of the Board. All of the School Board's 
fiduciary activities are reported in the Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities on 
page 25. These funds are not available to the School Board to finance its operations, and 
therefore not included in the government-wide financial statements. The School Board is 
responsible for ensuring that the assets reponed by these funds are used for their intended 
purposes. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget can be briefly 
summarized as follows: 

$6.4 million increase in projected revenues as follows: 
• $1.4 million increase in minimum foundafion program as actual attendance was 

slightly higher than budgeted. 
• $5 million increase in ad valorem taxes due to increase in property added to the tax 

rolls within the Parish. 
SI.8 million increase in projected expenditures as follows: 
o $1.8 million increase in salaries and benefits and related expenditures as a result of 

state and local pay raises. 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

As of June 30, 2009, the School Board invested in broad range of capital assets, including 
land, school facilifies, and equipment totaling $355.3 million. (See Table 4 below) The 
net increase (including addifions and deductions) in capital assets in 2009 was higher 
over the past year. The School Board changed its capitalizafion pohcy effective July 1, 
2008 from $1,000 to $5,000. This change was mandated by the Louisiana Department of 
Education. More detailed information of capital assets can be found in footnote 5. 
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TABLE 4 
CAPITAL ASSEIS AT YEAR-END 
(Net of Depreciation, in Thousands) 

Land 
Land Improvements 
Buildings & Improvements 
Equipment 
Construcfion in progress 

Total 

Governmental 
Activities 

2009 2008 

S 13,018 $ 10,586 
7,690 

252,071 177,052 
5,523 4,186 

76,983 77,668 
$355,285 $269,492 

The projects for 2008-2009, in addition to the complefion of a new elementary school, 
were mainly for classroom additions, reconstruction, and renovafions throughout the 
Parish. 

Long-term Debt 

As of June 30, 2009, the School Board had $352.6 million in long-term debt outstanding 
an increase of $84.5 million or 32 percent over the amount of June 30, 2008 - as shown 
in Table 5. 

TABLE 5 
OUTSTANDING DEBT AT YEAR-END 

(in Thousands) 

Governmental 
Activities 

2009 2008 

General obligation bonds $236,920 $163,185 
(backed by the School 

Board) 

Federal Disaster Loans 67,844 6.7,844 
Other Post Employment Benefits 30,999 21,245 
Compensated Absences 16,857 15,829 

Totals $352.620 $268.103 

11 
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The School Board continued to pay down its outstanding debt issues and borrowed an 
additional $86.3 million through issuance of general obligation bonds in 2008-2009. This 
is the first and second series in a series totaling SI 67 million authorized. 

The School Board's bond rating in 2008-2009 was AA- by Standard & Poors and Aa3 
for Moody's. The State constitution limits the amount of general obligafion debt that the 
School Board can issue to 35 percent of the assessed value of all taxable property within 
the school district. The School Board's outstanding general obligafion debt of $236.9 
million is significantly below the current $686 million limit. 

The School Board inifiated a risk management program for general liability, workers' 
compensafion, and health insurance in prior years. The School Board purchases 
commercial insurance for claims in excess of coverage provided through its self-
insurance funds. The School Board had $14.9 million and $15.5 milhon in claims and 
judgments outstanding for fiscal year ending June 30, 2009 and 2008, respecfively. Other 
obligafions include accrued vacafion pay and sick leave. More detailed informafion 
about the School Board's long-term liabilifies is presented in Notes 6, 7, and 8 to the 
financial statements. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS 

The following are currently known St. Tammany Parish economic factors considered into 
the 2009-2010 fiscal year: 

o Sales taxes rate of growth is projected to resume a modest growth or to decline. St. 
Tammany Parish remains one of the wealthiest parishes in the State of Louisiana and 
the effects from Hurricane Katrina have reached a minimal level. 

» The School Board's student attendance is expected to confinue to increase for the 
next couple of years. 

• Pressure to increase teacher salaries to keep up with the Southern Average continues, 
and salary cost will increase accordingly. 

• The School Board's fiscal year 2010 budget for capital projects is expected to 
increase with the addifion of new schools, construcfion planned as part of the 2008 
referendum, and reconstruction of damaged school facilities from Hurricane Katrina. 

At the fime these financial statements were prepared and audited, the School Board was 
aware of the following circumstances that could significantly affect the School Board's 
financial health in the future: 

• Sales taxes were down neariy 9% below fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 levels. 
• The nafional economy was projected to be coming out of a recessionary period. 
• The student counts for fiscal year ending June 30, 2009 experienced growth. 
• MFP funding approved in the Legislative special session is expected to be just over 

$186 million. However, other sources of state funding are projected to be cut. 
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• The Parish's Tax Assessor anficipates property tax collecfions to increase around 
$500,000 over 2009. 

All of these factors were considered in preparing the St. Tammany Parish School Board's 
budget for the 2009-2010 fiscal year. 

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to provide cifizens, taxpayers, investors, and creditors 
with a general overview of the School Board's finances and to show the School Board's 
accountability for the money it receives. If you have quesfions about this report or need 
addifional financial informafion, contact Ms. Terri Fortenberry, Interim Director of 
Business Services, at the St. Tammany Parish Public School System, P.O. Box 940, 
Covington, LA 70434-0940 or by calling (985) 898-3217 during regular business hours, 
Monday through Friday, from 8:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., central standard time. 
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Statement A 
STTAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Covington, Louisiana 

Statement of Net Assets 
June 30, 2009 

GOVERNMENTAL 
ACnVITIES 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
investments 
Receivables (Net): 
Taxes: 

Ad valorem 
Sales and use 

Intergovernmental : 
Federal 
State 
Other 

Other Receivables 
Inventory 
Deferred charges 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted investments 
Capital assets not being depreciated' 

Land 
Consiruclion in progress 

Capital assets net of accumulated depreciation 
Land improvements 
Buildings and Improvements 
Furniture and equipment 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 
Salaries & wages payable 
Payroll deductions and withholdings payable 
Accounts payable 
Accrued interest payable 
Rctainages payable 
Unearned revenues 
Other liabilities 
Claims and judgments 
Lx)ng-tcrm liabilities: 

Due within one year: 

Bonds payable 
Compensated absences 

Due in more than one year: 
Bond payable 

Community Disaster Loan payable 
Compensated absences 
Other post employment benefits 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS 
Invested m capital assets, net ofrelated debt 
Restricted for debt service 
Unrestricted 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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181,824,208 

5,107,891 

4.932,700 

12,848,744 

13,132,052 

1,622,480 
35,012 

3,1 17,954 

455.820 

239.322 

84.124.732 

43,360 

13,018,458 

76,983.236 

7,689,935 

252,070,482 
5,522.597 

662.768,983 

28.105,502 

3,747,138 
8.452,710 

8,955,261 

3.558,786 

729,184 

101,014 

14,849,665 

18,095.000 
3.188.762 

218,825.000 
67.843.97) 

13,667.916 

30.999.294 

421,119,203 

202,532.800 

19,619,889 
19,497,091 

241,649,780 



Statement B 
SI. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Covington, Louisiana 

Statement of Activities 
For (he Vcar Ended June 30, 2009 

Expenses 

Operating 
Charges Grants and 

For Services Contributions 

Capital 
Grants and 

Contributions 

Net (Expense) 
Revenue and 
Changes in 
Net Assets 

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS 
Govenwtenlal Activities: 
Instmction. 
Regular Programs 
Special Education Programs 
Vocational Educational Programs 
Other Instmctional Programs 
Special Programs 
Adult Educational Programs 

Support Services: 
Pupil Support 
Insiruciional Staff Support 
General Administration 
School Administration 
Business Administration 
Operation and Maintenance of Plant 
Pupil Transportation 
Cenlial Services 
Food Services 

Community Service Programs 
Interest on Long-tcmi Debt 

Total Governmental Activities 

$ 142,642,325 
74,326,162 

5,804,540 

14,882.116 
11,243,792 

406.423 

15.700.409 

15.434,557 

7.925,766 

22.141.850 
2.609,547 

34.272.688 

31,603,396 
8,280.124 

20,628.334 

1,440.596 

li.609,204 

S 420,951.829 

S 1,528,919 

-
-
-

3,078,385 

1.368.615 

-

S 5,975,919 

S 4.623,333 $ 

4.649.490 

260,919 

1,462.604 
8,001,335 

362,639 

1,644.144 

2,024,517 

61,873 

364.131 
147.837 

55.257 
8.297.560 

-

S 31.955,639 I 

3 

-
-
-
-
-

„ 

-

35.370,034 

31,211 

35.401,245 

i (136.490.073) 

(69,676.672) 

(5.543.621) 

(13,419,512) 

(3,242.457) 
(43.784) 

(14,056,265) 

(13,410.040) 
(7,863.893) 

(22,141.850) 

(2.609,547) 
1,461.477 

(31.455,559) 

(8,224,867) 

(9,221,178) 
(71.981) 

(11.609,204) 

(347.619,026) 

Unrestricted General Revenues (expenses): 
Taxes: 

Ad Valorem (Properly) Taxes 
Sales and Use Taxes 

S late Revenue Sharing 
Grants and Contributions not Restricted to 

Specific Programs - Minimum Foundation Program 
I ntercst and Investment Burnings 
I nsurance proceeds 
Miscellaneous 

Total GcncrdI Revenues and Special Items 

Changes in Net Assets 

Net Assets. Beginning, As Restated 

Net Assets. Ending 

Tlie notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 

99,813,880 
77.359.837 

1,971.376 

180.116.316 
4,154.856 

10.676.833 
2,722,503 

376.815,601 

29.196.575 

212.453,205 

241,649.780 

15 



"Hello" 
Kaela Powery - Grade 6 
Darlene Powell - Teacher 

Carolyn Park Middle School 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FFS) 



"Living on the Bayou" 
Blaine Pennington - Grade 8 

Irit Sirkes - Teacher 
St. Tammany Junior High 





S V. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

CrtviHElnD, Louisiina 

Covcrnmcnlal Funtl-i - Bolincc Shei^t 

June M>, 2009 

With Comparnlive Totals for June 30, 2008 

Major 

Fund Type; 

General TJ:^ 

t')77 Sali;s Kncnna 

AS-Kli 

Cflsli and cash wtuivalcnii 

Invesiments 

Rcctivahles' 

Taxes. 

All valorem 

Sales and use 

Inlcrnoveniinenial' 

Federal 

Slate 

[nicrcsl 

Oihcr 

Due frt)m oiher funds 

Invcniory 

Tolal Asscis 

J 4').864.';4I 

l,934,2&4 

5.136 

71,83! 

767.101 

35.012 

692,8% 

28.4I8JS5 

S 85,673,69) 

6,424,3 ;̂2 

. 
-
-
-
-

5 6,429.508 

6.424;j72 

S 90,920.008 

I5,i l2 

7.728.547 

Liabilities and Fund Balances 

l.iabiliucs: 

Salnncs wid wflgcs payable 

PsjToU dcduciions and wuhholdings payable 

Accounts poyflblc 

ConinKts and rciainagis payable 

Due to oiher fundi 

Oilier liabiUtics 

Unearned revenues 

Toinl Liabiliiies 

Fund Balances. 

Reserved for 

Reserved for inventory 

Rciervcd for debt service 

Unrcicrved/designaied for 

DcMgnaicd for bond raiing 

Designated for constmaion 

Unreserved, undcsignaicd rcporlcd in: 

General fund 

Special revcnac fund 

Capiial projects fund 

TDIBI Fund Balances 

Total Liabililici and FIHKI Balances 

$ 28.105.502 

3.747.138 

3,119,800 

247,135 

mO.676 

418.161 

35.738.421 

S 

-
168 

6.429,3-10 

-

6,429,508 

i 

m 

6.429,373 

. 
6,429,5^6 

S 

l.0IB.64fi 

1.630.084 

196.041 

Z.SA'i.ni 

29,080.988 

49,935.270 

S 85.673.69! 

95.818,896 

95.818.896 

I 6.429.50S S 6.429.546 S 98.663.667 

The notes torticbasic finarrcial staiements arc an inlcgnil partof diisstaiemcni 



Statcincnt C 

2008 

Consiruclion I'und 

Non-Maiur 

Fufid Typc^ 

Odicr 

Cioveniiiicniitl 

loiab 

77,243.003 

37.166 

$ 38.662,994 

133,544 

S 256.701.236 

4.075.513 

S 212,132,704 

9.070.320 

369,924 

5.331,674 

855.379 

86,651 

426.041 

455.830 

77.280.169 S 46.822,427 

2.804.188 

12.848,744 

13,!32,052 

1,622,480 

35.012 

779.547 

28.844..196 

455.820 

1.890,165 

14,048,426 

4,943.759 

3,690.068 

31.719 

113.741 

24,609 458 

372.223 

32U99.0 270,952.583 

790.421 

153,253 

106.559 

. 

3.495,942 

1,775.449 

8,350,835 

33S 

311,023 

1,050,233 13,933,587 

28.105.502 

3.747.138 

8.425.154 

3.558.786 

21.759,288 

101.014 

729,184 

S 26.345.430 

33,694 

6,339,213 

3,886,752 

23,374.950 

85,174 

7,363,907 

66.426.066 

455.820 

19,619.889 

455.820 

19.619.889 

372.223 

11,906,700 

20.854,282 19.692.109 

76.229.936 

76.229.936 

2.279,353 

10,533,778 

32.888,840 

29,080,988 

98.098,249 

86,763,714 

254,872.942 

36,092.053 

94,163.582 

41.2%,796 

203.523,463 

77.280,169 S 46.832,427 321.299.008 270,952.583 



Statement D 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Covington, Louisiana 

Reconciliation of the Govcrntneniat Funds Balance Sheet 

to the Statement of Net Assets 

asof June 30, 2009 

For the Ycai Ended June 30, 2009 254,872,942 

The cost of capital ast,eis {land, buildings, furniture and equipment) purchased or 
constructed is reported as e.tpendiuirL' in govcmmental funds. The Statement of Nel 
Assets includes those capital assets among the .Tsscts of the School Board as a whole. 
The costs of those assets allocated over their estimated useful lives (as depreciation 
expense) to the various programs reponed as governmental activities in ihc Siatemenl of 
Activities. Because depreciation expense dues not aflect ilnancial resources, it is not 
reported m govemincnlal funds 

Cost oj'capital asscis 
Accumulated depreciation 

371,667,124 

(216.382,416) 

355,284,70s 

Other long-term assets are not available lo pay for curronl-period expenditures and, 
therefore, are deferred in the fiinds. 239,322 

Elimination of inierfund assets and liabilities 
Interfund assets 
Inlertiind liabilities 

Change in revenue accnials - Under modified accrual basis of accounting, levenues are 
not recognized unless they are deemed "available" to finance the expenditures of the 
current period. .Accrual basis recognition is nol limited to availability, so certain 
revenues need to be reduced by the amounts that were unavailable at the beginning of the 
year and increased by the amounts thai were unavailable at the end of the year. This 
adjustment records a nel increase in revenues. 

(28,844,396) 
21.759,288 

(7,085.108) 

2,128,512 

Net assets of the intemal service fund reported as proprietary fund type in the l\ind 
fmancial statement but included as govemmenial activities in the government-wide 
financial statement less interfund balances eliminated in the consolidation into the 
governmental activities. 

Total net assets 
Interfund balances 

(9,300,500) 
7.085,108 

(2,215,392) 

Long-term liabilities applicable to the School Board's governmental activities arc not due 
and payable in Ihe current period and accordingly are nol reported as fund liabilities Al 
Liabilities - both current and long-term - are reported in the Statement ofNei Assets. 
Balances at June 30, 2009 are; 
Accrued Interest payable 
Bonds payable 
Community Disaster Loan 
Other Post Employment benefits 
Compensated absences 

(8,955,261) 
(236.920.000) 

(67.843,971) 
(30,999,294) 
(16,856,678) (361,575.204) 

Net assets - governmental activities 

Tlie noles to the basic financial statements arc an integral part of this statement. 
241.649.780 



"Who Dat?" 
Connor Egan - Grade 6 

Robin Kennedy - Teacher 
Mandeviile Middle School 



ST. T A M M A N V PARISH S C I W O L BOARD 
CoviriRton, l^oulsiana 

Covemmcntnl FunJs 

Sialcmenl orRcvenues , Expepdinires, iind ChnnjCi in Fund BnUnccs 

For the Year Ended J u n e 30,2009 

With Campi ra t ive TotnU Tor ihc Vear Endetl June 30, 2(I0S 

Mnjor 

Fund 1 ypc 

GcTicral 

Rcvemia 

Loca! iiourccs; 

t'ljtci; 

Ad valorem 
Sales and \iie 

Tuiiion 
Eominy'i on iru'dtTHtnls 
Food Mivici; 

Oihw 
SiaicsouiCK 

Minimum foundaiiO" proytHm 
Coniribuiionslt) 

Teachers' Reiirciiraii 

Rci'eniH; iharinj; 

Proftsiional ImprO^L-mciil rjoijram 

Other 

Federal KIUICCS 

TQIJI Rcvi;nucs 

EspemJilura 

CuTTcnv 

Insiruciwn: 

Keguiw cducfliion profirams 

S|>cci^ cducfliion proeronu 

Vcwaikinal cducJiion proartmi 

Other inslRiciionai profiniins 

Spccijl programs 

Adult cducalwn prosmnu 

Suppon services: 

Pupil support 

tnstruciional s tair iuppon 

General adminisiraiion 

School adminisiraiion 

Quiincss adminisirBliDn 

Operation and m!"n<cnancc of plant 

Pupil tnuisportaiwi 

CcrHraJ seTvuM 

Food service 

Community SCRTCC profifims 

Hatiliiiia acquisilwn wd consiruciiOn 

DiAx icivfcc 

Legal Tea 

f:fcciifin cxpctuea 

Bond issuance cosis 

Principal reiircnxmi 

Iniereii and bank ch»fi;« 

Tolal EtpendiiurC!. 

Excess (Defcioicy) of Revenues 

Over (Under) Expcndiiwcs 

Other F'lnancing Sources (Uses) 

Ttarorcrs in 

1 layaren out 

Iniurancc proceeds 

Accrued inlcrnt and premium on bonds 

Bonds raued 

SalcorcaphaJBsseli 

Toial Other Financioe Soureea and I h a 

Net Change in Fund Bolanccs 

Fund Balance*, lieti/mmg of Year 

Fund Balance*, End of Year 

The rotc3 to the finafKial .yalemenL'; are an inicijrai pari 

130,207.662 

63,837.725 

5,165,722 

! 2,450.623 

1.5IO.-138 

13.03-1.102 

11.45^,131 

5.310.519 

20.700.136 

2.'1)9.65J 

11.501.16! 

29,J98 044 

7.685.796 

2.824,364 
•12.226 

4Wf.37l 

(80,652.082) 

79.925J36 
(5.121,246) 

_74,SQ4.090 

(5.848.B92) 

55.784.162 

S 49,935.270 

o t th i i ^dicmenl 

l i e a S n k s l977Sales 

IM..E '̂•n^j Ta-1 Fund 

S 67,593.678 

160.304 
666.399 

2.98I.S67 

178 I.U.191 

1,971,376 
.169.618 

5 174.506 
665.428 

257.764.864 

5 
^8.66LS'lQ 

17,845 

• 

38.679.741 

S 
3S.&'i7.'Ml 

17.380 

38,715,82) 

410J17 -146.563 

38.269.224 38.269,258 

(41,360,170) ( 4 U 6 0 . J 4 4 ) 

(41.360.170) (4I,J6Q,3-H/ 

(3.090,946) (3.091.086) 

3,090.946 3.091,086 

Koinna 

36,173,259 

) 0.480,792 

11.480.058 

84,338.838 

S 95,818.896 

2003 

Comirmjiion F^md 

1.393.411 

16.330.000 

87.563,126 

76.002.720 

227.216 

Non-mijor 

Fund Typei 

Other 

OovCTT[jni^^) 

l.J6S,61S 
S61 .MS 

3.078,385 
366,593 

1,983,123 

6.969.404 

26.126.871 

6.710 

4,017 

4.209 

186 

176.092 

132.873 

34 849.906 

35,173,993 

999,266 

(196,041) 

151,222 

-

12.064 J32 

12.215,454 

(11.559,406) 

(161,285) 

3,141.333 
5,649.490 

260.919 

1.462,604 

9,001,335 
23,497 

1.644,144 
2.970,854 

I.0S6.735 

364.131 
147,837 
55,257 

l6J2fl , l05 
1.304,582 

38.006,145 

1625 
5,022 

81.447 

12.595.000 

S.B10.79O 

102,960,BS4 

(32,415.075) 

10^45.505 
(1.971.755) 

8.312.700 

(24.102.375) 

56,991.215 

76,229.936 



Siaicmcnl K 

I 97,6H5.3hS 
77.3i9.S'7 

I,52IJ.919 

:.7::.495 
» 07,S,.1S5 
3.34K,460 

160,116.316 

S 81,835,326 
93.28 LSI 2 

1,636.022 

S.61^9.903 
3,101,946 
1.764.267 

ni .50l .2OI 

48,495 57,059 
1.971.376 2.086,394 

369,613 435.420 

12.143.910 10.132.503 

62.162.333 12,033.308 

442,535.513 420.863.660 

133,355.707 

69,437.215 
5,426,641 

13,913,227 
10,511.773 

379.963 

14.678,246 
1-1,429,702 

7.409,765 
20.700.322 

2.439.653 
12.041.391 

29.545.881 
7,7-11,051 

19.2BS.342 
1,346.808 

85.418.654 

1.625 
5.022 

81.447 

12,595.000 

8.830,790 

489.625,227 

(47.089.715) 

90,170.841 
(90.170.841) 

10.676.833 

I.4J2J6I 
86.330.000 

98.439,194 

51.349,479 

203.523,463 

$ 254.872.942 

129.525.124 

65.514.042 
5.389.396 

13,980,109 
10.430.732 

403,012 

14.147.088 
14.733.349 

7.323.346 
18,869.821 
2..394.il6 

12.288,195 
27.757.246 
6.751,697 

\ i^4A\AM 
1.671,217 

69,455.6,16 

10.125 
58.109 
75J90 

11.805.771 
7,450.217 

458,495,272 

(37.631,612) 

i23.228J4l 
(12JJ28J41) 

670,000 

54,763 

734,763 

(36,906,849) 

240,4J0.312 

I 203.523.463 



Statement F 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Covington, Louisiana 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of 

Revenues. Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances to the 

Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Total net changes in fund balances-governmental funds S 51,349,479 

Amounts rcpodcd for governmental activities in the Stalcmeni of Activities are 
difTcrcnl because; 

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the 
Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their eslimaled useful 
lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeds 
depreciation in the project. 

Capita! outlays $ 92,011.049 
Depreciation expense (15,100,920) 76,910,129 

New debt/bonds issues provide current jlnancial resources to governmental funds, but 
issuing debt increases long-term liabilities m the statement of net assets. Repayment of 
debt principal and capital leases is expenditure in the governmental funds, but the 
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. This is the 
amount that the amount issued exceeded repayments 

Bonded Debt Repayments $ 12,595,000 
Bond proceeds (86.330,000) 
Bond issuance costs 75,498 
Accrued Interest (2.765,818) (76,425,320) 

Revenues for sales tax, ad valorem, and federal funds in the statement of activities that 
do not provide current financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds, (4,496,302) 

In the Statement of Activities, compensated absences are measured by the amounts 
earned during Ihe year. In the governmental funds, however, expenditures for these 
Items arc rrieasured by the amount of financial resources used (essentially, the amounts 
actually paid). This year, vacation and sick time earned ($4,216,780) exceeded the 
amounts used ($3.188,762) by $ 1,028,018. S (1,028,018) 

In the Statement of Activities, Post Employment benefits are measured by the amounts 
earned during the year. In the governmental funds, however, expenditures for these 
items are measured by the amount of financial resources tjscd (essentially, the amounts 
actually paid) $ (9.753,866) 

All revenues, expenses and changes in fund net assets (deficits) of the internal service 
fund are reported as proprietary fund type in the fund financial statement but included 
as govemmenial activities in the government-wide financial statement. 

Net Loss $ (7,359.527) 

Change in net assets of governmental activities S 29,196,575 

The noles to the basic financial slalcments are an integral part of this statement. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Covington, Louisiana 

Statement G 

Proprietary Fund Type - Internal Service Fund 

Statements of Net Assels 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2008 

2009 

Current Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Invesiments 

Accounts receivable 

Due from other funds 

Total Assets 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Current Liabilities 

Accounts payable 

Due to other funds 

Liability for 

self-insurance losses 

Claims liability 

Total Liabilities 

Net Assets 
Restricted for employee benefits 

Unrestricted 

Total Net Assets 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 

9,247,684 

1,075,738 

2,338,407 

247,135 

12,908,964 

2008 

13,365,187 

998,160 

466,117 

229,368 

15,058,832 

$ 

$ 

27,556 
7,332,243 

14,271.134 

578,531 

22,209,464 

(11,659,552) 

2,359,052 

{9.300,500} 

12.908,964 

$ 

$ 

21,750 

1,463,876 

14,149,129 
1.365,050 

16,999,805 

(5,311,734) 

3,370,761 

(1,940,973) 

15,058,832 

The notes lo the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Statement H 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

Proprietary Fund Type- Internal Service Fund 
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and 

Changes in Net Assets 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2008 

2009 2008 

Operating Revenues 
Employer contributions 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses 
Administrative 
Contractual services 
Premium payments 
Benefit Payments 
Claims 
Increase in provision for self-insurance losses 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Loss 

Non-Operating Revenues 
Earnings on investments 

Total Non-Operating Revenues 

Changes in Net Assets 

Total Net Assets - Beginning of Year 

Total Net Assets - End of Year 

$ 

$ 

64,815,782 

64,815,782 

365,157 
2,990,197 

1,738,701 

66,380,483 

1,508,170 
(664,515) 

72,318.193 

(7,502,411) 

142.884 

142,884 

(7,359,527) 

(1,940,973) 

(9,300,500) 

$ 

$ 

61.916,761 

61,916.761 

153,016 

5,280,448 

145,173 

61,099,807 

477,208 
1,274,502 

68,430.154 

(6,513,393) 

567,077 

567,077 

(5,946,316) 

4,005,343 

(1,940,973) 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Statement I 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
CovingtOD, Louisiana 

Proprietary Fund Type - Internal Sm-ice Funds 
Statements of Cash Flows 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 
With Comparative Totals For June 30, 2008 

2009 2008 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities 
Receipts from employer and employee contributions $ 62,961,607 S 65,397,949 
Payments for benefits and claims (62.038.662) (61,237,547) 
Payments for insurance premiums (1,738,701) (145,173) 
Payments for administrative and contractual services (3,367,053) (5,433,787) 

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities (4,182,809) (1,418.558) 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
Earnings on investments 142,884 567,077 

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 142,884 567,077 

Nei Decrease in Cash, Cash 
Equivalents and Investments (4,039,925) (851,481) 

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments at 
Beginning of Year 14,363,347 15,214,828 

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments at 
End of Year $ 10,323,422 $ 14,363,347 

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Used 
by Operating Activities: 

Operating loss $ (7,502,411) S (6,513,393) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating lo.ss 

10 net cash used by operating activities: 
Increase (decrease) in provision for self insurance 

losses (664,515) 1,274,502 
(Increase) Decrease in receivables (1,890,056) 2,646,024 
Increase in payables 5,874,173 1,174,309 

Net cash used by operating activities S (4.182,809) $ (1,418,558) 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral pan of this statement. 
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Statement J 

ST. TAMMANV PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

Agency/Fiduciary Fund 
Comparative Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities - School Activity Funds 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 
With Comparatives Totals for June 30, 2008 

2009 2008 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Due from other fiinds 
Investments 

Tolal Assets 

Liabilities 
Due to other funds 
Due to schools 

Total Liabilities 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

3,031,949 
100,676 

2,177,859 

5,310,484 

140,875 
5,169,609 

5,310,484 

S 

$ 

$ 

_ ^ _ 

2,929,723 
84,456 

2J36,761 

5.750,940 

113,741 
5,637,199 

5,750,940 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2009 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
A. Reporting Entity 
B. Basis of Presentation-Fund Accounting 
C. Basis of Accounting-Measurement Focus 
D. Budget Practices 
E. Encumbrances 
F. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments 
G. Receivables 
H. Short-Term interfund Receivables/Payables 
I. Inventory 
J. Restricted Assets 
K. Capital Assets 
L. Long-Teim Obligations 
M. Compensated Absences 
N. Sales and Use Taxes 
O. Restricted Net Assets - Government-wide Financial Statements 
P. Reserves of Fund Balance - Fund Financial Statements 
Q. Claims and Judgments 
R. Comparative Data and Total Columns on Combined Statements 

2. AD VALOREM TAXES 
3. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS 
4. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, .̂ ND TRANSFERS 
5. PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT 
6. RISK MANAGEMENT 
7. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT 
8. DEFEASED DEBT 
9. TAX ARBITRAGE REBATE 
10. RETIREMENT PLANS 
11. CHANGES IN AGENCY DEPOSFFS DUE OTHERS 
12. LITIGATION AND CLAIMS 
13. EXCESS OF EXPENDFTURES OVER APPROPRL^TIONS 
14. NET ASSETS DEFICIT IN INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
15. HURRICANE KATRINA 
16. GASB STATEMENT NO. 45 "ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING BY 

EMPLOYERS FOR POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSION" 
17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

26 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2009 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accompanying financial statements of the St. Tammany Parish School Board have been 
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAP) as applied to govermnentai units. The Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting 
and financial reporting principles. 

A. REPORTING ENTITY 

The St. Tammany Parish School Board (School Board) was created by Louisiana Revised Statute 
(LRS) 17:51 for the purpose of providing public education for the children within St. Tammany 
Parish, Louisiana. The School Board is authorized by LRS 17:81 to establish policies and 
regulations for its own government consistent with the laws of the State of Louisiana and the 
regulations of the Louisiana Board of Elementary and Secondary Education. The School Board 
is authorized to establish public schools as it deems necessary, to provide adequate school 
facilities for the children of the parish, to determine the number of teachers to be employed, and 
to determine local supplement to their salaries. The School Board is comprised of 15 members 
who are elected from 15 districts for concurrent terms of four years expiring in December 2011. 

The School Board operates 53 schools within the parish with a total enrollment of 35,878 
students. In conjunction with the regular educational programs, some of these schools offer 
special education and/or adult education programs. Additionally, the School Board provides 
transportation and school food services for the students. 

For fmancial reporting purposes, the School Board includes all funds and activities for which the 
School Board exercises financial accountability. The School Board members are elected by the 
public, have decision-making authority, the power to designate management, the ability to 
significantly influence operations and primary accountability for fiscal matters. Certain units of 
local government, over which the School Board exercises no financial accountability, such as the 
parish council, other independently elected parish officials, and municipalities within the parish, 
are excluded from the financial statements. These units of government are considered separate 
reporting entities and issue financial statements separate fi-om that of the School Board. The 
School Board is not a component unit of any other entity and does not have any component units 
that require inclusion in the fmancial statements. 

B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION-FUND ACCOUNTl>JG 

Government Wide Financial Statements (GWFS) 

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities display information about the 
reporting government as a whole. Fiduciary funds are not included in GWFS. Fiduciary fiinds 
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are reported only in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities at the fund financial statement level. 
For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. 

Internal Activities: The workers' compensation, risk management, and health/life insurance 
funds provide services to the governmental funds. Accordingly, these fijnds were included in the 
government activities. Pursuant to GASB 34, the intemal activities have been eliminated in order 
to avoid the "grossing-up" effect of a straight inclusion. Interfund services provided and used arc 
not eliminated in the process of consolidation. 

Program Revenues: Program revenues include: 1) charges for services provided, 2) operating 
grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions; program revenues reduce the 
cost of the function to be financed from the School Board's general revenues. Charges for 
services are primarily derived from food sales and tuition. Operating grants and contributions 
consist of the many educational grants received from the federal and state government. 

Allocation of Indirect Expenses: The School Board reports all direct expense by function in the 
Statement of Activities. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. 
Depreciation expense is specifically identifiable by function and is included in the direct expense 
of each function. Interest on general long-term debt is considered an indirect expense and is 
reported separately in the Statement of Activities. Other indirect expenses are allocated. 

Fund Financial Statements (FFS) 

Fund financial statements report detailed information about the School Board. The focus of the 
governmental and enterprise fund fmancial statements is on the major funds rather than reporting 
funds by type. Each major fund is presented in a separate column. The major funds reported by 
the School Board for the year ended June 30, 2009 are as follows: 

• General Fund, accounts for the day to day operafions of the School Board. 
• 1966 Sales Tax Fund, accounts for the collection for the 1966 sales taxes for the 

School Board 
• 1977 Sales Tax Fund, accounts for the collection for the 1977 sales taxes for the 

School Board 
• Katrina Funds, accounts for the revenue and expenditures relafing to the recovery 

from Katrina 
• 2008 Construction Fund, accounts for the expenditures of the $167 million in general 

obligation bonds approved by the voters to finance $15 million in technology, $2.1 
million in security cameras, and $149.9 million in capital improvements for new 
construction and improvements to existing facilities. 

Non-major fiinds are aggregated and presented in a single column. The intemal service funds are 
presented in a single column on the face of the proprietary funds statements. 

28 



ST. TAMMANV PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2009 

Special Revenue Funds 

Special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally 
restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. These fiands account for the revenues and 
expenditures related to federal, state and local grant and entitlement programs and special district 
funds established for various educational objectives. 

Debt Service Funds 

Debt Service Funds, established to meet requirements of bond ordinances, are used to account for 
the accumulation of resources for and the payment of long-term debt principal, interest, and 
related costs. 

Capital Projects Funds 

Capital Projects Funds account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or 
construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by the proprietary funds). 
Separate capital project funds are maintained to account for the proceeds of general obligation 
bonds and other financing proceeds. 

Proprietary Funds are used to account for the School Board's ongoing organizations and acfivifies 
that are similar to those often found in the private sector. The measurement focus is upon 
determination of net income. The School Board's proprietary fund type is limited to Intemal 
Service Funds as follows: 

Intemal Service Funds 

The Intemal Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for and the 
payment of benefits by the School Board's self-insurance programs. The School Board 
maintains the following self-insurance funds: 

Workers' Compensation Fund - This fiand is used to account for the payment of workers' 
compensation benefits. 

Risk Management Fund - This fund is used to account for general liability, which is fully 
insured for FYE June 30, 2009 with a deductible of $250,000 per occurrence, and 
property damage, which is insured at the fiscal year end June 30, 2009 with a deductible 
of $5,000,000 per occurrence. 

Health/Life Insurance Fund - This fund is used to account for the expenditures for health 
and life insurance claims for the School Board. 
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Fund revenues are derived from government allocations. These revenues are planned to match: 
(1) expenses of insurance premiums in excess of self-insurance amounts; (2) estimated claim 
losses resulfing from self-insurance programs which include estimated liabilities for claims 
incurred but not yet reported at year end, and (3) operating expenses. Non-operafing income 
includes interest income. 

Fiduciary Funds 

Fiduciar>' Funds are used to account for assets held by the School Board in a trustee or agency 
capacity. The School Board maintains one fiduciary fund type, an agency fund. The agency fund 
is custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and does not involve measurement of results of 
operations. 

C. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING-MEASUREMENT FOCUS 

The govemmenl-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accmal basis of accounting. Revenues, expense, gains, losses, assets 
and liabilities resulfing from the exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when 
the exchange takes place. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a 
liability is incurred, regardless of the fiming of relate cash flows. Property taxes (ad valorem) are 
recognized as revenue in the year they are levied and grant revenues are recognized as soon as all 
eligibility requirements are met. Revenues not earned are reported as deferred revenue. 

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon 
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered available when they are 
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current 
period. For this purpose, the School Board considers revenues to be available if they are collected 
within sixty days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded 
when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as 
well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded 
only when the payment is due. 

The proprietary fund type is accounted for accrual basis of accounfing. Revenues are recognized 
when they are earned, and expenses are recognized when they are incurred. Proprietary funds 
distinguish operating revenues and expenses fi-om non-operating items. Operating revenues and 
expense generally result from providing services in connection with a proprietary fund's 
principal ongoing operations. The operating revenue of the propriety fiinds are employer 
contributions. The operating expenses for the proprietary funds include the cost of insurance 
premiums, claims and administrative expenses. All revenues and expenses not meefing this 
definition are reported as non-operafing revenues and expenses. 
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The fiduciary fund types (agency fund) are reported in the financial statements on the accrual 
basis of accounfing. Under the accrual basis, revenues are recorded when they eamed. Revenues 
not considered eamed are recorded as deferred revenues. The following practices in recording 
revenues and expenditures have been used for the governmental fiinds. 

The School Board applies all applicable FASB pronouncements issued on or before November 
30, 1989 unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. 

Revenues 

Federal and state entitlements, which include state equalization and state revenue sharing, are 
recorded as unrestricted grants-in-aid when available and measurable. For this purpose, the 
Board considers all revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the 
current fiscal period. Federal and state grants which are restricted as to the purpose of the 
expenditures are recorded when the reimbursable expenditures have been made. Ad valorem 
taxes are recorded in the year the taxes are due and payable. Ad valorem taxes are assessed on a 
calendar year basis, based on the assessed value on January 1, become due on November 15 of 
each year, and become delinquent on December 31. An enforceable lien attaches to the property 
as of November 15. The taxes were levied by the School Board on September 11, 2008. 
However, before the taxes can be collected, the tax rolls must be submitted to the State Tax 
Commission for approval. The taxes are generally collected in December, January, and February 
of the fiscal year. Property tax revenues are accrued at fiscal year end to the extent that they have 
been collected and are unremitted by the St. Tammany Parish Tax Collector's Office. Such 
amounts are measurable and available to finance current operafions. Interest income on fime 
deposits and revenues from rentals, leases, and royalties are recorded when eamed. Sales and use 
tax revenues are recorded in the month in which the School Board considers them available (60 
days) to finance current year obligafions and are collected by the St. Tammany Parish Tax 
Collector. Substantially all other revenues are recorded when received. 

Expenditures 

Salaries are recorded as expenditures when incurred. Nine-month employee salaries are incurred 
over a nine-month period but paid over a twelve-month period. Compensated absences are 
recognized as expenditures when leave is actually taken or when employees (or heirs) are paid 
for accrued leave upon refirement or death, while the cost of eamed leave privileges not requiring 
current resources is recorded as a liability on the government-wide financial statements. 
Commitments under constmction contracts are recognized as expenditures when eamed by the 
contractor. Principal and interest on general long-term obligations are not recognized until due. 
All other expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting 
when the related fund liability is incurred. 
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The proprietary fiind type is reported in the financial statements on the accrual basis of 
accounfing. Revenues are recognized when they are eamed, and expenses are recognized when 
they are incurred. 

Uneamed Revenues 

Unearned revenues arise when resources are received before the School Board has a legal claim 
to them, such as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualilying 
expenditures, when tuition is received in advance of the commencement of classes, taxes paid in 
protest, or when there is an inventory of donated food commodifies at year end. In subsequent 
periods, when the School Board has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for uneamed 
revenue is removed from the balance sheet and the revenue is recognized. 

Prepaids 

Prepaid expenditures are recorded in the year that the expenditure is accrued using the 
consumpfion method. 

D. BUDGET PRACTICES 

The proposed budgets for fiscal year 2008-2009 were completed and made available for public 
inspccfion at the School Board office on July 28, 2008. A public hearing was held on August 
21, 2008 for suggesfions and comments from taxpayers. The proposed fiscal year 2008-2009 
budgets were formally adopted by the School Board on September 11, 2008 and amended on 
May 21, 2009. The budgets, which included proposed expenditures and the means of financing 
them, for the General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, and Capital Projects Funds' were 
published in the official journal ten days prior to the public hearings. The budget and 
amendments are reported on the major funds beginning on page 59. 

The budgets for all Funds for the fiscal year 2009 were prepared on a modified accrual basis, 
consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). 

Formal budgetary accounts are integrated into the accounfing system during the year as a 
management control device, including the recording of encumbrances. Appropriafions are valid 
only for the year in which made, and any part of such appropriation which is not encumbered or 
expensed lapses at the end of the year. Current year transactions which are directly related to the 
prior year's budget are not included in the budget for the current year. 

The level of control over the budget is exercised at the function or program level for the General 
and Special Revenue Funds, at the project level for the Capital Projects Funds and at the 
individual debt issue level for the Debt Service Funds. The Superintendent is authorized to 
transfer budget amounts within each function; however, any supplemental appropriations that 
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amend the total expenditures of any fund require School Board approval. As required by state 
law, when actual revenues within a fund are failing to meet estimated annual budgeted revenues 
by five percent or more, and/or actual expenditures within a fund are exceeding esfimated 
budgeted expenditures by five percent or more, a budget amendment to reflect such changes is 
adopted by the School Board in an open meefing. Budgeted amounts included in the financial 
statements include the original adopted budget and all subsequent amendments. 

Because the budgets are prepared on a modified accrual basis, no differences in budget basis and 
GAAP basis occurs. Addifional informafion on the original and final budgets can be found in the 
Budgetary Comparison Schedules in the Other Supplementary Informafion Section of this report. 

E. ENCUMBRANCES 

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments are 
recorded, is employed by the General Fund and Capital Projects Funds during the year as a 
budgetary tool. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are liquidated. 

F. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three 
months or less at date of acquisifion are considered to be cash equivalents in the Intemal Service 
Funds. Investments are stated at cost, which approximates fair value, and is the same as the 
value of the investment pool shares. 

G. RECEIVABLES 

Intergovernmental receivables consist of receivables for reimbursement of expenditures under 
various state and federal programs and grants. All amounts are expected to be collected within 
the next twelve months. 

Other receivables include all trade and other receivables considered to be received within one 
year. No allowance for uncollectible accounts has been established as all receivables are 
considered collectable. 

H. SHORT-TERM INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES 

During the normal course of operations, numerous transactions occur between fiinds for goods 
provided or services rendered. Activities between the funds that are representative of 
lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either 
"due to/due fi-om other funds" (i.e. the current portion) or "advances to/from other funds' (i.e. the 
non-current portion). These receivables and payables, as well as short-term interfund loans, are 
classified as due from other funds or due to other funds. Any residual balances outstanding 
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between governmental activities and business-type acfivities are reported in the government-wide 
financial statements as "intemal balances." 

1. INVENTORY 

Inventory of the School Food Service Special Revenue Fund consists of food purchased by the 
School Board and commodifies granted by the United States Department of Agriculture through 
the Louisiana Department of Education. The commodifies are recorded as revenues and 
expenditures when consumed. Commodifies inventory at year-end is recorded as deferred 
revenue. The purchased food is recorded as expenditures when consumed. All inventory items 
purchased are valued at cost (first-in, first-out), and donated commodities are assigned values 
based on informafion provided by the United States Department of Agriculture. 

J. RESTRICTED ASSETS 

Certain proceeds to the School Board general obligafion bonds are classified as restricted assets 
on the balance sheet because they are maintained in separate bank accounts and their use is 
limited by applicable bond covenants. Bond proceeds from the 1998 Constmcfion Fund, the 
2002 Construction Fund, the 2004 Construcfion Fund, and the 2008 Construcfion Fund are 
reported as restricted assets. 

K. CAPITAL ASSETS 

Land, land improvements, buildings and improvements, and furniture and equipment are 
recorded as expenditures in the governmental or business-type activities columns in the 
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or esfimated 
historical cost, if actual historical cost is not available. Donated capital assets are valued at their 
esfimated market value on the date of donafion. Approximately 95 percent of capital assets are 
valued at historical cost, while the remaining 5 percent are valued at esfimated cost, based on the 
historical cost of like items. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial 
individual cost of more than $5,000. 

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extend asset lives are not capitalized. Improvements are capitalized over the remaining usefiil 
lives of the assets. 

Capital assets are depreciated over their esfimated useful lives (excluding any applicable salvage 
value). Estimated useful life is management's esfimate of how long the asset is expected to meet 
service demands. Straight line depreciation is used based on the following estimated useful 
lives: 
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Assets Years 

Land 
Land Improvements 20 
Buildings and Improvements: 

Fixed Buildings and Improvements 30 
Temporary Buildings (Portables) 20 

Furniture and Equipment: 
Heavy Equipment 10 
Office Equipment 5-10 
Furniture and Fixtures 5 
Computers, Electronics and Video Equipment 3 

L. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

In the govemment-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fiand financial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the 
applicable govemmental acfivifies, business-type acfivifies, or proprietary fund type statement of 
net assets. Bond premiums and discounts if material, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and 
amortized over the life of the bonds using the effecfive interest method. Bonds payable are 
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs, when material, 
are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt. 

M. COMPENSATED ABSENCES 

All 12-month non-school administrafive employees earn from 10 to 20 days of vacafion leave 
each year, depending on length of service with the School Board. A maximum of five days of 
vacation leave may be carried forward to the next calendar year. Upon termination, eamed 
vacation leave is paid to the employee at the employee's current rate of pay. 

Ail School Board employees earn from 10 to 13 days of sick leave each year, depending upon the 
number of months employed. Sick leave can be accumulated without limitation. Upon 
retirement, a maximum of 25 days of unused sick leave is paid to the employee at the employee's 
current rate of pay, and all unused sick leave is used in the retirernent benefit computafion as 
eamed service. Any employee with a teaching certificate is enfitled, subject to approval by the 
School Board, to one semester of sabbafical leave after three years of confinuous service or two 
semesters of sabbafical leave after six or more years of confinuous service. Leave may be 
granted for medical purposes and professional and cultural improvement. 

The cost of compensated absence privileges (unused sick leave) is recognized as current year 
expenditures in the General Fund when leave is actually taken, or when employees are paid for 
accrued leave upon refirement or death. A liability for these amounts is reported in govemmental 
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funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignafions and 
retirements. 
At June 30, 2009, employees of the School Board have accumulated and vested $16,856,678 of 
compensated absence benefits in salary and salary related payments. 

N. SALES AND USE TAXES 

On June 25, 1966, the voters of St. Tammany Parish approved a one percent sales and use tax 
which, after payment of necessary costs and expenses of collccfing the tax, is dedicated for 
payments of salaries of teachers and other school personnel and for other operafing expenses. On 
September 18, 1976, the voters of St. Tammany Parish approved a one percent sales tax to be 
levied on behalf of the St. Tammany Parish School Board for a period of 15 years. In April 
2004, the voters of the parish designated this tax as permanent. 

The proceeds are dedicated for the purposes of capital improvements, maintenance, and operafing 
expenses of the School Board. The sales and use taxes are collected by the St. Tammany Parish 
Tax Collector for a percentage of the monthly collecfions. 

O. RESTRICTED NET ASSETS - GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the government-wide statement of net assets, net assets arc reported as restricted when 
constraints placed on net asset use are either: 

o Externally imposed by creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or 
laws or rcgulafions of other governments; 

• Imposed by law through consfitutional provisions or enabling legislafion. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the School Board's 
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

P. RESERVES OF FUND BALANCE - FUND FINANCLAL STATEMENTS 

Reserves on the govemmental funds represent portions of fund balances that are not available for 
appropriafions for expenditures or have been legally segregated for future use. Reserved for 
Inventory represents an offset against an asset inventory, because it does not consfitute an 
available, spendable resource of the fund. Reserved for Debt Service represents the amount of 
fund balance available to pay the remaining amounts of outstanding debt. 
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Q. CLAIMS AND JUDGMENTS 

The School Board provides for losses and anficipated expenses resulting fi-om claims and 
judgments including claim adjustment expenditures/expense, salvage and subrogation. Losses 
resulting from claims and judgments are esfimated by utilizing a case by case review of all claims 
in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Codificafion Secfion C50. 

The liability for such losses is recorded in the Intemal Service Funds. Incurred but not reported 
claims as of June 30, 2009 have been considered in determining the accrued UabiUty. 

R. COMPARATIVE DATA AND TOTAL COLUMIMS ON STATEMENTS 

Comparative total data for the prior year has been presented in the basic financial statements in 
order to provide an understanding of changes in the School Board's financial posifion and 
operafions of these funds. However, comparative data (i.e., presentafion of prior year total by 
fund type) has not been presented in each of the statements since their inclusion would make the 
statements unduly complex and difficult to read. Also, certain amounts presented in the prior 
year data have been reclassified in order to be consistent with the current year's presentation. In 
the fund financial statements interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of 
this data, and there are certain reconciling items which are further explained in Statements D and 
F. 

2. AD VALOREM TAXES 

The following is a summary of authorized and levied parish-wide ad valorem taxes for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2009: 

Year of 
Mills Expiration 

Constitufional 3.80 N/A 
Addifional Support 4.84 2013 
Constmcfion, Maintenance and Operafions 3.44 2013 
Improve, Maintain and Operafing 35.47 2013 
Bond and Interest - District No. 12 21.90 2022 

Total millage 69.45 
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3. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS 

Deposits 

For reporting purposes, cash and cash equivalents includes, savings, demand deposits, time 
deposits, and certificates of deposit. Deposits in bank accounts are stated at cost, which 
approximates market. Further, the School Board may invest in time certificates of deposit in 
state banks organized under the laws of Louisiana, nafional banks having their principal of office 
in the State of Louisiana, in savings accounts or shares of savings and loan associations and 
savings banks and in share accounts and share certificate accounts of federally or state chartered 
credit unions. Cash balances of all funds are combined. Interest eamed on deposits is distributed 
to the individual funds based on the invested balances of the participafing funds during the year. 
Interest is recorded when eamed. 

Under state law, the bank balances of these deposits must be secured by federal deposit insurance 
or the pledge of securifies owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged 
securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at all fimes equal or exceed the amount on 
deposit with the fiscal agent. These pledged securifies must be held in the name of the School 
Board or the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank in the form of safekeeping 
receipts held by the state treasury. 

At June 30, 2009, the School Board's carrying value of its deposits excluding fiduciary cash 
balances was $265,948,940 and the bank balance was $276,358,245. Of the bank balance, 
$276,358,245 was covered by federal depository insurance or secured by bank owned securifies 
specifically pledged to the School Board and held in joint custody by an independent custodian 
bank or trust department. Custodial risk is the risk that in the event of bank failure, the 
government's deposits may not be retumed to it. At June 30, 2009, none of the School Board's 
deposits were exposed to custodial credit risk representing uninsured deposits collateralized by a 
pledging bank's trust department, but not in the School Board's name. Restricted cash and cash 
equivalents are reported on the Statement of Net Assets in the amount of $84,124,732 for the 
year ended June 30, 2009. These restricted assets represent certain proceeds of general 
obligafion bonds of the School Board, and their use is limited by applicable bond covenants. 

In addition, at year-end, the individual schools held cash, cash equivalents, and investments of 
$5,209,808 in various accounts. The balances of these accounts are collateralized with either 
FDIC insurance and/or pledged securifies in the School Board's name. Because these accounts 
are not assets of the School Board (Agency Funds), the balances are not reflected in the fund 
financial statement or the government-wide fmancial statements. 
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Investments 

Cash balances of the School Board's funds are pooled and invested to the extent possible in 
authorized investments. Interest eamed on invested cash is distributed to the various fiinds on the 
basis of actual invested cash balances of the participating funds during the year. 

Under state law, the School Board may invest in United States bonds, treasury notes and bills, or 
certificates and time deposits of state banks organized under Louisiana law, and national banks 
having principal offices in Louisiana. In addifion, local governments in Louisiana are authorized 
to invest in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP), a non-profit corporafion formed by 
the State Treasurer and organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana, which operates a local 
government investment pool rated "AAA", bivcstments are stated at cost, which approximates 
fair value, and is the same as the value of the pool shares. 

Investments of $5,151,251 ($4,075,513 in the govemmental funds and $1,075,738 in the 
proprietary funds) at June 30, 2009 include $2,109,143 in certificates of deposits, and $3,042,108 
in LAMP. 

At year-end, the School Board's investment balances were as follows: 

Maturities in Years Reported 
Amounty 

Less than One One to Five Five to Ten Fair Value 

Certificates of Deposits $ 2,109,143 $ - $ - S 2,109,143 
Investments not subject lo 

Categorization: 
Louisiana Asset Management Pool 3,042.108 

Total Investments 

Interest Risk. Interest rate risk is the risk applicable to debt instruments with fair values that are 
sensitive to changes in interest rates. One indicator of the measiu-ement of interest rate risk is the 
dispersion of maturity dates of debt instmments. The above table shows the School Board's 
investments and maturifies in acfively managed accounts at June 30, 2009. The School Board 
does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of 
managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. 

Credit Risk. State law limits investments to the following: 
1. Direct United States Treasury obligafions 
2. Bonds, debentures, notes or other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by 

federal agencies and provided such obligafions are backed by the fiill faith and credit 
of the United States of America 

3. Bonds, debentures, notes or other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by 
U.S. government instrumentalities, which are federally sponsored. 
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4. Direct security repurchase agreements of any federal book entry only securifies. 
5. Time certificates of deposit of any bank domiciled or having a branch office in the 

state of Louisiana, savings accounts, or shares of savings and loan associafions and 
savings banks. 

6. Mutual or trust fund institufions which are registered with the SEC and which have 
underlying investments consisfing solely of and limited to securifies of the United 
States government or its agencies. 

7. Guaranteed investment contracts issued by a bank, financial, insurance company, or 
other entity having one of the highest short-term rating categories of either Standard 
& Poor's Corporafion or Moody's Investors Service. 

8. Investment grade commercial paper of domesfic United States corporations. 
9. LAMP. 

LAMP is administered by LAMP, Inc., a non-profit corporation organized under the laws of the 
State of Louisiana. Only local govemmcnts having contracted to participate in LAMP have an 
investment interest in its pool of assets. While LAMP is not required to be a registered 
investment company under the Investment Company Act of 1940, its investment policies are 
similar to those established by mie 2-a7, which governs registered money market funds. The 
LAMP portfolio includes only securities and other obligations in which local governments in 
Louisiana are authorized to invest. Accordingly, LAMP investments are restricted to securifies 
issued, guaranteed, or backed by the U.S. Treasury, the U.S. Government, or one of its agencies, 
enterprises, or instrumentalifies, as well as repurchase agreements collateralized by those 
securities. The dollar weighted average portfolio maturity of LAMP assets is restricted to not 
more than 90 days, and consists of no securities with a maturity in excess of 397 days. The fair 
value of investments is determined on a weekly basis to monitor any variances between 
amortized costs and market value. For purposes of determining 

participant's shares, investments are valued at amortized cost that approximates fair value. 
LAMP is designed to be highly liquid to give its participants immediate access to their account 
balances. 

The School Board's investment policy complies with state law and does not further limit its 
investment choices. 

Concentration of Credit Risk. The School Board places no limit on the amount the School Board 
may invest in any one issuer. The School Board's investment in certificates of deposit and LAMP 
are 41% and 59%, respectively. 

The School Board's investments are valued at cost, which closely approximates the market value 
(less than 1% difference). 
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4. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS 

As of June 30, 2009, individual balances due from/to other funds are as follows: 

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount 

General 

Intemal Service 

Sales Tax 66 
Sales Tax 77 
Katrina 
2008 Consti-uction 
Non Major Govemmenial 
Internal Service 
Sales Tax 66 
Sales Tax 77 

2008 Construction 
Non Major Govemmental 
Total Govemmental Funds 

General 

Total 

$ 6,358,072 
6.174,438 

196,041 
8,320 

8,349,241 
7,332,243 

71,268 
254,940 

98,239 
1,594 

28,844,396 

247,135 

$ 29,091,531 

The School Board's lending/borrowing activities referred to as ''due to/due firom" are fiirther 
explained in the summary of significant accounfing poHcies (Note 1(H)). The general fund 
loaned money to various funds for the payment of expenditures prior to receipt of funds from 
federal, state and local sources through reimbursement. The 1977 & 1966 Sales Tax Funds each 
had balances owed to the General Fund represenfing May and June collections of sales taxes due 
to the general and other funds and will be paid when received. Various federal and state 
programs, including NCLB had balances due to the general fiind for reasons stated above. 
Federal loans and grants in the Katrina Funds were transferred to offset cost associated with the 
recovery from the Hurricane Katrina Disaster. All other inter-fund lending was for normal 
operafing acfivifies. 
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For the year ended June 30, 2009, individual transfers are as follows: 

Nonmajor 
Transfer Out (Fund): General Govemmental Total 

^General 
*1966 Sales Tax 
*1977 Sales Tax 
*Kalrina 

*2008 Construcfion 
Nonmajor Govemmental 

$ 
40,277,483 
38,216,106 

196,041 
161,285 

1,074,421 

$ 79,925,336 

$ 

$ 

5,121,246 
1.082,687 
3,144,238 

-
-

897,334 

10.245,505 
•:;.rmrrvr?rr^r.: '..•'•:;••:•: 

S 5,121,246 
41,360,170 
41,360,344 

196,041 

161,285 

1,971,755 

S 90,170,841 

*Indicates major fund 

The School Board transfers funds between funds as part of the normal operafing of fund activit>' 
throughout the year to account for pa>Tnent of expenditures and receipt of revenues. The 1966 & 
1977 Sales Tax Funds transfer monthly to the general fund and other funds the balances of sales 
tax collections. The general fund transfers MFP monies to the School Food Service Fund and 
general revenues to the capital project funds and to various other funds tliroughout the year as the 
budget prescribes. All other transfers were for other normal operafing activifies. 
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5. PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT 

A summary of changes in capital 

Governmental activities: 
Non depreciable assets; 

Land 
Construction in progress 

Depreciable assets: 
Land improvements 
Buildings and improvements 
Furniture and equipment 

Tolal 
Less accumulated depreciation: 

Land improvements 
Buildings and improvements 
Furniture and equipment 

Total accumulated depreciation 
Govemmental acfivities 

Capital assets, net 

assets are as follows: 

Restated 
Balance 

July 1,2008 

$ 10,475,879 
77.668,416 

9,392.090 
369,265,503 

12,854,187 
479,656,075 

2.730,103 
187,963,205 
10,588,188 

201,281,496 

$ 278,374,579 

Additions 

S 2,542,579 
84,195,187 

1,487,142 
83,868,905 
4,797,603 

176,891,416 

459,194 
13,100.721 
1,541,005 

15,100,920 

$ 161,790,496 

Deletions 

$ 
84,880,367 

-
-
-

84,880,367 

-
-
-
-

$ 84,880,367 

Balance 
June 30 2009 

$ 13,018,458 
76,983,236 

10,879,232 
453.134,408 

17,651.790 
571,667,124 

3,189,297 
201,063,926 

12.129,193 
216,382,416 

$ 355,284,708 

Depreciafion expense was charged to govemmental activifies 
Regular programs 
Special programs 
Vocafional education programs 
Other instructional programs 
Special programs 

Adult/continuing education programs 
Pupil support 
Instrucfional staff support 
General administrafion 
School administrafion 
Business administrafion 
Operafion and maintenance of plant 
Pupil transportafion 
Central services 
Food services 

Community service programs 
Total depreciation expense 

as foil ows: 
5,262.170 
2,741,941 

214,133 
549,011 
414,791 

14.993 
579.198 
569,391 
292,387 
816.827 

96,268 
1,264.342 
1,165.870 

305,459 
760,993 

53.146 
$ 15.100.920 
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Constmction in progress at June 30, 2009 is composed of the following: 

Project Location 

Abita Springs Elementary $ 
Abney Elementary 
Advance Studies High 
Alton Elementary 
Bayou Lacombe 
Boyet Junior High 

Brakefield Renovations 

Brooks/ Pathway 
Carolyn Park 
Creekside Junior High 

Fif^h Ward 
Folsom Junior High 
Fontainebleau Junior High 
Harrison 

Henry Mayfield Elementary 
Lakeshore High 
Lancaster 
Lee Road Junior High 
Mandeviile High 

Marigny Elementary 
New Mandeviile High/Athletic Facilities 
Northshore High 
Pineview Middle 
Pitcher Junior High 
Portable Project 
Portable Project plumbing 
Riverside Elementary 

Salmen High 
Slidell High 
Whispering Forest 
Woodlake Elementary 

Total $" 

Project 

Authorization 
9,797,300 
5,525,300 

25,488,750 
5,649,122 
4,512,900 
2,774,625 

-

173,203 
2,593,652 

2,508,889 
11,483,200 
6,160,457 
5,673,433 
7,961,250 
8,625,000 

300,000 
24,727,500 

2,966,889 
5,153,400 

18,521,622 

11.109,000 
256,924 

-

14,225,750 
-
-

37,500 
49,590,000 

4,758,902 
3,727,750 
3,192,608 

237,494,926 $ 

Incurred as of 
June 30,2009 

299,470 $ 

474.159 
138,410 
259,203 
136,716 
302,811 

6.275 
4,884,136 

318,778 

1,557,229 
324,965 
283,394 
448.130 

7,253 
1,525,527 

135,115 
609,395 
386,079 
369.452 

19,553,373 
9,448,914 

225,677 
1,550 

401,749 
976,566 
279,859 
220,716 

31,472,318 

1,803,262 
109,439 
23.316 

76,983,236 $ 

Committed 

9,497,830 
5,051,141 

25.350,340 
5,389,919 
4,376,184 
2,471,814 

(6,275) 

(4,710,933) 
2,274,874 

951,660 

11,158,235 
5,877,063 
5,225,303 
7,953,997 
7,099,473 

164,885 
24,118,105 

2.580,810 

4,783,948 
(1,031,751) 
1.660,086 

31,247 
(U550) 

13.824,001 
(976,566) 
(279,859) 
(183,216) 

18.117.682 

2,955,640 
3,618,311 
3,169,292 

160,511,690 
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The School Board changed its capitalization policy effective July 1. 2008 from SI,000 to $5,000. 
The School Board also reclassified items between different categories of assets. In addition, during 
this process, the School Board determined that depreciafion on certain assets did not agree with 
useful lives and an adjustment was made to reflect this change. The net effect of these changes was 
$8,882,782 which is reflected as a restatement to begimiing net assets as of July 1, 2008. 

6. RISK MANAGEMENT 

Workers' Compensation 
The School Board has had a risk management program for workers' compensafion since 1988. 
Premiums are paid into the Workers' Compensafion Intemal Service Fund by all fiinds from 
which salaries are paid and are available to pay claims, claim reserves, and administrafive costs 
of the program. During fiscal year 2009, a total of $2,965,639 was incurred in benefits and 
administrafive costs. An excess coverage insurance policy covers individual claims in excess of 
$250,000. As of June 30, 2009, $1,885,789 is due to the School Board fi-om its insurance 
provider. An amount for self-insurance losses of $4,023,901 has been accrued as a liability based 
upon an actuary's esfimate as of June 30, 2009. Interfund premiums are based primarily upon the 
individual fiinds' claims experience and are reported as expenditures in the individual funds. 

Risk Mana.gement 
In addifion, the School Board is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage 
to and destmcfion of assets; and natural disasters. During fiscal year 1990, the School Board 
established a Risk Management Fund (an intemal service fund) to account for and finance its 
uninsured risk of loss. Under this program, the Risk Management Fund provides coverage up to 
a maximum of $250,000 for each general liability claim and $5,000,000 for each property 
damage claim. The School Board purchases commercial insurance for claims in excess of 
coverage provided by the Fund. In 2009, the School Board paid claims in excess of coverage of 
$576,757 to claimants in excess of the $250,000 maximum. The General Fund makes payments 
to the Risk Management Fund based on estimates of the amounts needed to pay claims and to 
accumulate fiinds for future catastrophic losses. At June 30, 2009, $2,359,052 of fund equity is 
designated for future catastrophic losses and claims liabilities are $578,531. 

Health/Life 
In 2007, the School Board became self-insured for health care benefits offered to its employees 
and retirees. The plan is managed by a third-party administrator and excess cost coverage is 
purchased by the School Board to limit its liability. 

Changes in the claims liability amount in previous fiscal years and balances expected to be paid 
in the next year are as follows: 
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The School Board continues to cany commercial insurance for all other risks of loss, including 
employee health and accident insurance. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not 
exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

Workers Compensation 
2007-08 
2008-09 

Risk-Management 
2007-08 
2008-09 

Health/Life Insurance 
2007-08 
2008-09 

Balance 

Beginning of 

Year 

$ 

$ 

$ 

4,765,630 
4,391,183 

1,584.161 

1.365.050 

7,889.886 
9,757,946 

S 

$ 

$ 

Claims and 
Changes in 

Estimates 

3,235,853 
2,304.491 

258.097 
721.651 

59,357,567 
64,197,997 

S 

$ 

$ 

Payments 
and Claims 

3,610,300 
2,671.733 

477,208 
1,508,170 

57,489,507 
63,708,710 

S 

s 

s 

Balance 
End of 

Year 

4,391,183 
4,023,941 

1,365.050 
578,531 

9,757,946 
10,247,233 

7. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT 

The following is a summary of the long-term liabilities transacfions for the year ended June 30, 
2009: 

Balance 
2008 

Balance Due Within 
Addifions Deductions 2009 One Year 

General Obligation Bonds $ 163,185,000 $ 86,330,000 $ 12,595,000 $ 236,920,000 $ 18,095.000 
Community Disaster Loan 67,843,971 - - 67,843.971 
Compensated Absences 15.828.660 4,216,780 3,188.762 16,856,678 3,188,762 

Total Long-Temi Liabiliti $ 246.857,631 $ 90,546,780 $ 15,783,762 $ 321,620,649 S 21,283.762 

In 2005 and 2006. the School Board borrowed $51,857,990 and $15,985,981. respecfively, from 
the federal government through the Community Disaster Loan Program resulfing in total 
Community Disaster Loans of $67,843,971. During 2009, no additional funds were received. 
The interest rate on these loans is fixed and ranges from 2.67% to 3.12%. Balloon payments of 
principle and interest are due on January 8, 2011, June 27, 2011 and August 27, 2011. No other 
payments are required unfil 2011 and the Board has the option of requesting an extension of five 
years. As of June 30, 2009, this loan has accrued interest of $5,917,453 leaving a total due of 
$73,761,424. 
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In July 2008, the School Board was authorized to issue $67,000,000 in general obligafion bonds 
with a final maturity date of March 1, 2028. These bonds are the first installment issue of the 
total $167,000,000 approved by the cifizens of St. Tammany Parish via the elecfion on March 8, 
2008. The bond proceeds will be used to finance $15,000,000 in technology, $2,100,000 in 
security cameras, and $149,900,000 in capital improvements for new construction and 
improvements to existing facilifies. In June 2008. the School Board received a good faith deposit 
for this bond issue in the amount of $670,000 which was included in bonds payable in the 
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2008. The remaining bond proceeds of 
$66,330,000 were received in July 2008. 

In May 2008, the School Board was authorized to issue $20,000,000 in general obligafion bonds 
with a final maturity date of March I, 2029. These bonds are the second installment issue of the 
total $167,000,000 issue discussed in the preceding paragraph. The bond proceeds were received 
in May 2009. 
A schedule of the individual issues outstanding as of June 30, 2009 is as follows: 

neral Obligafion 
2003 $ 
1998B 
2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2002 
2004 
2005 
2008 
2009 

Total $ 

Original 
Issue 

Bonds: 
5.440,000 

14,480,000 
9,185,000 

17,645,000 
35,690,000 
25,000,000 
47.410,000 
30,000,000 
30,000,000 
67,000.000 
20,000,000 

301,850,000 

Interest 
Rate 

2.1-2.1% 
4.5-5.0% 
2.2-3.6% 
2.0-5.0% 
3.0-4.25% 

4.0-4.375% 
3.5-5.0% 
3.75-5.0% 
3.25-5.0% 
4.75-5.0% 
3.5-5.0% 

Final 
Payment 

Due 

2010 
2011 
2013 
2016 
2018 
2026 
2022 
2024 
2025 
2028 
2029 

Interest 
to 

Maturity 

$ 18,375 
148.000 
377.998 

2,367.110 
6,919,625 
8,146,875 
6,668,836 

10.513,339 
10.083,975 
31.286,634 

7,942.250 
$ 84,473,017 

Principal 
Outstanding 

$ 875,000 
1.955,000 
4.265.000 

12.780,000 
32,320,000 
21.250,000 
24,805,000 
25,445.000 
26,225.000 
67,000,000 
20.000,000 

S 236,920,000 

All principal and interest requirements are funded in accordance with Louisiana law by the 
annual ad valorem tax levy on taxable property within the parish. At June 30, 2009, the School 
Board has accumulated $19,619,889 in the general obligafion debt service fiinds for future debt 
service requirements. 
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The general obligafion bonds are due as follows: 

Year Ending 

June 30, 

2010 $ 

2011 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2015-2019 

2020-2024 

2025-2029 

$ 

Principal Bond 

Payments 

18,095,000 $ 

17,950,000 

17,680,000 

17.980,000 

15,085,000 

74,110,000 

49,185,000 

26,835,000 

236.920,000 $ 

Interest 
Payments 

10.446,286 $ 

9,432.805 

8,684,933 

7,951,242 

7,216,616 

25,869,720 

12.140,565 

2.730.850 

84,473,017 S 

Total 

28,541,286 

27,382,805 

26,364,933 

25,931,242 

22.301,616 

99.979,720 

61,325,565 

29.565,850 

321,393,017 

In accordance with Louisiana Revised Statute 39:562, the School Board is legally restricted from 
incurring long-term bonded debt funded solely by ad valorem taxes in excess of 35 percent of the 
assessed value of taxable property. At June 30, 2009, the statutory limit is $686,101,412 and the 
legal debt margin is $468,801,301. Outstanding bonded debt payable from ad valorem taxes at 
June 30. 2009 totaled $236,920,000. 

8. DEFEASED DEBT 

The School Board defeased the following General Obligation Bonds and Sales Tax Bonds: An 
irrevocable trust fund was created for each defeasance. New debt was issued and the proceeds 
were used to purchase U.S. Govemment Securifies that were placed in the tmst funds. The 
investments and fixed earnings from the investments are sufficient to fully service the defeased 
debt until the debt is called or matures. For financial reporting purposes, the debt is considered 
defeased and therefore removed as a liability from the School Board. As of June 30, 2009 the 
following outstanding bonds are considered defeased: 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

General Obligation Bonds: 
7,415,000 
5,000.000 

13.195,000 
25,000,000 
34,580.000 
47.410.000 

1997 Series 3 
1992 Series 
1993 Series 
1996 Series 

1998A Series 
2002 Series 

J 

Outstanding 

> 3,395,000 
2,315,000 
6.995.000 

16,380,000 
34,590,000 

9.700,000 

; 73.375.000 

Defeasance 

July 16.2006 
April 1,2002 

March 1.2003 
April 1,2004 

June I. 2005 
April 1,2007 

Maturity Date 

June 1,2010 
April 1.2012 

March 1.2013 
March 1,2016 
March 1.2018 

October 1.2019 
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9. TAX ARBITRAGE REBATE 

Under the Tax Refomi Act of 1986, interest eamed on the debt proceeds in excess of interest 
expense prior to the disbursement of the proceeds must be rebated to the Internal Revenue 
Service (IRS). For fiscal year 2009, no arbitrage was due to the IRS. 

10. RETIREMENT PLANS 

Substantially all employees of the School Board are members of two statewide retirement 
systems. In general, professional employees (such as teachers and principals) and lunchroom 
workers are members of the Teachers' Refirement System of Louisiana; other employees, such as 
custodial personnel and bus drivers are members of the Louisiana School Employees' Refirement 
System. These systems are cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans 
administered by separate boards of trustees. Fringe benefits and salaries for the School Board's 
employees were recognized as revenues and expenditures/expenses during the year ended June 
30, 2009. Pertinent information, as required by the Govemmental Accounfing Standards Board 
Statement No. 27, relative to each plan follows: 

A. Teachers' Refirement System of Louisiana (TRS) 

Plan Description: The School Board participates in two membership plans of the TRS, the 
Regular Plan and Plan A. The TRS provides retirement benefits as well as disability and 
survivor benefits. Ten years of service credit is required to become vested for refirement benefits 
and five years to become vested for disability and survivor benefits. Benefits are established and 
amended by state statute. The TRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes 
financial statements and required supplementary information of the TRS. That report may be 
obtained by wrifing to the Teachers' Refirement System of Louisiana, Post Office Box 94123, 
Baton Rouge. Louisiana 70804-9123. or by calling (225) 925-6446. 

Funding Policy: Plan members are required to contribute 8.0 percent and 9.1 percent of their 
annual covered salary for the Regular Plan and Plan A, respecfively. The School Board is 
required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The current rate is 15.5 percent of armual 
covered payroll for both membership plans. Member contributions and employer contributions 
for the TRS are established by state law and rates are established by the Public Refirement 
Systems' Actuarial Committee. The School Board's employer contribution to the TRS, as 
provided by state law, is funded by the State of Louisiana through annual appropriations, by 
deducfions from local ad valorem taxes, and by remittances from the School Board. 

The School Board's contribufions to the TRS for the years ended June 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007, 
were $32,023,255. $31,134,501, and $27,161,304, respecfively, equal to the required 
contributions for each year. 
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B. Louisiana School Employees' Retirement System (LSERS) 

Plan Descripfion: The LSERS provides retirement benefits as well as disability and survivor 
benefits. Ten years of service credit is required to become vested for retirement benefits and five 
years to become vested for disability and survivor benefits. Benefits are established and 
amended by state statute. The LSERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes 
financial statements and required supplementary informafion for the LSERS. That report may be 
obtained by wrifing to the Louisiana School Employees' Retirement System, Post Office Box 
44516, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804, or by calling (225) 925-6484. 

Funding Policy; For fiscal years 2009, 2008, and 2007, the employees' share and School Board's 
share was 25.6, 25.6, and 19.6, respectively. Member contribufions and employer contribufions 
for the LSERS are established by state law and rates are established by the Public Refirement 
Systems' Actuarial Committee. The Actuary has determined what the School Board should 
contribute on behalf of the membership plan. The School Board's employer contribufions of 
$3,890,951 for 2009, $3,525,094 for 2008, and $2,851,987 for 2007 for the LSERS are funded by 
the State of Louisiana through annual appropriafions and by remittances from the School Board. 
The School Board's contribufions to LSERS were equal to the required contributions for each 
year. 

11. CHANGES IN AGENCY DEPOSITS DUE OTHERS 

A summary of changes in the School Acfivity Agency Fund's deposits due others are as follows: 

Balance al Beginning of Year $ 5.637,199 
Additions 14,722,614 
Deductions (15,190.204) 
Balance at End of Year $ 5.169,609 

12. LITIGATION AND CLAIMS 

At June 30, 2009, the School Board was a defendant in lawsuits principally arising from the 
normal course of operafions. The School Board's legal counsel has reviewed the School Board's 
claims and lawsuits, which are primarily personal injury claims, in order to evaluate the 
likelihood of an unfavorable outcome to the School Board and to arrive at an esfimate, if any, of 
the amount or range of potential loss to the School Board. As a result of the review, the various 
claims and lawsuits have been categorized into "probable," "reasonably possible," or "remote." as 
defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Amounts of claims classified as 
"probable" have been accrued in the claims liability and the liability for self-insurance losses, as 
explained in Note 7. It is the opinion of the School Board, after conferring with legal counsel, 
that the liability, if any, which might arise fi-om these lawsuits except for amounts accrued in the 
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financial statements would not have a material adverse effect on the School Board's financial 
posifion. 

The School Board participates in a number of federal financial assistance programs. Although 
the grant programs have been audited in accordance with the Single Audit Act through June 30, 
2009, these programs are sfill subject to financial and compliance audits and resolufion of 
previously idenfified quesfioned costs. The amount, if any, of expenditures that may be 
disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this fime, although the School Board 
expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 

13. EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS 

For those funds for which a budget-to actual comparison was made that are not major fiinds, 
actual expenditures exceeded budgeted expenditures on a line item basis as follows: 

NCLB Special Revenue Fund 
Support services - Central services 

IDEA Special Revenue Fund 
Instrucfion - Other instructional 
Instrucfion- Special programs 

TANF Special Revenue Fund 
Support services - General admin 

Vocafional Education Special Revenue Fund 
Support services - Guidance services 

Miscellaneous Programs Special Revenue Funds 
Instrucfion - Special Ed 
Support services - General admin 

8G Special Revenue Fund 
Instrucfion - Regular Ed 

School Food Service Special Revenue Fund 
Food Service 

1998 Construcfion Capital Projects Fund 
Transfers out 

Property Acquisifion Capital Project Fund 
Facilities, acquisifion, and construcfion 

2004 Construcfion Capital Project Fund 
Equipment 
Building Improvements 
Architects and Engineers 

Expenditures 
Budget 

$ 52,883 

76,765 
-

-

79,194 

235,272 
400 

492,668 

15,697.961 

871,725 

2,500,000 

250,000 
-

1,500,000 

Actual 

$ 55,257 

77,524 
194 

37 

84.898 

254,870 
35,000 

• 547.099 

16.328,105 

897,334 

2,645,520 

892,872 
2,920,975 
2,145,912 

Unfavorable 
Variance 

$2,374 

759 
194 

37 

5,704 

19,598 
34,600 

54,431 

630,144 

25,609 

145,520 

642,872 
2,920,975 

645,912 



ST. TAMMANV PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2009 

-oofmg Construction Capital Project Fund 
Architects and Engineers 

ishwide Construcfion Capital Project Fund 
Land and Building purchases 
Construction contracts 
Equipment 
Architects and Engineers 
Legal Services 

Expenditures 
Budget 

$ 50,000 

-
900,000 
350,000 
200,000 

-

Actual 

$ 105,015 

2,400 
2,021,098 
1,516,696 

251,147 
15,595 

Unfavorable 
Variance 

$55,015 

2,400 
1,121,098 
1,166,696 

51,147 
15,595 

14. NET ASSETS DEFICIT IN INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

The Intemal Service Funds had a deficit in net assets for the year ended June 30, 2009 in the 
amount of $9,300,500. This total deficit in net assets was caused by deficit in net assets in the 
Health and Life Insurance Fund in the amount of 517,216,656. The School Board's rates for its 
self insured employee health insurance program are calculated to enable the fund to be 
adequately funded and remain solvent. Tlie rates in effect as of June 30, 2009 were determined 
by our third party administrator based upon the exisfing level of participafion and claim payment 
history prior to and up to date the self insurance program was implemented in January 2007. 

A committee of administrators, employees, and representatives from the third party administrator 
meet quarterly and review the premiums collected and the claims paid to ensure sufficient 
funding as well as other administrafive tasks. The committee has completed its analysis of the 
year ended June 30, 2009 and has made a recommendation to establish new rates and other 
benefit changes to the School Board's health insurance program. These changes in rates will be 
effective as of July 1, 2009. The recommendafion of the committee are expected to establish 
rates and other changes that will be sufficient to eliminate the yearly deficit in the Health and 
Life Insurance Fund based upon the analysis and recommendation of the third party 
administrator. Any deficit not eliminated at June 30, 2010 will be funded by a permanent transfer 
fi-om the General Fund. Any cash shortfall in this fund is expected to be financed by the General 
Fund unfil the new rates are implemented and benefit changes eliminate the deficit. 

15. HURRICANE KATRINA 

On August 29, 2005, Hurricane Katrina devastated the Gulf Coast area. The damage caused by 
the hurricane significanfiy damaged much of the Parish's taxable property particularly in the 
southeastern quadrant. The School Board also received damage in excess of $110 million to its 
facilifies. 
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The School Board continues to work with FEMA to recover funds needed to repair and rebuild 
its damaged facilifies. As of June 30, 2009, the School Board had spent in excess of $88 million 
on repair costs. Most of the repairs have been completed including the construcfion of a 
temporary campus for the Salmen High School. The major projects remaining are the rebuilding 
of the Salmen Campus and the rebuilding of the Brooks Curriculum Center. There are sufficient 
funds available to cover these losses. 

16. GASB STATEMENT NO. 45 "ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING BY 
EMPLOYERS FOR POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSION" 

Plan Descripfion: The St. Tammany Parish School Board participates in a self insured health 
insurance administered by Blue Cross Blue Shield. The Board sponsors two health and life 
insurance plans. This plan is a single employer post employment benefit plan. 

Tlie "Medicare Advantage" plan has been assumed to apply to those employees after Medicare 
eligibility for purposes of this valuafion. Medical benefits are provided to employees upon actual 
refirement. Employees are covered by the Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana (TRSL), 
whose refirement eligibility (D.R.O.P. entry) provisions as follows: 30 years of service at any 
age; age 55 and 25 years of service; or, age 65 and 20 years of service. The remainder of 
employees are covered by the Louisiana School Employees' Retirement System (LSER) whose 
refirement eligibility (D.R.O.P entry) provisions are the same as TRSL except that they are also 
eligible to refire at age 60 and 10 years of service instead of age 65 and 20 years of service. 

Basic and supplemental life insurance coverage is provided to retirees according to three 
schedules (based on age brackets) and also based on the annual eamings at time of retirement. 
The three age brackets are below age 65, age 65 through age 69, and greater than or equal to age 
70. Basic life amounts are $5,000, $4,000 and $3,000, respectively, for the three age brackets and 
the salary related schedules have maximum amounts of basic plus supplemental coverage of 
$50,000, $38,000, and $25,000, respectively. AD&D coverage ceases at age 70. 

The current rate schedule is "blended" by age and the blended rate is $.30 per $1,000 of 
insurance. Since GASB 45 requires the use of "unblended" rates, we have used the 95GAR 
mortality table described above to unblend the rates so as to reproduce the same composite 
blended rate overall as the rate structure to calculate the actuarial valuafion results for life 
insurance. All of the assumptions used for the valuation of the medical benefits have been used 
except for the trend assumption; zero trend was used for life insurance. 

Contribution Rates; Employees do not contribute to their post employment benefits costs until 
they become retirees and begin receiving those benefits. The plan provisions and contribufion 
rates are contained in the official plan documents. 
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Fund Policy: Unfil Fiscal Year Ending June 30. 2008, the St. Tammany Parish School Board 
recognized the cost of providing post-employment medical and life benefits (the St. Tammany 
Parish School Board's portion of the retiree medical and fife benefit premiums) as an expense 
when the benefit premiums were due and thus financed the cost of the post-employment benefits 
on a pay-as-you-go basis. Effecfive with the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2008, the St. 
Tammany Parish School Board implemented Govemment Accounting Standards Board 
Statement Number 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Post employment 
Benefits Other than Pensions (GASB 45). The fiinding policy is not to fund the ARC except to 
the extent of the current year's retiree funding costs. 

In Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2009. the St. Tammany Parish School Board's portion of health 
care funding cost for refired employees totaled $13,863,838 and life totaled $76,527. These 
amounts were applied toward the Net OPEB Benefit Obligafion as shown in the table on the 
following page. 

Annual Required Contribufion; St. Tammany Parish School Board's Annual Required 
Contribution (ARC) is an amount actuarially determined in accordance with GASB 45. The 
Annual Required Contribution (ARC) is the sum of the Normal Cost plus the contribufion to 
amortize the Actuarial Accmed Liabihty (AAL). A level dollar, closed amortizafion period of 30 
years (the maximum amortizafion period allowed by GASB 43/45) has been used for the post-
employment benefits. The total ARC for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2008 is $23,398,280 for 
medical, and $674,761 for life, as set forth below: 

Normal Cost 
30-Year UAL Amoritization Amount 
Annual Required Contribution (ARC) 

Medical 

7.696,015 $ 
15,702.265 
23.398,280 $ 

Life 

167.972 
506.789 
674,761 
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Net Post-employment Benefit Obligation (Asset): The table below shows St. Tammany Parish 
School Board's Net Other Post-employment Benefit (OPEB) Obligafion (Asset) for fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2009: 

Medical Life 

Beginning Net OPED Obligafion (Asset) 7/1/2008 

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) 
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation (Asset) 
ARC Adjustment 
OPEB Cost 
Contribution 
Current Year Retiree Premium 
Change in Net OPEB Obligation 

Ending Net OPEB Obligafion (AsseO 6/30/2009 

$ 20.605,169 % 

23.398,280 

824,207 
(1.191,601) 

23,030,886 

(13,863,838) 
9,167,048 

S 29.772,217 3 
. . .LL.: •••• — ; - i = s 

640,259 

674,761 

25,610 

(37,026) 

663,345 

(76,528) 
586,817 

; 1.227,076 

The total OPEB obligation recorded in the government-wide financial statements was 
$30,999,294. 

The following table shows St. Tammany Parish School Board's annual post employment benefits 
(PEB) cost, percentage of the cost contributed, and the net unfunded post employment benefits 
(PEB) liability (asset): 

Medical 
Life 

Medical 
Life 

Post 
Employment 

Benefit 

Medical 
Life 

Medical 
Life 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 

June 30. 2008 
June 30, 2008 

June 30, 2009 
June 30, 2009 

$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

Annual 
OPEB 
Costs 

33,749,221 
712,684 

23,030.886 
663,345 

Percentage 
of Annual 

Cost Contributed 

35.20% 
162.45% 

60.20% 
11.54% 

$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

Net PEB 
Liability 
(Asset) 

20.605,169 
640.259 

29.772,217 
1.227.077 

Funded Status and Funding Progress; In the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009, St. Tammany 
Parish School Board made no contributions to its post employment benefits plan. The plan was 
not fijnded at all, has no assets, and hence has a funded rafio of zero. As of July 1, 2009, the 
most recent actuarial valuation, the Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) was $271,523,258 
(medical) and $8,764,089 (life), which is defined as that portion, as determined by a particular 
actuarial cost method (St. Tammany Parish School Board uses the Unit Credit Cost Method), of 
the actuarial present value of post employment plan benefits and expenses which is not provided 
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by normal cost. Since the plan was not funded in fiscal year 2009, the entire actuarial accrued 
liability of $71,523,258 (medical) and $8,764,089 (life) was unfunded (Unftinded Actuarial 
Accrued Liability or UAAL). The covered payroll of acfive plan members was approximately 
$247,671,511. The UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll for medical and life is 109.63% 
and 3.54% respectively. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumpfions; Actuarial valuafions involve csfimates of the value of 
reported amounts and assumpfions about the probability of events far into the future. The 
actuarial valuafion for post employment benefits includes esfimates and assumptions regarding 
(1) tumover rate; (2) retirement rate; (3) health care cost trend rate; (4) mortality rate; (5) 
discount rate (investment return assumpfion); and (6) the period to which the costs apply (past, 
current, or future years of service by employees). Actuarially determined amounts are subject to 
continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made 
about the future. 

The actuarial calculations are based on the types of benefits provided under the terms of the 
substantive plan (the plan as understood by St. Tammany Parish School Board and its employee 
plan members) at the fime of the valuafion and on the pattern of sharing costs between St. 
Tammany Parish School Board and its plan members to that point. The projecfion of benefits for 
fmancial reporting purposes does not explicitly incorporate the potential effects of legal or 
contracmal funding limitafions on the pattern of cost sharing between St. Tammany Parish 
School Board and plan members in the future. Consistent with the long-term perspective of 
actuarial calculations, the actuarial methods and assumpfions used include techniques that are 
designed to reduce short-term volafility in actuarial liabilifies and the actuarial value of assets. 

Actuarial Cost Method: The ARC is determined using the Unit Credit Cost Method. The 
employer portion of the cost for retiree medical care in each future year is determined by 
projecfing the current cost levels using the healthcare cost trend rate and discounting this 
projected amount to the valuation date using the other described pertinent acfiiarial assumpfions, 
including the investment return assumpfion (discount rate), mortality, and tumover. 

Actuarial Value of Plan Assets: There are no assets. It is anticipated that in future valuafions a 
smoothed market value consistent with Actuarial Standards Board ASOP 6. as provided in 
paragraph number 125 of GASB Statement 45. 

Tumover Rate: An age-related tumover scale based on actual experience as described by 
administrative staff has been used. The rates, when applied to the active employee census, 
produce an annual tumover of approximately 8%. 
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The rates for each age are below: 

Age 
18-25 
26-40 
41 -54 
55+ 

Percent Tumover 
20.00% 
12.00% 
8.00% 
6.00% 

Post employment Benefit Plan Eligibility Requirements: It is assumed that entitlement to benefits 
will commence six years after earliest eligibility to enter the D.R.O.P. as described on the first 
page of this letter under the heading "Plan Descripfion". This consists of a three year D.R.O.P. 
period plus an additional three year delay. Medical benefits are provided to employees upon 
actual retirement. Employees are covered by the Louisiana School Employees' Retirement 
System have the same retirement eligibility except for age 60 and 10 years of service instead of 
age 65 and 20 years of service. Enfitlement to benefits continues through Medicare to death. 

Investment Return Assumption (Discount Rate): GASB Statement 45 states that the investment 
return assumpfion should be the esfimated long-term investment yield on the investments that are 
expected to be used to finance the payment of benefits (that is, for a plan which is funded). Based 
on the assumpfion that the ARC will not be funded, a 4% annual investment return has been used 
in this valuafion. This is a conservafive esfimate of the expected long term return of a balanced 
and conservative investment portfolio under professional management. 

Health Care Cost Trend Rate: The expected rate of increase in medical cost is based on 
projections performed by the Office of the Actuary at the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid 
Services as published in Nafional Health Care Expenditures Projecfions: 2003 to 2013, Table 3: 
National Health Expenditures, Aggregate and per Capita Amounts, Percent Distribufion and 
Average Annual Percent Change by Source of Funds: Selected Calendar Years 1990-2013, 
released in January, 2004 by the Health Care Financing Administrafion (www.cms.hhs.gov). 
"State and Local" rates for 2008 through 2013 from this report were used, with rates beyond 2013 
graduated down to an ulfimate armual rate of 5.0% for 2016 and later. 

Zero trend has been assumed for valuing life insurance. 

Mortality Rate: The 1994 Group Annuity Reserving (94GAR) table, projected to 2002, based on 
a fixed blend of 50% of the unloaded male mortality rate and 50% of the unloaded female 
mortality rates, was used. This is the mortality table which the Intemal Revenue Service requires 
to be used in determining the value of accmed benefits in defined benefit pension plans. Since 
GASB 45 requires the use of "unblended" rates, we have used the 94GAR mortality table 
described above to "unblend" the rates so as to reproduce the composite blended rate overall as 
the rate structure to calculate the actuarial valuafion results for life insurance. 
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Method of Determining Value of Benefits: The "value of benefits" has been assumed to be the 
portion of the premium after retirement date expected to be paid by the employer for each retiree 
and has been used as the basis for calculating the actuarial present value of OPEB benefits to be 
paid. The rates provided are "unblended" rates for acfive and retired as required by GASB 45 for 
valuafion purposes. It has been assumed that 50% of refirees elect the HMO Medicare Advantage 
program and 50% elect the PFFS Medicare Advantage program upon Medicare eligibility. 

17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through the date that the financial statements were 
available to be issued, January 27, 2010, and detemiined that there were no subsequent events 
requiring disclosure except for as follows: 

As of January 27, 2010, the School Board is in the process of finalizing authorizafion for a 
$25,000,000 in general obligafion bonds with a final maturity date of March I, 2030. These 
bonds are the third installment issue of the total $167,000,000 issue disclosed in Note 7. 
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Staicment 1-1 

ST. TAMMANV PARISH .SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

General Fund 

BudR«l Comparison Schedule 

For the Vcar Ended June 30, 2009 

Budgeiary Fund Balance, 

Bcumningof Year 

Biid^;eit:tl Amounis 

OiiKinal Aciual Amouni.s 

Vanance with 

Tina I IJudgci 

54.707.907 % 55,784.162 $ 55.784.162 S 

Resources (Inflows) 

Local Sources: 

Ad valorem taxes 

Tuition: 

Summer school 

Driver education 

Hamings on inveslnicnli 

Medical services 

Other 

rolal Resources From Local Sources 

Siaie Sources' 

I-qua I iza lion 

Contributions lo 

Teachers' Retirement 

Revenue sharing 

Professional Improvement Projjram 

Special education 

Adult education 

Non-pufah'c students 

Miscellaneous 

Total Resources From Stale Sources 

Federal Sources: 

ROTC 

Adull education 

Total Resources From Federal Sources 

Tolal Resources 

61.014.096 

180.0UD 

55.000 

2,100.000 

602,000 

1.170.942 

65.122,038 

178,679,681 

89.815 

2,175,000 

571.503 

190,149 

151.630 

204.087 

2,822,086 

184,883,951 

442.870 

224,897 

667.767 

250.673.756 

66,076.603 

180.000 

55.000 

1.700,000 

1.187.000 

1,197.771 

70,396,374 

180,122,590 

89.815 

2,086,894 

571,503 

197,372 

136.832 

198,766 

2,661,602 

186.065.374 

385.025 

202.753 

587,778 

257,049.526 

67.593.678 

113.604 

46,700 

666J99 

1,895.036 

1.086,831 

71.402,248 

I78.U3.193 

48.495 

1.971.376 

369,618 

197,372 

136.832 

181.471 

^,658.831 

185,697.188 

463.118 

202,310 

665.428 

257,764.864 

1.517,075 

(66.396) 

(8,300) 

(1,033,601) 

708,036 

[110.940) 

1.005,874 

(l,989J97) 

(41,320) 

(115.518) 

(201.885) 

-
-

(17,295} 

1,997,229 

(368,186) 

78.093 

(443) 

77,650 

715,338 

Other Financing Sources 

Transfers in: 

1966 Sales Tax Fund 

1977 Sales Tax Fund 

Katrina Funds 

School Food Seivicc Fund 

Capital Project Funds 

Indirect costs 

Total Giber Financmg Sources 

Amounis Available for Appropriatiotis 

42.377.194 

40.377,045 

-
228.270 

975,000 

83,957,509 

389,339.172 

38.799,317 

36,737.765 

228.270 

-
950,000 

76,715.352 

389,549.040 

40.277,483 

38,216.106 

196.040 

214.475 

161,286 

859.946 

79,925,336 

393,474.362 

1.478,166 

1.478341 

196.040 

(13.795) 

161,286 

(90,054) 

3.209.984 

3,925,322 

(conlinucd-.-) 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

General Fund 

Budget Comparison Schedules 
For the Year Ended June 30. 2009 

Statement 1-1 

[Judgeted Amoun's 
Oriy:inal 

Hxperidituies 
Current 

Instruciuin: 
Rcfjular Ed programs 
Special Bd programs 
Vot̂ ational Ed programs 
Other insiruciional programs 
Special programs 
Advili td programs 

Suppon Services; 
Pupil suppon 
Insinjctionai statTsuppi)n 
General adminiitialiun 
School administrfllion 
Business administration 
Opt^raiiun and maintenance ofpianl 
Pupil inmsponaiion 
Central services 

Food service 
Community service programs 
l-aciliiies acquisition and construction 
iransfersout 

Tolal Chai"gcs to Appropriations 

124.917,666 

61.273,451 
•1,899,817 

12,268,915 
1,785.158 

536.326 

13.096,752 
10.958.522 
5,123.795 

19,881.108 
2.680.403 

31,659,035 
29,410,723 

7,866,714 
2,944,371 

42,531 
485,311 

4.715,267 

127,959,163 
61.610.129 

5,202,679 
12,568.543 
1,614,677 

536.326 

12.892,217 
11,215.546 
5,155.534 

20,173,198 
2,730,179 

29.501,568 
28.366,931 

8,189,301 
2,994,518 

42,531 
487,854 

5.121,246 

Actual Amoiinib 

130.207,662 

63,837,725 
5,165,722 

12,450.623 
1,510,438 

356.466 

13.034,102 
11,454,831 
5J 10.519 

20,700.136 
2.'139,653 

3i.50I.t68 
29,398.044 
7,685.796 
2,824,364 

42.226 
498,371 

5,121,246 

334.545.865 336.362,140 343.539.092 

Variance with 
Final Budtiei 

(2,248,499) 
(2,227,596) 

36,957 
117,920 
104,239 
179.860 

(141,885) 
(239,285) 
(154.985) 
(526,938) 
290.526 

(1,999,600) 
(1,031.113) 

503.505 
nO,154 

305 
(10.517) 

(7,176,952) 

Budgetary Fund Balance. Ending $ 54.793,307 S 

Sec notes to budgetary comparison schedules and indcpendeni auditors' repon, 

53,136,900 49.935.270 S (3,251.630) 
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Statement 1-2 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
CovinjiloD, Louisiana 

1966 Sales Tax Fund 
Budget Comparison Schedule 

For Ihe Year Ended June 30, 2009 

budgeted Amoiinls 
Ongmal Fmal Actual Amounts 

Vanance with 
Final Budget 

[judgeiary Fund Balance, Beginning ot'Year 5.000 5.001 3.090.946 3,085,945 

Resources (Inflowb) 
Local sourcej.: 

Taxcs-.sales and use 
earnings on investments 

AmounLS Available for Appropiialions 

Charges lo Appropriations (Ouinowsi) 
Support services-general administration 
Transfers oul 

Total Charges lo Appropriations 

Budgetary Fund Balance, End ofYear 

43.933.505 
100.000 

44,038,505 

476.000 
43,557,505 

44,033.505 

S 5.000 

40.308,003 
50.0tK) 

40,363,004 

476.000 
39,882.004 

40.358,004 

$ 5,000 

38,661,896 
17,845 

41,770,687 

410,517 
1,360.170 

41.770.687 

(1,646.107) 
(32,155) 

1,407,683 

65,483 
;i,478,166) 

(1.412.683) 

(5,000) 

Sec notes to budgetary conipanson schedules and indei)cndeni auditors' report. 



Statement 1-3 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Luujsi»n:i 

1977 Sales Tax Fund 
Budget CompariTOn Schedule 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Fmal Aciual Amounts 

Vanancc with 
Final Budget 

Budgetary F'und Balance. Beginning of Year 5.000 5,000 3,091.086 3.086,086 

Rcsoiirccs (Inflows) 
Local sources: 

Taxes-sales and use 
Earnings on investmenli 
Fund Transfers In 

Amounts Available for Appropriations 

Charges to Appropnalions (Outflows) 
Support services-general administration 
Transfers oul 

1 otal Charges to .'\ppiopriations 

Budgetary l-'und Balance, Hnd of Year 

43,933.505 
100,000 

44,038,505 

476,000 
43.557,505 

44.033,505 

$ 5,000 

40,308.003 
50,000 

40.363,003 

476.000 
39,882.003 

40.358.003 

$ 5.000 S 

38,697.941 
17,880 

41,806.907 

446,563 
41,360.344 

41,806.907 

(1,610.062) 
(32,120) 

1,443,904 

29,437 
(1,478,341) 

(1.448,904) 

(5.000) 

Sec notes to budgetarjf comparison schechttc^ and independent auditors' report. 
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ST. T A M M A N Y PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Covington, Louisiana 

Kmnna Funds 

Budget Comparison Schedule 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Statement 1-4 

fiiidgeled Amounis 

Onginal Aciual Amount 

Van once wiih 

Finul Bud|j,c; 

Budgetary Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 84.338.838 84,338,838 

Resourcas (1 n Hows) 

Local sources 

Transfcrs In 

Banimgson investments 

Federal Sources 

CDBG Federal Giani 

Insurance proceeds 

FEMA Disaster Recovery 

Amounis Available for Appropriations 

Charges to Appropriations (Outflows) 

Disaster Recovery 

TransIerS out 

Toial Charges to Appropriations 

Budgetary Fund Balance, hnd of Year 

10,846,858 

30,000,000 

40,B4&,85S 

40,846,858 

40,846,858 

1 

10,972.858 

25,000,000 

35,972,BSS 

35,972.358 

35,972.858 

; - i 

803,225 

10,676,833 

35,370,034 

\31,188,930 

35,173,993 

196.041 

35,370,034 

; 95,818.896 . .s^ 

(10,972,858) 

803.225 

10.676.833 

10.370.034 

95,216.072 

798.865 

(196.041) 

602,824 

95,818.896 

See notes to budgetary comparison schedules and independent auditors' report 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

Notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedules 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

A. BUDGETS 

General Budget Practices 

The proposed bu(jgets for fiscal year 2009 were completed and made available for public 
inspection at the School Board office on July 28, 2008. A public hearing was held on 
August 21, 2008 for suggestions and comments from taxpayers. The proposed fiscal year 
2009 budgets were fonnally adopted by the School Board on September 11, 2008. The 
budgets, which included proposed expenditures and the means of financing them, for the 
General, Special Revenue, Debt Service and Capital Projects Funds were pubHshed in the 
official journal ten days prior to the public hearings. 

Formal budgetary accounts are integrated into the accounting system during the year as a 
management control device, including the recording of encumbrances. Appropriations 
are valid only for the year in which made, and any part of such appropriation which is not 
encumbered or expensed lapses at the end of the year. Current year transactions that are 
directly related to prior year's budget are not rebudgeted in the current year. 

The level of control over the budget is exercised at the function or program level for the 
General and Special Revenue Funds, at the project level for the Capital Projects Funds 
and at the individual debt issue level for the Debt Service Funds. The Superintendent is 
authorized to transfer budget amounts within each function; however, any supplemental 
appropriations that amend the total expenditures of any fund require School Board 
approval. As required by state law, when actual revenues within a fund are failing to 
meet estimated annual budgeted revenues by five per cent or more, and/or actual 
expenditures within a fund are exceeding estimated budgeted expenditures by five 
percent or more, a budget amendment to reflect such changes is adopted by the School 
Board in an open meeting. Budgeted amounts included in the fmancial statements 
include the original adopted budget and all subsequent amendments. Amendments to the 
budget reflect changes in revenue sources determined after budget was initially approved. 
No other significant changes occurred. 

Budget Basis of Accounting 

The budgets for the General, Special Revenue, Debt Service and Capital Projects Funds 
for the fiscal year 2009 were prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting, 
consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

Notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedules 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Encumbrances 

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other 
commitments are recorded, is employed by the General Fund and Capital Projects Funds. 

Encumbrances outstanding at year-end lapse and are re-encumbered the following year. 

B. EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS 

For the year ended June 30, 2009, the following funds had actual expenditures over 
appropriations, at the functional level: 

Fund and Function Budget Actual Excess 

General Fund: 
Regular Ed 
Special Ed 
Pupil Support 
Instructional Staff 
General Administration 
School Administration 
Operation Plant 
Pupil Transportation 
Facilities, Acquisition and Const. 
Operating transfers 

Special Revenue Funds: 
Sales Tax 1966-Operating transfers 
Sales Tax 1977-Operating transfers 

Katrina Recovery Funds: 
Transfers 

$127,959,163 
61,610,129 
12,892,217 
11,215,546 
5,155,534 

20,173,198 
29,501,568 
28,366,931 

487,854 
24,051,683 

39,882,004 
39,882,003 

-

$130,207,662 
63,837,725 
13,034,102 
11,454,831 
5,310,519 

20,700,136 
31,501,168 
29,398,044 

498,371 
24,519,008 

41,360,170 
41,360,344 

196,041 

$ 2,248,499 
2,227,596 

141,885 
239,285 
154,985 
526,938 

1,999,600 
1,031,113 

10,517 
467,325 

1,478,166 
1,478,341 

196,041 

Actual expenditures exceeded appropriations as a result of unanticipated expenditures 
occurring in the month of June after the last budget revision and/or unanticipated 
revenues needing to be transferred to other funds. The excess expenditures were funded 
by available and appropriable fund balances. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

Notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedules 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

C. BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION 

Sources/inflows of resources: 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "available for appropriation" fiom the 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
The fund balance at the beginning of the year is a budgetary resource 
but is not a current year revenue 
Transfer from other funds and sale of capital assets are considered 

as revenue on budgetary basis but are considered operating transfers 
and sale of capital assets on a GAAP basis 

Total revenues as reported on the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance- Governmental Funds 

Uses/outflows of resources: 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total charges to appropriations" 

from the Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Transfer to other funds is considered as outflows on budgetary 

basis but is considered operating transfers on a GAAP basis 
Total expenditures as reported on the Statement of Revenues, 

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Govemmental Funds 

General Fund 

$ 393,474,362 

(55,784,162) 

( 79,925.336) 

$ 257.764.864 

$ 343,539,092 

(5.12L246) 

$ 338,417,846 

Sources/inflows of resources: 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "available for appropriation" 

from the Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
The fund balance at the beginning of the year is a budgetary resource 
but is not a current year revenue 

Total revenues as reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balance - Govemmental Funds 

Uses/outflows of resources: 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total charges to appropriations" 

from the Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Transfer to other ftinds is considered as outflows on budgetary 
basis but is considered operating transfers on a GAAP basis 

Total expenditures as reported on the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Govemmental Funds 

1966 SALES 
TAX FUND 

$ 41,770,687 

(3,090,946) 

S 38.679.741 

$ 41,770,687 

(41,360,170) 

S 410.517 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

Notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedules 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Sources/inflows of resources: 
Actual amounis (budgetary basis) "available for appropnation" 

from the Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
The fund balance at the beginning of the year is a budgetary resource 

but is not a current year revenue 
Total revenues as reported on the Statement of Revenues. Expenditures, 

and Changes in Fund Balance - Govemmental Fund 

Uses/outflows of resources: 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total charges to appropriations" 

from the Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Transfer to other funds is considered as outflows on budgetary basis 

but is considered operating transfers on a GAAP basis 
Total expenditures as reported on the Statement of Revenues, 

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Govermnentai Funds 

Sources/inflows of resources: 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "available for appropriation" 
from the Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

The fund balance at the beginning of the year is a budgetary resource 
But is not a current year revenue 

Total revenues as reported on the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Govemmental Fund 

Uses/outflows of resources: 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total charges to appropriations" 
from the Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

Transfer to other ftjnds is considered as outflows on budgetary basis 
But is considered operating transfers on a GAAP basis 

Total expenditures as reported on the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Govemmental Funds 

1977 SALES 
TAX FUND 

41,806,907 

(3,091.086) 

£ 38.715,821 

$ 41,806,907 

(41,360,344') 

S 446.563 

KATRINA 
FUND 

$ 131,188,930 

(84,338,838) 

% 46.850.092 

% 35,370,034 

(196.04n 

% 35J73.993 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



"Alert and Ready" 
Lakin Wood - Grade 7 

Lynda Thuriow - Teacher 
Madisonville Junior 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

COMBINING 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

BY FUND TYPE 



"Louisiana Majesty" 
William Mallory - Grade 4 
Robin Kennedy - Teacher 
Mandeviile Middle School 



Non-Major Fund Descriptions 

Special Revenue Funds: 

NCLB - This fund is used to account for Federal Grants received and the programs expenditures under the 
No Child Left Behind Act. 

IDEA - This fund is used to account for Federal Grants received and the programs expenditures under the 
Individuals with Disab/lities Act. 

TANF - This fund is used to account for Federal and State Grants received and the programs expenditures 
under the Temporary Aide for Needy Families Act. 

Vocational Education - This fund is used to account for Federal Grants received and the programs 
expenditures vocational education. 

Miscellaneous Prozrams - This fund is used to account for Federal, State and Local Grants received and Ihe 
programs expenditures related to various programs. 

8G - This fund is used to account for State Grants received and the programs expenditures related to 8G 
Funding 

School Food Service.'! - This fund is used lo account for the revenue and expenditures related to the School 
Boards student lunch and breakfast programs. 

Community Education - This fund is used to account for the revenue and expenditures related to the School 
Boards community education programs funded mostly by fees charged to participants. 

Debt Service Funds: 

Parishwide School District No. 12 - This fund is used to account for the servicing the School Board General 
Obligation Debt. 

Capital Project Funds: 

1998 Construction • This fund is used to account for the capital expenditures of the 1998 bond proceeds. 

2002 Construction - This fund is used to account for the capital expenditures of the 2002 bond proceeds. 

2004 Construction - This fund is used to account for the capital expenditures of the 2004 bond proceeds. 

ReRoofing Construction - This fund is used to account for the capital expenditures for various roofing 
projects throughout the District. 

Property Acquisition - This fund is used to account for capital expenditures for land. 

Parishwide Construction - This fund is used to account for the capital expenditures for various construction 
projects throughout the District not speciHcally funded through bond issues. 

Internal Service Funds: 

Workers' Compensation -This fund is used to account for the expenditures for workers' compensation claims 
for School Board employees. 

Risk Manasement - This fund is used to account for the expenditures for general and auto liability claims for 
the School Board. 

Health/Life Insurance - This fund is used to account for the expenditures for health and life insurance claims 
for the School Board. 



Non-Major Fund Descriptions (Continued) 

Agency Funds: 

School Activity - This fund is used to account for the various individual schools student activity funds. 



"Keep Louisiana Beautiful" 
Kathryn Mallory - Grade 8 

Tonya Hendon - Teacher 
Monteleone Junior High 



ST, TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

CDvington. Louliiana 

Nanmnjor Covcrnnicnial Fund^ 

Combininf nibincc Shcei - Hy Fund Type 

JuniM, 20D9 

Special 

RcvOiuc 

Dcbi 

Scr\'icc 

Capital 

Prajccis 

Toial! 

Asseis-

Cabh and cash Cquivniaits 

Invest men ti 

Receivables' 

Twcs' 

Ad vilorcm 

1 Ti t ergo V cmmcn I al 

(•"cdaal 

Siaic 

l^coJ 

Due from oihin' funds 

Inventory 

.1.56G.'1S0 

S.331.674 

855,379 

S6,6SI 

99.468 

455.820 

S IS.G86JI1 

127.750 

S 15.110,333 

6.19'] 

19.683,385 5 IS.I'IJ.IOO 

38.662.994 

113.9')-) 

33.98').W)2 

126.200 

s 

5,331,674 

855,379 

)t6.65l 

426.041 

455,820 

46,622.427 S 

3,142.532 

2.919,635 

4.599.780 

372.223 

44,150.022 

Lidbdiinaiiml Tund Balances 

Liabiliiics: 

ALCOUHIS payable 

Conirai-iTcninflBc payable 

DiK [0 olbcr TuDds (nOit: 6) 

Other liflbtluies 

Unearned rcvcuLiia 

To[a) Liatntniex 

Fund batoncts' 

Reserved for bvctuory 

RcKTved iQr debl service 

Unrcscn'cd. undcsignaicd 

Tola] Fund Balances 

Toijl Liahilrtio and Fund BaLincci 

Sec accompanyiiifi indcpendeni audilore' report. 

i 

s 

202,069 

8.210.835 

338 

247.027 

S.660.269 

455.820 

2.279,353 

2.735.173 

U.395.442 

i 

S 

-

63.996 

63,996 

19,619,889 

. 

19.619.889 

19.683.88S 

I 

S 

1 293.87.1 

1,775.449 

140.000 

5,209,322 

-
10.533.778 

10,533,778 

15,743.100 

S 

s 

3.495.942 

1.775,449 

H,350.B35 

338 

311,023 

13.933,537 

455.820 

19.619.889 

12.813,131 

32.888.840 

4b.822.427 

i 

S 

2.331,310 

380,090 

10,89.1.712 

718 

376J35 

13.982.165 

372.223 

11.906,700 

17,388,931 

30,167.857 

44.150.022 

http://19.683.88S


ST. TAMMANV PARISH SCHOOL BOAKU 
Cot'lni^un. l.otiUiana 

Nonmajor CovBmmeniat Fuods 
Combining Siatfmmi orRcvconri, Kipendlturei, and Ctian^ct In Fni i l Balancci - B* FunOTypt 

For Ihc Year Endiil June 3U, 2009 
With Coinparalhe TotaU for the Vear Fji i l t i l June 30, 2008 

S[jca,il 
Kcvcnuc 

Debt 
SlTVICC 

Cjpiral 

Rc'ctiiW 
Locjl iources: 
Tuet 
Ad valorem 

Tiiiuon 
liimmni rt> invotmems 
Food icrvice 
Oihc. 

Siaie sotwca. 

Oihci 

Federjl lourecs 

T D U I rcvenuo 

s 
l,3oR,6l'; 

34.354 
3,078ja5 

121,099 

1.983.123 
0,969.40-1 

26,126.371 

39,682.451 

S 10 09 

] ) 

10,21] 

6W S 

.2')'^ 

.98 s 

•tO.S 449 

244 894 

650,343 

I i0.091.690 
l,36B,6t.5 

.';6I.09S 
3,07b-,3S5 

166 593 

1.983,123 
(1,969,404 

26,126,871 

70„*i45.779 

S 21,1171"'^ 
i,-:29 9.';ii 

•>51,452 
l.lDI.Mo 

m.Obi 

1 941.608 
7.160 8^4 

26.(1 J 8.5.5* 

65.061,812 

F-J^pendiiuns 
Current 
Irumiciian 

Regular l-d programs 
Special Ed proî rams 
Vocational Ed prufirami 
Other injtn>Ctioiul progiami 
Spctial progratrii 
Adull Ed progiamk 

iupport scrvicd 
Pupil suppon 
Instructional stafTsuppon 
Ocncf j) admiriaJraiton 
School idmiiHWation 
OperaiKin and nijinienaricc nl ptini 
Hupil tiansponauon 
Central lerwicci 

hrod service 
Ctunniunny scr\'icc piriyrami 

raciliiks acquismnn and coitstmciHrn 
IVtH iervicc. 
Lecsl f'cci 
Eteciion eipensci 
BDIKI luuarkc ouu 
Principal rcitrctneni 
bHercu and bank charges 

TO(B1 eipcfrfitwei 

FjcesK (Dcflciency) of Revenues 
Oi-cr (Under) Fjpenditvjra 

Other Financing Source* (Ihra) 
1 nmfcn in 
TrantfcTS out 
Accrued interol and premiutn on bonds 
Bond proceeds 
Sate orcapltat uieis 

Total other thiincKig stxn'ccs and m a 

Net Change In Fund Balances 

Fund BilarM.cs. Bc;mnine ofYctu' 

Fund Balances, End of Year t 

3 . I4U35 
5,649,490 

260.919 
1.462.604 
9,001.335 

23,41^7 

1.644.144 
2,970.B54 

6I,S73 

364,131 
147,817 
^5 257 

I6.12S lO*-
1.104 i s : 

-
42.415.963 

(2,733.512) 

2.528.171 
11,074,421) 

1,453.750 

(l,Z7?.7d2? 

4.014,9.15 

7,735.173 

1.024 862 

1,625 
5.022 

81,447 
12.595.000 
8,330.790 

22.538.746 

7,674,239 

.18.950 

38.950 

7.713,189 

11,906,700 

i 19,619,889 

38.006.145 

38,006,145 

(37.355,302) 

7.717,334 
(897.334) 

6.820.000 

(30..535.B02) 

41.069.580 

t 10.533.778 

3.14 IJ35 
.•(,649,490 

260.919 
l.467.,604 
9.001.315 

23.497 

1.644.M4 
2.970 Ji54 
1.036.715 

1U4,I1I 
147.8,17 
55.257 

l6,^2B,t05 
1 ,1CM.';R2 

3K.(«t6.M5 

1 625 
5,022 

81.447 
12.595.000 
E.830,790 

101.960,854 

(32.415.075) 

10,245.505 
(1.971.755) 

38,950 

5J 12.700 

(24.102.375) 

56.991.215 

I • 32,888.840 

4.186;iS0 
4,758J51 

293,943 
1.649.774 
8 707.837 

5.50Q 

1 621.217 
1,530,017 

771,913 

I34.b57 
179,852 

15.169.480 
1.626,96.1 

lOJOJ.lfrl 

10 125 
.5B.I09 
75,590 

il.aO.5.771 
7,450.217 

72.264,784 

(7,202.972) 

13.210,223 
(4.127.008) 

670.000 
2J97 

9.754,712 

2„551,740 

27,616,117 

S 30,167.857 

See accompanyinj; mdependerfl iiidiiors' report 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Covington, Louisiana 

NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FIJNDS 

Combining Balance Sheet 

June 30, 2009 

With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2008 

NCLB IDEA TANF 

Vocational 

Education 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Receivables 

Federal 

State 

Local 

Due from other funds 

Inventory 

Total Assets 

608,932 

$ 253,117 S 

3.051,560 39,774 102.155 

$ 1,608,932 $ 3,051,560 S 292,891 $ 102,155 

Liabilities and Fund Balances 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable 

Due to other funds 

Other liabilities 

Uneamed revenues 

Tolal Liabilities 

1,608.932 

,608,932 

3.051.560 10,168 

3.051,560 10,168 

102.155 

102.155 

Fund balances 

Reserved for inventory 

Unreserved, undesignated 

Total Fund Balances 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 

282.723 

282.723 

S 1,608,932 S 3,051,560 S 292,891 S 102,155 

Sec accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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E.vhibit3 

Miscellaneous 

Programs 

School Community 

8G Food Service Education 

Totals 

i009 1008 

102,741 

261,736 

855.379 

1.211 

1,592 

242.818 

3,621 

S 3.769.270 $ 441,322 

24,699 

2,814 

97,876 

455.820 

79,005 

S 4,566.450 

5,331,674 

855,379 

86.651 

99,468 

455,820 

$ 5.547.862 

3,142,532 

2,919,685 

-
290,606 

372,223 

1,222,659 $ 246,439 S 4,350.479 520.327 $ 1 1.395.442 S 12,272,908 

16,750 

978,258 

-
35,434 

S 
246,085 

338 

16 

184.229 S 1.090 

2.102.468 111,209 

211,577 

s 202,069 

8,210.835 

338 

247.027 

S 96,692 

7,848.224 

718 

312.339 

1,030.442 246,439 2.498,274 12,299 8.660,269 1.257,973 

192,217 

455,820 

1,396,385 408.028 

455,820 

2,279,353 

372.223 

3,642.712 

92,217 1,852.205 408,028 2.735.173 4,014,935 

1.222,659 J 246,439 S 520,327 S 11,395,442 S 12.272.908 
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ST TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL UOARO 
Covinnitin, LooWana 

^O.N-MA.IOR SfECIAL RtVKNUE FIINDS 

CombiDing Sintf;ineDt of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Funii Balunces 

For the Year Endeil June 3(1, 2009 
Will i Comparntlve Totals for ihc Year Ended June 30, 2008 

NCLB 
Vocational 
Education 

Miscellaneous 
Programs 80 

School 
TotjiJ Service 

Revenues 
Local sources: 

Tuiiion 
Eamings on invt-simciiL-; 
Food service 
Other 

Sraic sources: 
Hqualizaiion 
Other 

rcdcr.tl sources 

Toial RevcnuL's 

EupcTtditures 
Current: 

Insiruciron: 
Regular Ed piogiams 
Special Bd progrflins 
VocniiOtiBl hd prOgranu 
Other iiistruciionsl programs 
Spct;ial programs 
Adult Ed progranw 

Sujjpon services* 
Pupil suppor! 
Insirucuonal siafl"suppon 
Genera! admintstration 
School odministrSiion 
Operaiion and mamlenancc of plant 
Pupil transporlation 

Genual services 
Food scvicc 
Community service progniins 

To:d! Expenditures 

S,251,025 

S.251.023 

1.362,416 

4J43,901 

387,828 

1.760.785 
12,947 

15.937 
6.790 

55.257 

7.845.86! 

-

-
8,081.836 

8,031.836 

5,394,620 

77,524 
194 

1,153,589 
028,456 

13.770 

" 
1,547 

I15J94 

-

7.685.094 

-

10.774 

39.774 

39.774 

199,013 

-
134 
37 

t.287 

-
-
-

240.265 

i5y.59S 

359.59S 

-

2f.0.9i0 

98.560 

119 

-

359.598 

179 

/0.855 

5.840.854 
1.097.078 

7.008.966 

1,331,820 
254,870 

).3)0,335 
4,019.1)8 

23.497 

4,167 
277.320 
35.000 

-
340.647 
21.134 

-

7.523,908 

1.128.550 

1,128.550 

547,099 

134.971 
439.109 

-
4.139 

, 

-
!.232 

-
-
, 

1.128,550 

34.175 
3.078.3a5 

31.211 

1,983,123 

8.297,560 

13.424.454 

-
. 

. 
, 
-
. 

I6J28.I05 

16.328.105 

Excess (Dcflciency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expewfiiurcs 

Other Ktnancing Sources fUses) 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 
Sales ofcapital assets 

Tolal Other Finrincmg 

Sourres ( Uscsl 

Nel Change in Fund Babiiccs 

Fund Balances. Begimiine of Year. 

Fund Balances, End of Year 

See accompanyine iridcpcndeni auditors' report 

405.164 

(405.164) 

(405.164) 

S 

396,742 

(396,742) 

(396,742) 

% 

(200.491) 

(200.491) 

483,214 

S 282,723 S 

-

— 

s 

(514.942) 

(53.040) 

(58.040) 

(572,982) 

765.199 

192,217 S 

(2.903.651) 

2,388,171 
(214.475) 

2.173.696 

(729.955) 

2,582,160 

t 1.852.205 



p;xhilni 

Coinmuniiy 
Education 

% 1.368.615 

19.633 

-

1,388.248 

S 1.3[)8,(,I5 
34 .154 

3.078,3S5 
121,699 

1.933.123 
6,969.104 

2b.\26Ml\ 

39.6if2,45l 

S i.429,959 
65,324 

3.101.94(1 
138.068 

1.94! ,608 
7.160.344 

26.618.558 

40,856.307 

U04.582 

U04,532 

3,141.^35 
5.649.490 

260.019 
1.462.004 
9.001,335 

23,497 

1.644.144 
2.970,S54 

6I,S73 

364,131 
I47,S37 
55,557 

16,328,105 
1.304,582 

42,415.963 

4.136.389 

4,758.551 
293.943 

1.649,774 
3.707,887 

5.500 

1.524,237 
3.530.037 

24.197 

134,657 
179,852 

15.169,480 
1.620,963 

41.891.467 

83.666 (2,733.S 12) (1.034,660) 

2,528.171 2.076.615 
(1.074.421) ((.079.SS6] 

3.397 

140.000 1.453,?50 739.767 

223.666 (1.279.762) (294.893) 

184,362 4,014,935 4,309.828 

S 408.028 i 2.735.173 J 4,014.935 



Exhibit 5 

ST, TAiMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

NCLB Special Revenue Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Budget Actus 

Variance 
From 

Budget 

Revenues 
Federal sources 

Total Revenues 

Expend! tuires 
Instruction: 

Regular Ed programs 
Special programs 

Support services: 
Pupil support 
instructional staff support 
General administration 
Operation and maintenance of plant 
Pupil transportation 
Central services 

Total Expenditures 

Excess of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 

Other Financing Uses 
Transfer^ oul 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 

Fund Balance, End of Year 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

14,604,419 8,251.025 

14,604,419 

736,772 

(736,772) 

!,251,025 

405.164 

(405,164) 

$ (6.353.394) 

(6,353,394) 

1,273,475 
H.791,822 

557.130 
2.414.775 

29,128 
21,518 

726,916 
52.883 

13,867,647 

1.262,416 
4,343,901 

387,828 
1,760,785 

12.947 
15,937 
6,790 

55,257 

7,845,861 

11.059 
4,447.921 

169,302 
653.990 

16,181 
5.581 

720.126 
(2,374) 

6,021,786 

(331,608) 

331,608 
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Exhibit 6 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Covington, Louisiana 

IDEA Special Revenue Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Budget Actual 

Variance 
From 

Budget 

Revenues 
Federal sources 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
Instruction: 

Special education programs 
Other instructional programs 
Special programs 

Support services: 
Pupil support 
Instructional staff support 
General administration 
Operation and maintenance of plant 
Pupil transportation 

Total expenditures 

Excess of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 

Other Financing Uses 
Transfers out 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 

Fund Balance, End of Year 

See accomanying independent auditors' report. 

$ 18,796,254 

18,796,254 

964,487 

(964,487) 

8,081,836 

8,081,836 

396,742 

(396,742) 

(10,714,418) 

(10,714,418) 

12,629,218 
76,765 

-

2,396,352 
2,321,855 

23,000 
12,000 

372,577 

17,831,767 

5,394,620 
77,524 

194 

1,153,589 
928,456 

13,770 
1,547 

115,394 

7.685,094 

7,234,598 
(759) 
(194) 

1,242,763 
1,393,399 

9.230 
10,453 

257,183 

10,146,673 

(567,745) 

567,745 
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Exhibit 7 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Covington, Louisiana 

TANF Special Revenue Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Revenues 
Federal sources-Other 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
Instruction: 

Regular Ed programs 
Other instrucitonal programs 
Special programs 

Support services: 
Instructional staff support 
General administration 
Pupil transportation 

Total expendimres 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) 
Expenditures 

Other Financing Uses 
Transfers out 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 

Fund Balance, End of Year 

See accomanying independent auditors' report. 

Budget 

S 3,327,406 

3,327,406 

55,511 

(55,511) 

483,214 

$ 483,214 

Actual 

$ 39,774 

39,774 

Variance 
From 

Budget 

$ (3,287,632) 

(3,287,632) 

36,530 
213,250 

2,883,984 

115,897 
-

22,234 

3,271,895 

-
39,774 

199,013 

154 
37 

1,287 

240,265 

36,530 
173,476 

2,684,971 

115,743 
(37) 

20,947 

3,031,630 

(200,491) 

(200,491) 

483,214 

S 282,723 

256,002 

55,511 

(200,491) 

S (200,491) 
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Exhibit 8 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Covington, Louisiana 

Vocational Education Special Revenue Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Budget Actual 

Vanance 

From 

Budget 

Revenues 

Federal sources 

Total Revenues 

$ 437,799 

437,799 

359,598 $ (78,201) 

359,598 (78,201) 

Expenditures 

Instruction-Vocational Ed programs 

Support services - pupil support programs 

Support services - guidance services 

Support services- genera] administration 

Total Expenditures 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 

Fund Balance, End of Year 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

40,171 

18,225 

79,194 

209 

260,919 

13,662 

84,898 

119 

79,252 

4,563 

(5,704) 

90 

437,799 359,598 78,201 
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Exhibit 9 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Covington, Louisiana 

Miscellaneous Programs Special Revenue Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
For the Year ECnded June 30, 2009 

Budget Aciual 

Variance 
From 

Budget 

Revenues 
Local sources: 

Eamings on investments 
Other 

Slate sourccs-oihcr 
Federal sources 

Total revenues 

-
95,282 

7.710,917 

2,947,620 

$ 179 

70.855 

5.840.854 

1,097.078 

$ 179 

(24.427) 

(1.870,063) 

(1.850,542) 

10,753.819 7.008,966 (3,744,853) 

Expenditures 
Instruction: 

Regular Ed programs 
Special Ed programs 
Other instructional programs 
Special programs 
Adult Ed programs 

Suppon services: 
Pupil Support 
Instructional staff support 
General administration 
Operation and maintenance of plant 
Pupil transportation 
Food service 

Total expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) 
Expenditures 

Other Financmg Uses 
Transfers out 

1,425,791 

235,272 

3.323,792 

4.167,002 

339,585 

7.669 

540,468 

400 
521,374 

70,459 

10.631,812 

1.331,820 

254,870 

1.210,335 

4,019.118 

23,497 

4.167 

277.320 

35,000 

346,647 

21.134 

7.523,908 

93,971 

(19,598) 

2.113,457 

147,884 

316,088 

3.502 

263.148 

(34,600) 

174,727 

49,325 

3.107,904 

22.007 

(122.007) 

(514.942) 

(58.040) 

(636.949) 

63.967 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance. Beginning of Year 

Fund Balance, End of Year 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

765,199 

£ 765.199 

(572.982) 

765,199 

192,217 

(572,982) 

$ (572.982) 
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Exhibit 10 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Covington, Louisiana 

8G Special Revenue Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Budget 

Revenues 
State sources-other 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
Instruction: 
Regular Ed programs 
Other instructional 
Special programs 

Support services: 
Instructional staff support 
General administration 
Operation and maintenance of plant 
Pupil transportation 

Total Expenditures 

S 1,152,725 

1,152,725 

492,668 
138,313 
439,916 

77,026 
-

500 
4,302 

1,152,725 

Actual 

,128,550 

1,128.550 

547,099 
134,971 
439,109 

4,139 

3,232 

1,128,550 

Variance 
From 

Budget 

(24,175) 

(24,175) 

(54,431) 
3,342 

807 

72,887 

500 
1,070 

24,175 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 

Fund Balance, End of Year 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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Exhibit 11 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARO 

Covington, Louisiana 

School Food Service Special Revenue Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Revenues 
Local sources; 

Eamings on investments 
Food service 
Other 

Slate sources - Equalization 
Federal sources 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
Food service 

Total Expenditures 

Deficiency of Revenues 
Under Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfers in- General Fund 
Transfers in- Sales tax 1966 
Transfers in- Sales tax 1977 
Transfers out- General Fund 
Sale of capital assets 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Budget Actual 

Variance 
From 

Budgcl 

30,000 
2,785,450 

30,000 

2,349.481 

8,154,773 

% 34,175 
3,078,385 

31,211 

1,983,123 
8,297,560 

$ 4,175 
292,935 

1,211 
(366,358) 

142,787 

13,349.704 

15,697,961 

15,697,961 

(2,348,257) 

534,888 
1,082,687 

404,238 
(228,270) 

2,000 

1,795,543 

13,424,454 

16.328,105 

16,328,105 

(2,903,651) 

901,246 

1,082,687 

404,238 

(214,475) 
-

2,173,696 

74,750 

(630,144) 

(630,144) 

(555,394) 

366,358 
-
-

13,795 
(2,000) 

378,153 

(552,714) (729,955) (177,241) 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 2,582,160 2.582,160 ^ 

Fund Balance, End of Year $ 2,029,446 $ 1,852,205 % (177,241) 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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Exhibit 12 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Covington, Louisiana 

Community Education Special Revenue Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Revenues 
Local sources: 

Tuition 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 

Community service programs 

Total Expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures 

Other Financing Uses 
Transfers In- General Fund 

Total Other Financing Uses 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance, Begiiming of Year 

Fund Balance, End of Year 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

Budget 

1,210,000 

1,350,000 

1.350.000 

(140,000) 

140,000 

140,000 

263,774 

$ 263,774 

Actual 

1,195,000 $ 1,368,615 
15,000 19,633 

1,388,248 

1,304,582 

1,304,582 

83,666 

140,000 

Variance 
From 

Budget 

173,615 
4,633 

178,248 

45,418 

45,41; 

223,666 

140,000 

223,666 

184,362 

% 408,028 S 

223,666 

(79,412) 

144,254 



Exhibit 13 
ST, TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Covington, Louisiana 

NON-MAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUND 

Combining Balance Sheet 
June 30,2009 

With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2008 

Totals 

2009 2008 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables 
Ad valorem taxes 

Due from other funds 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Unearned revenue 
Due to other funds 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balances: 

Reserved for debt service 

Total Fund Balances 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Sec accompanying independent auditors' report. 

18,686,211 
127,750 

869,924 

19,683,885 

,434,238 
126,200 

515,972 

12,076,410 

$ 

$ 

-
63,996 

63,996 

19.619,889 

19,619,889 

19.683,885 

$ 

$ 
______ 

105,714 
63,996 

169,710 

11.906,700 

11,906,700 

12,076,410 
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Exhibit 14 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

NON-MAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUND 

Statement of Revenues. Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 
With Comparative Totals ("or the Year Ended June 30. 2008 

Toial; 

2009 i008 

Revenues 
Local .sources: 

Taxes-ad valorem 
E.iming.s on investmenis 

Tolal Revenues 

Expenditures 
General Adminisiration' 

Equipment for Assessor's otTice 
Pension fund contribution 

Debl Service; 
Legal fees 
Election expenses 
Bond issuance costs 
Principal retirement 
Interest and bank charges 

Tolal Expenditures 

Excess of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfers out 
Accrued Inieresi and Premium on Bonds 

Total Oihcr Financing Sources (Uses) 

Net Change m Fund Balances 

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 

Fund Balances, End of Year 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

121.295 

30,212.985 

38.950 

38,950 

7.713,189 

11,906,700 

19.619,889 

23,317.377 
375.633 

23.593,010 

22,495 
1,002.367 

1.625 
5,022 

81,447 
12,595.000 
8,830,790 

22.538,746 

7.674.239 

-
749,741 

30,125 
58,109 
75.590 

11,805,771 
7,450,217 

20.169,553 

3.423.457 

(88.663) 

(88.663) 

3,334,794 

8,571,906 

11.906.700 
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Exhibit 15 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

Parishwide School District No. 12 Debt Service Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balance 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Final 
Budgeted 
Amounts 

Acrual 
Amounis 

Variance 
With Final 

Budget 

Revenues 
Local sources: 

Taxes-ad valorem 

Eamings on investments 

Toial Revenues 

Expenditures 

General Administration: 
Equipmem for .^sscsso '̂s office 
Pension fund contribution 
Election expenses 

Debt service: 
Legal fees 
Election expenses 
Bond issuance costs 
Principal retirement 
interest and bank charges 

Total Expenditures 

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 

Other financing sources 
Accrued interest and Premium on Bonds 

Total other financing sources 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balances - Beginning 

Fund Balances - Ending 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

30.094.708 
180,000 

30,274.708 

25.000 

25.000 

7.030.648 

1,906.700 

8,937,348 

30.091,690 
121.295 

30.212.985 

38,950 

38.950 

7.713,189 

11,906,700 

9.619,889 

(3,018) 
(58,705) 

(61,723) 

22.496 
1.000,000 

50.000 

50,000 
-

100,000 
12,595,000 
9,451,564 

23,269,060 

7.005.648 

22,495 
1,002,367 

-

1.625 
5,022 

81,447 
12,595,000 
8,830.790 

22,538,746 

7,674,239 

1 
(2.367) 
50,000 

48,375 
(5.022) 
18.553 

-
620,774 

730.314 

668.591 

(13,950) 

(13.950) 

682,541 

682.541 
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"Hiding in the Trees" 
Sarah Barber - Grade 6 

Darlene Powell - Teacher 
Riverside Elementary 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS 

Combining Balance Sheet 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2008 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Due from other funds 

TOTAL ASSETS 

1998 
Construction 

$ 
-
-

$ 

2002 
Construction 

$ 4,024,597 
-
-

$ 4,024,597 

2004 
Construction 

$ 2,857,132 
6,194 

91.539 

$ 2,954,865 
, •. ' • , - , -7.T7rrT 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Contract and Retainage payable 
Due to other funds 

Total Liabilities 

$ 2,369,135 
1,529,977 

3,899,112 

Equity: 
Fund balances: 
Unreserved, undesignated 

Total Equity 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

4,024,597 

4,024,597 

(944,247) 

(944,247) 

$ 4,024,597 $ 2,954,865 
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Exhibit 16 

Totals 
Roofing Property Parishwide 

Construction Acquisition Construction 2009 2008 

$ 4,117,832 S 2,433,306 $ 1,977,466 $15,410,333 $ 47,608,810 
6,194 

235,034 326,573 3,679,594 

746,488 $ 993 
123,458 

86 

$ 4,117,832 $ 2,433,306 $ 2.212,500 $15,743,100 $ 51,288,404 

177,257 
122,014 
140,000 

$ 3,293,873 
1,775,449 

140,000 

$ 3,875,427 
380,090 

5,963,307 

869,946 993 439,271 5,209,322 10,218,824 

3,247,886 2,432,313 1,773,229 10,533,778 41,069,580 

3,247,886 2.432,313 1,773,229 10,533,778 41,069,580 

$ 4,117,832 $ 2,433.306 $ 2,212,500 $ 15,743,100 $ 51,288,404 



ST. TAMMANV PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 
With Comparative Totals for the Vear Ended June 30, 2008 

1998 
Construction 

2002 
Construction 

2004 
Construction 

Revenues 
Eamings on invesiments 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
Facilities acquisition and construction: 

Building/site improvements 
Building and land acquisitions 
Construction contracts 
Architect and engineers 
Equipment 
Legal services 
Other 

Tola! Expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Tra' •̂ fcrs in 
Tfunsfers out 

Total Other Financing Sources and Uses 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 

Fund Balances. End of Year 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

S 10,609 $ 45,803 ' $ 249,949 

10,609 

10,609 

(897,334) 

45,803 249.949 

,920,975 

230.997 
22,776 

2,645 

256,418 

(210,615) 

23,182.345 
2,145,912 

892,872 

29.142.104 

(28,892.155) 

897,334 

(897.334) 

(886,725) 

886,725 

$ 

(210,615) 

4.235,212 

% 4.024,597 

897,334 

(27.994,821) 

27,050,574 

S (944.247) 
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Exhibit 17 

ReRoofmg 
Construction 

Property 
Acquisition 

Parishwide 
Construction 

Totals 

2009 2008 

33,839 S 44.257 
201,390 

$ 20.992 
43.504 

405,449 S 2,488,494 
244,894 

33,839 245.647 64,496 650.343 2.488,494 

-
-

2,009,249 
105.015 

-
3.559 

2.117,823 

(2.083.984) 

3,000,000 
-

3,000,000 

916,016 

2,331.870 

S 3,247,886 

-
2,645.520 

-
-
-
-
-

2.645.520 

(2,399,873) 

. 

-

(2,399,873) 

4,832,186 

S 2,432.313 

47.796 
2,400 

2.021,098 
251.147 

1,516.696 
15,595 

(10.452) 

3,844.280 

(3,779,784) 

3,820,000 
-

3,820,000 

40.216 

1,733.013 

S 1.773,229 

2,968,771 
2,647,920 

27,443,689 
2.524.850 

2.412,213 
15.595 
(6,893) 

38,006.145 

(37,355,802) 

7,717.334 
(897,334) 

6,820,000 

(30,535,802) 

41,069,580 

S 10,533,778 

2,162.278 
1,247,786 

49.905,439 
2.733,971 
426,842 

9.611 
2,961 

56.488,888 

(54.000,394) 

28.020,000 
(2,700,000) 

25,320,000 

(28,680,394) 

69,749,974 

S 41,069,580 
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Exhibit 18 
ST. TAMMANV PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Covington, Louisiana 

1998 Construction Capital Projects Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Revenues 
Eamings on investments 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
Facilities acquisition and construction: 

Construction contracts 
Architects and engineers 
Site Improvements 

Total Expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 

Other Financing Uses 
Transfers out- 2004 Construction 

Total Other Financing Uses 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 

Fund Balance, End of Year 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

Budget 

10,000 

25,000 

25,000 

(15,000) 

(871,725) 

Actual 

S 10.000 S 10.609 

10.609 

10.609 

(897,334) 
(871,725) 

(886,725) 

886.725 

$ 

(897,334) 

(886,725) 

886,725 

S 

Variance 
From 

Budget 

609 

609 

25.000 

25,000 

25.609 

(25,609) 
(25,609) 
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Exhibit 19 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Covington, Louisiana 

2002 Construction Capital Projects Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Revenues 
Eamings on investments 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
Facilities acquisition and construction: 

Construction contracts 
Equipment 
Site improvements 
Architects and engineers 

Other 

Total Expenditures 

Deficiency of Revenues under Expenditures 

Other finance uses 
Transfer oul - 2004 Construction 

Nel Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 

Fund Balance, End of Year 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

Budget 

$ 50,000 

50,000 

Actual 

S 45,803 

45.803 

Variance 
From 

Budget 

$ (4.197) 

(4.197) 

1,550,000 
100,000 

25,000 
5,000 

1,680,000 

(1,630,000) 

(2,605,212) 

(4,235,212) 

4,235,212 

$ 

230,997 
2,645 

22,776 
-

256,418 

(210,615) 

(210,615) 

4,235,212 

S 4,024,597 

1,319,003 
97,355 

2,224 
5,000 

1,423,582 

1,419,385 

(2,605,212) 

4,024,597 

_ 

S 4.024,597 
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Exhibit 20 
ST. TAMtVlANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Covington, Louisiana 

2004 Construction Capital Projects Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Revenues 

Earnings on investments 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
Facilities acquisition and construction: 

Equipment 
Construction contracts 
Building Improvements 
Site improvements 
Architects and engineers 
Other 

Total Expenditures 

Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures 

Other financing sources 
Transfers in - 1998 Construction 

Total other Financing Sources 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 

Fund Balance, End of Year 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

Budget 

1,000,000 

1,000,000 

Actual 

S 249,949 

249,949 

Variance 
From 

Budgel 

(750,051) 

(750,051 • 

250,000 
32,000,000 

-
200,000 

1,500,000 
30,000 

33,980,000 

(32,980,000) 

3,055,551 
3,055,551 

(29.924,449) 

39,102,589 

$ 9,178,140 

892,872 
23,182,345 

2,920,975 
-

2,145,912 
-

29,142,104 

(28,892,155) 

897,334 
• 897,334 

(27,994,821) 

27,050,574 

S (944,247) 

(642,872) 
8,817,655 

(2,920,975) 
200,000 

(645,912) 
30,000 

4,837.896 

4,087,845 

(2,158,217) 
(2,158,217) 

1,929,628 

(12,052,015) 

$ (10,122,387) 
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Exhibit 21 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Covington, Louisiana 

Reroofing Construction Capital Projects Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Budget Actual 

Variance 
From 

Budget 

Revenues 
Eamings on investments 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
Facilities acquisition and construction: 

Construction contracts 
Architects and engineers 
Equipment 
Other 

Total Expenditures 

Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources 
Transfers in - General Fund 

Total Other Financing Sources 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 

Fund Balance, End of Year 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

S 40M0 

40,000 

33,839 (6,161) 

33,839 (6.161) 

2,800,000 
50,000 

5,000 

2,855,000 

(2,815,000) 

3,000,000 

3,000,000 

185,000 

87,749 

S 272,749 

2,009,249 
105,015 

3,559 

2,117,823 

(2,083,984) 

3,000,000 

3,000,000 

916,016 

2,331,870 

$ 3,247,886 

790,751 
(55,015) 

1,441 

737,177 

731,016 

731,016 

2,244,121 

$ 2,975,137 
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Exhibit 22 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Covington, Louisiana 

Property Acquisition Capital Projects Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Budget Actual 

Variance 
From 

Budget 

Revenues 
Miscellaneous 
Eamings on investments 

S 201,000 
70,000 

$ 201,390 
44,257 

$ 390 
(25,743) 

Total Revenues 27L000 245,647 (25,353) 

Expenditures 
General Administration: 

Legal fees 
Facilities acquisition and construction: 

Land acquisition 

Total Expenditures 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 

Fund Balance, End of Year 

100,000 

2,500,000 

2,600,000 

(2,329,000) 

4,832,186 

$ 2,503,186 

-

2,645,520 

2,645,520 

(2,399,873) 

4,832,186 

$ 2,432,313 

100,000 

(145,520) 

(45,520) 

(70,873) 

(70,873) 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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Exhibit 23 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Covington, Louisiana 

Parishwide Construction Capital Projects Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Budget Actual 

Variance 
From 

Budget 

Revenues 
Eamings on investments 
Coninbiitions and donations 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
Facilities acquisition and construction: 

Land and building purchases 
Building and site improvements 
Construction contracts 
Building relocation 
Equipment 

Architects and engineers 
Legal services 
Other 

Total Expenditures 

Deficiency of Revenues under Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources 
Transfers in - General Fund 
Transfers in - Sales Tax 77 Fund 

Total Other Financmg Sources 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 

Fund Balance, End of Year 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

$ 25,000 
40,000 

65,000 

20,992 
43.504 

64,496 

(4.008) 
3,504 

(504} 

-
2,800,000 

900,000 

100,000 

350.000 

200.000 

' 
10,000 

4,360,000 

(4,295,000) 

1,080,000 
2,740,000 

3,820,000 

(475,000) 

1,733,013 

$ 1,258,013 

2.400 

47,796 

2.021,098 

-
1,516,696 

251,147 

15,595 

(10.452) 

3,844,280 

(3.779,784) 

1,080,000 
2,740,000 

3,820,000 

40,216 

1,733,013 

$ 1.773,229 

(2,400) 

2,752,204 

(1,121,098) 

100,000 

(1,166,696) 

(51.147) 

(15.595) 

20,452 

515,720 

515,216 

-

515,216 

. 

S 515.216 

94 



Exhibit 24 
ST. TAMMANV PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Covington, Louisiana 

Non-Major Proprietary Fund Type - Internal Service Funds 
Combining Statement of Net Assets 

June 30, 2009 

Workers' 
Compensaiion 

Risk 
Management 

Health/Life 
Insurance 

Total 
June 30. 

2009 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Accounts receivable 
Due from other funds 

Total Assets 

Liabilities and Net Assets 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts payable 
Liability for 

seif-insurance losses 
Due to other funds 
Claims liability 

Total Liabilities 

5,748,858 
950,000 

1,:S85.7S9 
' 

% 2,498,826 
125,738 
86,626 

247,135 

,584.647 

1,620 

4,023,901 
2.022 

% 2,958,325 

20.742 

578,531 

365,992 

4,027,543 599,273 

% 365.992 

S 5,194 

10,247,233 
7,330,221 

7,582,648 

S 9.247,684 

1,075,738 
2.338,407 

247,135 

% 12.908.964 

27,556 

14,271,134 
7,332,243 

578,531 

22,209.464 

Net Assets 
Restricted for employee benefits 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Assets 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 

5,557,104 

5,557,104 

9.584,647 

2,359,052 

2.359.052 

% 2,958,325 

(17,216,656) 

(17,216,656) 

E 365,992 

(11.659,552) 
2,359,052 

(9,300,500) 

$ 12,908,964 

See accompanying mdependeni audicors' report. 
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Exhibit 25 
ST. TAMMA.NV PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Covington, Louisiana 

Non-Major Proprietary Fund Type - Internal Service Funds 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 

Changes in .Net Assets 
For the Vear Ended June 30, 2009 

Operating Revenue 

Employer/Employee contributions 

Tola! operating revenue 

Operating Expenses 
AJministrative 
C oniractual services 
Tremium payments 
benefit Payments 
Claims 
Increase (Decrease) in provision for 
self-insurance losses 

Total operating expenses 

Operating Income (Loss) 

Workers' 
Compensaiion 

$ 5,630,467 

5,630,467 

206,198 
87.668 

-
2,671,773 

-

(367,283) 

2,598,356 

3,032,111 

Risk 
Management 

S 1.830,791 

1,830,791 

158.959 
255.060 

1.738.701 
-

1.508,170 

(786,519) 

2,874,371 

(1.043.580) 

Health/Life 
Insurance 

$ 57,354,524 

57,354.524 

-

2.647,469 
-

63,708,710 
-

489,287 

66,845.466 

(9,490.942) 

June 30, 
2009 

S 64,815,782 

64,815,782 

365,157 
2,990.197 
1,738.701 

66,380,483 
1,508,170 

(664,515) 

72,318,193 

(7,502.411) 

Non-Operating Revenue 
Eamings on investments 

Total Non-Operating Revenue 

Changes in Net Assets 

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 

Net Assets, End of Year 

76,586 31.871 34,427 

76.586 31,871 34,427 

3.108,697 

2,448.407 

(1,011.709) 

3,370.761 

5,557.104 2.359.052 

(9,456.515) 

(7.760,141) 

S (17.216.656) 

142,884 

42,884 

(7.359,527) 

(1,940.973) 

(9.300,500) 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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Kxhibit 26 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Covington, Louisiana 

Non-Major Proprietary Fund Type- Internal Service Fund 
Combining Statement of Cash Flows 

For the Vear Ended June 30, 2009 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities 
Receipts from employer and employee cornributions 
Payments for benefits arid claims 
Payments for insurance premiums 
Payments for administrative and contractual services 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

Cash Flows From Investing Activiiies 
Eamings on cash and m^'cstments 

Net Cash Provided By Investing Activities 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash, Cash 
Fquivalents and Investments 

Cash. Cash Equivalents and Investments, 
BegmningofVear 

Cash, Cash Fquivalents anci Investments. 
End of Year 

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash 
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: 

Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments lo reconcile operating income (loss) 

to net cash provided (used) by operating activities: 
increase (decrease) in provision for self insurance losses 

(Increase) decrease in receivables 
Increase (decrease) in payables 

Total adjustments 

Nel Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

Workers' 
Compensation 

S 3,806.374 
(2.672,240) 

-
(295,433) 

838,701 

76,586 

76.586 

Risk 
Management 

$ !.762.280 
(1,544,400) 
(1.738.70!) 

(429.345) 

(1,950,166) 

31.871 

31,871 

Healih/Life 
In.su ranee 

-S 57,392.953 
(57,822,022) 

-
(2.642.275) 

(3.071,344) 

34.427 

34,427 

Tolal 
.imc30. 

2009 

S 6.̂  '161,607 
{62.'J3S.662) 
(1..'38.701) 
(3.."'67,05 3) 

(4.r:2.809) 

147.884 

,42..<84 

915.287 (1,918.295) 

6.783.571 4,542.859 

(3,036.917) (4,03').9-!5) 

3,036,917 14,363.347 

S 7,698.858 S 2,624,564 S 10,323,422 

S 3,032, III S (1,043,580) $ (9.490.942) $ (7,502,411) 

(367,283) (786.519) 
(1,824,092) (104,741) 

(2,035) (15,326) 
(2.193.410) (906,586) 

489,287 
38,777 

5,891,534 

6,419,598 

(664.515) 
(1.890,056) 
5.874.173 
3,319,602 

838.701 £ (1,950,166) S (3,071,344) S (4,182.809) 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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Exhibit 27 

ST. TAMiMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

Non-Major Agency Fiduciary Funds 

Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - School Activity Funds 
Year Ended June 30, 2009 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Due from other funds 
Investments 

Balance 
June 30, 2008 

$ 2,929,723 
84,456 

2,736,761 

Additions 

S 14,718,018 
16,220 
15,510 

Deductions 

S 14,615,792 
-

574,412 

Balance 
June 30. 2009 

$ 3,031,949 
100,676 

2,177,859 

TOTAL ASSETS 5.750,940 14,749,748 15,190.204 5,310,484 

LIABILITIES 
Due to other funds 
Due to schools 

S 113,741 
5.637,199 

27,134 
14,722,614 15,190,204 

S 140,875 
5,169,609 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,750,940 14,749,748 15,190,204 5,310,484 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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"Friendly Bird" 
Ilexis Haricharan - Kindergarten 

Beth Cleveland - Teacher 
Mandeviile Elementary 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON 
SCHEDULE 

MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT 
2008 CONSTRUCTION FUND 



"Spoonbill" 
Anthony Strotriboe - Grade 

Lanelle Landry - Teacher 
Northshore High School 



Exhibit 28 
ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Covington, Louisiana 

2008 Construction Capital Projects Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Revenues 

Eamings on investments 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
General Administration: 

Election fees 
Legal services 

Facilities acquisition and construction: 
Equipment 
Construction contracts 
Land & Building Purchases 
Building Improvements 
Architects and engineers 

Other 

Total Expenditures 

Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Accrued interest and premium on bonds 
Bond proceeds 
Transfers Out - General Fund 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 

Fund Balance, End of Year 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

Budget 

750,000 

750,000 

Actual 

656,048 

656,048 

Variance 
From 

Budget 

(93.952) 

(93,952) 

100,000 

300,000 

7,000.000 

5,000.000 

2,000,000 

5,000,000 

2,000,000 
10,000 

21,410,000 

(20,660,000) 

1,393.411 

87.000,000 

-
88,393,411 

67,733,411 

_ 

S 67,733,4(1 

-
151,222 

5,782,360 

175,087 

-
3,460,977 

2,645,808 
-

12,215.454 

(11,559,406) 

1,393,411 

86,330,000 

(161.285) 

87,562,126 

76,002,720 

227,216 

S 76,229,936 

100,000 
148.778 

1,217,640 

4,824.913 

2,000,000 

1,539,023 

(645,808) 

10.000 

9,194,546 

9,100.594 

(670,000) 

(161,285) 

(831.285) 

8,269,309 

227,216 

$ 8,496,525 
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"Flying High" 
Ciera Fletcher - Grade 1 

Mary Christopher - Teacher 
Cypress Cove Elementary 



ST. TAMMANV PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

STATISTICAL INFORMATION 



"Alone in the Water" 
Courtney Capritto - Grade 4 

Darlene Powell - Teacher 
Florida Avenue Elementary 



STATISTICAL SECTION 

This part of the St. Tammany Parish School Board's comprehensive annual financial report presents 
detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, 
note disclosures and required supplementary information says about die School Board's overall 
financial health. 

Contents Tables 

Financial Trends I - 5 

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the School 
Board's financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity 6 - 9 

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the School Board 's 

most significant local revenue sources. 

Debt Capacity 10-14 

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the afTordabilily of the 
School Board's current levels of outstanding debl and the School Board's ability to issue 
additional debt in the future. 

Demographic and Economic Information 15-16 

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand 
the environment within which the School Board's fmancial activities take 

place. 

Operating Information 17-23 

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how 
the information in the School Board's financial report relates to the services the School 
Board provides and the activities it performs. 

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these tables is derived from the comprehensive annual 
financial reports for the relevant year. The School Board implemented GASB Statement 34 m fiscal year 
2002; tables presenting government-wide information include information beginning in 
that year. 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 
LAST EIGHT FISCAL YEARS 

(accrual basis of accounting) 
(Unaudited) 

Table 1 

Govemmental activities 
Invested in capital assets, 

net of related debt 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 
2009 

$ 202,532,800 

2008 2007 

156,950,308 $ 116.801,995 

Restricted 9,619,889 11,906,700 8,571,906 

Unrestricted 19,497,09 43,596,197 101,806,253 

Total governmental activities net assets $ 241,649,780 $ 212,453,205 $ 227,180,154 

Source: Audited Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports- Information available for eight years. 
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Tabic 1 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 

$ 50,574,740 $ 24,793,097 S 38,647,118 $ 32,879,710 $ 28,978,182 

103,928,881 84,585,526 39,896,286 25,591,387 21,414,813 

41,161,091 5,431,547 43,313,303 50,944,605 52,478,589 

$ 195,664,712 $ 114,810,170 $ 121,856,707 $ 109,415,702 $ 102,871,584 
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5T. T A M M A N Y PARISH SCHOOI. BOARD 

CovinetQn. Louisiuiiu 

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 
LAST EIGHT KISCAl. YEARS 

(accrual ba&is of accDUiilin);) 
(Unaiiditctl) 

Tabic 2 

l-"iscat Year tindfd June 30, 

20U9 300S 2007 2006 

Expenses: 
Inslmction: 

Regular education proijrams 

Special cducaiioii priigrams 

Vttciilional rducaiion proginms 

Oihcr insiruciional program.s 

Spi-'cial programs 

Adull cducaiion proj^rjm.s 

Suppon services: 

Pupil suppon 

InMrucilona! siafl"suppon 

General adminisiniiiun 

School adminislralion 

Business administrauon 

Operaiion and maiiUcnancc ol'plant 

Pupil ironsponalion 

CenirBl services 

Food services 

Communily service pragrams 

Interest on long-term debt 

l'I3.6'12J25 

•'4.326.162 

5.804,5-10 

H.S«2.116 

11.243.792 

406,423 

15,700.409 

15,434.557 

7.925.766 

22.141.850 

2,609.547 

34.272.688 

31.603.396 

8.280.124 

20,628.334 

1,440,596 

11.609.204 

N9,055.'179 

75,534,213 

6.300,120 

16.302.774 

12,295,826 

469,083 

16.296.658 

16.966,498 

8.450,173 

21.729,282 

2.759.986 

37,390.691 

31.936,940 

7,908.990 

21,342,601 

1,924.210 

3.053.179 

138.511.768 

64,851,904 

5.389,435 

14.473,477 

13.309.014 
445,613 

13.717.765 

14,278.658 

6.516,328 

17,594,125 

2.339,921 

30.869,596 

24,098.253 

4.997.706 

17.884,834 

1.419.324 

5,463.807 

131.106.052 

58,457,438 
5.004.172 

n.705.74 8 

9.081.700 

488,327 

12,728,685 

12.196.812 

5.926,398 

16,862.520 

2.136.073 

34,723.672 

22.207.588 

4,187.728 

16.966.767 

1.245.429 

7,212,005 

Tuinl expenses 420.951,829 429,716.702 365,161.527 352,242,114 

Program revenues: 

Charges lor services; 

Instruction 

Food services 

Community service programs 

Operating grams and contributions 

Capital grants ar>d contribuiions 

1.528.919 

3.078.385 

1.368.615 

31.955.639 

35,401.245 

1.686.022 

3,301.946 

1,399.123 

32.521,189 

9,348,184 

190.299 

2.699.597 

1.345.698 

36.774.433 

18.733.843 

145.077 

1.785,738 
1,051,841 

72,619,891 

20,542.642 

Total program revenues 73,332,803 48,256.464 59,743.870 96.145,189 

Net expense (347.619.026) (381.460.238) (305.417,657) {256.096.925) 

General revenues and other changes 

in net assets: 

Taxes: 

Ad valorem (property) laxes 

Sales and use taxes 

Stale revenue sharing 

Grants and contributions not restricted to speciTic 

programs-Minimum Foundation Program 

Interest and investment earnings 

Insurance proceeds 

Gain on sale ofassets 

Miscellaneous 

Special item - rcsuitcmcni 

99,813.880 
77,359.837 

1.971.376 

180,116316 

4,154.856 

10.676.833 

2.722.503 

83.660,520 

84.844.401 

2,086,894 

173.501.201 

8.689,903 

54,763 
5.012,825 
8,882,782 

74,098,468 
89.280,567 

1,846,208 

154,613.755 
12,588.359 

4.505.742 

65.852,536 

91.563.744 

1,866.599 

151.506.757 

7.312,336 

18,849.495 

Total general revenues and other 

changes m net asscis 

Change in net assets 

376.815,601 

29.196,575 $ 

366,733.289 

Source: Audited Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports- Information available for eight years 

336,933,099 336.951.467 

31.515,442 J 80.854,542 
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Fable 2 

llsca! Year llnded June 30, 

2005 2004 2003 2002 

S 121.974.843 S 107.803.859 i 103.626.3.S6 J 94,895.134 

57.993.891 

4.878,106 

!3,47 1,299 

8.690,782 

636,520 

12.527.690 

12.820,958 

5.744,378 

15,672,383 

2,104,334 

24,999,855 

20.761,576 

4.757,738 

16,907,527 

1,405,781 

S. 129,25! 

333.476,912 

52.774.203 

4,470.356 

11.700.505 

6.842,357 

567,927 

11.263.233 

10.929,418 

5.159.647 

14.250.363 

1.974,375 

22.087,125 

18.227.864 

3.591.531 

14,764.947 

1.324.381 

6.835.848 

294.566,939 

47.554.331 

4.383.262 

10,836.452 

5.945,125 

643,693 

10,417,550 

9,835,320 

3,596,121 

13,559,777 

1,683,054 

19.946,780 

16,791,257 

5,461,85! 

14,061,263 

1,012,787 

7,742,775 

277.097,754 

43.764.346 

4.624.007 

8.683.473 

4.121.088 

561.205 

9.805,615 

9,809,344 

4.271.971 

12,747,955 

1.646,685 

18,261.133 

15.137.579 

2.367.639 

13,241.043 

994.973 

6,242.430 

35i.175.610 

166,710 

2,910.977 

1,137.074 

28,198.541 

725,268 

33,138,570 

220,706 

2.928,164 

1,082,352 

26.533,580 

665.308 

31.430.(tO 

211.316 

2.813.498 

813.656 

23.898.970 

790.420 

28.527.860 

208.698 

2.746.381 

778.694 

20.438,008 

752,333 

24.924. (14 

(300.338,342) (263.136.829) (248.569.894) (226.251.496) 

62.872,455 55.953,605 51.460,415 48.344.307 

65.438.272 61.162354 55.641.711 52.847.766 

t.768,679 1.804.707 1.789.692 1,799.322 

149,746.781 141,755.563 133,675,440 124,341.219 
3,726.102 1.79(1,474 2.736,513 3.499.995 

9.739,516 8.473.088 8.586.277 6,479,498 

293,291,805 270,939.791 253.890.048 237,312,107 

S (7.046,537) S 7.802.962 j 5320.154 S 11,060,611 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covintilon, Louisiana 

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(modified accrual basis of accounting) 

(Unuuditcd) 

Table 3 

Fiscal 

Year 

2009 

2008 

2007 

2006 

2005 

2004 

2003 

2002 

2001 

2000 

Reserved 

$ 

-

-

2,299 

26.597 

112,838 

270,616 

1,472,698 

564,130 

385,011 

Genera! Fund 

Unrescn'cd 

S 49,935,270 

55,784,162 

71,644,882 

61,004,094 

51,569.504 

61.368,203 

59,913.546 

55.413.409 

44.997.296 

35,452,483 

Total 

J 49,935.270 

55,784,162 

71.644.882 

61,006.393 

51,596.101 

61,481.041 

60,184.162 

56,886.107 

45,561.426 

35,837,494 

Reserved* 

S 20,075,709 

12,278.923 

8,879.573 

19.189,150 

16,313.346 

11,882,724 

25,416.604 

20,036.444 

17.477.318 

23,253.274 

All Other Governmental Funds 
Unreserved 

Reported 

in 

Special 

Revenue 

Funds 

$ 98,098.249 

94,163,582 

90,155.883 

5,750.225 

4.045.967 

4,142.996 

3,271,067 

3.308.766 

5.341,813 

4.964.726 

Unreserved 

Reported 

in 

Capital 

Projects 

Funds 

$ 86,763,714 

41,296,796 

69,749,974 

168.571,193 

68,531,666 

28,108.989 

33.375,771 

54.767,758 

30.230.701 

40,640.920 

Total 
ail other 

Govern­

mental 

Funds 

S 204,937,672 

147.739.301 

168,785,430 

193,510,568 

88.890.979 

44,134.709 

62.063,442 

78.112.968 

53,049.832 

68,858,920 

Includes Special Revenue, Capital Prajccts and Debt Service Funds. 

All fund balances in Debt Service Funds are reserved to pay future debt service. 

Source: Audited Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports. 
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ST. TAMMA.NV PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covinelon. LuuJsiana 

CHANGES IN FUND ttALANCKS OF COVERNMr.NTAL FUNDS' AND TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE 
LASTTRNRSCAt. VKARS 

(modified accninl liaiii of accoonllng) 
(Unaudilcd) 

Fiical "I'car Eindcd June 30. 
2009 20W 2004 

REVENUF^ 
Locil jourccs: 

Ad valorem taxes 
Sales and uw taxes 
Rcnials, lenses, and royBllici 

Tuiiron 
Hnminesan invcsUncnlS 
rood service 
Oihcr 

State source: 
Mininui" fcmndation program 
Coninbulions lo teachers' rciircincni 
Revenue Sharing 
Pmrcssiooal improvement projTain 
Other 

Federal sources 

lOTAI.REVENUES 

S 97.685J68 
77,35!;,R37 

1.528,919 
2.722,495 
3.076,385 
3.348.460 

80.J1(5,3!6 
48.495 

1.971.376 
369.618 

12.143.910 
62.162.333 

S 83.888.136 
93.281,812 

].68f..022 
8.689,903 
3.301,946 
1.764,267 

173.501.201 
57.059 

2.086.B94 
435,420 

10.132.502 
42,038,30K 

442,535.512 420.863,660 

S 73.870,662 
89.671.372 

1.S35.997 
12.538,359 
2.699,597 
1.849.854 

154.613.755 
64.148 

1.846.208 
498.502 

5.644.455 
50.768.367 

395.651.276 

S 65.852.536 
89,743.764 

1,196.918 
7,121.326 
1,785,738 

651.907 

151.506,757 
89.815 

1.866.599 
571.503 

9.689.458 
66.149.716 

396.226.037 

62.802.202 
65.696.266 

1.575 
1.303.784 
3.630.141 
2.910.977 

505.966 

149.746.78! 
70.494 

1.768.679 
656.198 

5.817.402 
26.066.511 

320.976.976 

55,953,605 
60.648.838 

2.580 
1.303.058 
1.741,364 
2,928.164 

939.693 

141.755.563 
68,964 

1.804.707 
742.434 

3,518.435 
25.683.677 

297.091,081 

KXPENDITUPES 
Currcnl: 

Insiniciion: 
Regular ctliicaJinn prognuru 
Spcciul education prcgrDins 
Other cducaiion proip-ams 

Suppon services: 
Pupil suppon 
Insir^ictiotifll staff suppon 
General aJrainiitration 
School administration 
Bustncis administration 
Operation and iivaijitcnuncc of plant 
Pupil transponniion 
Central services 

Food services 

Community service proKrams 
Focihtics acquisition and constniciion 
Debl service - issuance costs 
Debt service - Icpl fees 
Debt service - election expenses 
Debt service - biwd issuance costs 
Debt service • ppncipal 
fJchi scrvKc • interest 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess OF RliVENUES OVIJIt 
(UNDfiR) EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SQURC[-:S (USES) 
Paymcni to escrow aceni from rcfundini; bond proceeds 
Accmed interest on issued refunding borKls 
Premium received on bonds issued 
Bonds issued 
Federal loan proceeds 
Sales of capital flsseii 
Insurance proceeds 
Transfers oi 
Transfers out 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) 

NET CHANGE IN FU.VD BALANCES 

Debl scnice as * pereentige of 
noncapital expendllures 

Source: Audited Fiiwncial Rcpons 

133.355.707 
69.487.215 
10.231.604 

14.678.246 
14,429.702 
7,409.765 

20.700.322 
2.439.653 

32.CM1.39! 
29.545,881 
7.741.053 

19.285.342 
1.346.808 

8S.418.654 

-
1,625 
5.022 

B 1.447 
12.595.000 
8.830.790 

489.625.227 

(47.039.715) 

• 

1.432.361 
86.330.000 

10.676.833 
90.170,841 
(90.170.841) 

98.439.194 

5 51.349,479 

5.41*4 

129.525.124 
65.514.042 
30.303.249 

14.147.088 
14,733.249 
7J23.346 

18.569.821 
2.394.116 

32.268.195 
27.757.246 
6.751.697 

18.441.434 
I .67UI7 

69.455.636 

-
30,125 
58.109 
75.590 

11.805.771 
7,450.217 

458,495,272 

(37,631.613) 

670.000 

54.763 

123.228.341 
(I23J28,34I) 

724.763 

S (36.906.849) 

4.83% 

121.079.830 
61.235.517 
30,305.173 

12.962.175 
13.494.750 
6.144.633 

16.640.521 
2.209.097 

29.063.282 
22.811.347 
4.399.589 

16.785.017 
1.340.078 

54.486.930 

2U67 

13.430.000 
8.097,595 

414,497.301 

(18.846.025) 

(9.9S4.229) 

15.985.981 

14 1,962.54 J 
(H3J34.919) 

4.759,370 

S (14.086.649) 

881% 

115.457.973 
56.501.537 
35.023.846 

12.364.648 
11.779.845 
5,712.441 

16.312.057 
2.051.238 

33,411.107 
31.496.860 
3.561.031 

16.304.893 
1,204.064 

31.022.161 
1.474 

84.844 
10,405.000 
7,212.005 

369,807.024 

26,419.013 

• 

95.512 
25.000.000 
51.857.990 

. 

. 
294.168.384 

(283.511.018) 

87,610,868 

i 114.029,881 

5.08% 

107,001.159 
55.169.371 
25.922,011 

11.879.363 
12.188.898 
5.448.976 

14.920.549 
1.988,667 

23.610.626 
19.780,354 
4.046,080 

15,985.763 
1.337.877 

29.506.797 
54.543 

. 
167.442 

10.290.000 
6.651.931 

345.950.309 

(2-1.973,333) 

(36.403,800) 
237.438 
326.025 

95.690.000 

-
. 
. 

74.374.777 
(74.374.777) 

59.844.663 

J 34.871.330 

16.53% 
{continued) 

96.628.156 
51.390.529 
23.610.614 

10.915.053 
10.646 JS4 
4.806.997 

13.890J99 
1.910,530 

21.322,332 
17.786.784 
3.210.861 

14.256,670 
1.291,932 

26.079.857 
151.977 

10,140.000 
6.683.820 

313.722,385 

(16.631,804) 

(24.253.119) 
35.732 

1.133.337 
23.085.000 

. 

. 
6S,76R.331 

(65.768,331) 

(50) 

I (16.631,854) 

14.29% 
(concluded) 

http://19.285.342


î iscal Year Ended June 30. 
2000 

I 51.460.4 15 I 48,344.307 S 4S..507,4S4 S 41.293.355 
55.386.185 

2.070 
(.024.972 
2.661.276 
2.813.498 
1.013,613 

133,675.440 
73.469 

1,789,692 
SO 1.646 

4.451.834 
33.108.141 

278.291.251 

52.847.766 
3.420 

987,393 
3.350.674 
3.746.381 

787,380 

134.341,319 
114.847 

1.799.333 
885.409 

3.068.492 
19.458,830 

358.741.439 

48.795.000 
4.200 

965.985 
7.007.188 
3.638.320 

737,342 

117.743.309 
111.340 

1.802.063 
929.037 

2.964.213 
15.235.933 

244.541,384 

47.551.3M 
18.767 

983.418 
6.795.101 
2.667.743 

776.631 

112.824.230 
132.408 

1.753.710 
1.018.771 
3.773J47 

14.530,089 

233.118.813 

93.686.712 
46.364.165 
30,891.722 

10,108.090 
9,596.066 
3.490.843 

13.240.897 
1,630.206 

19.275.397 
16.418.519 
5.143.488 

13.581.850 
975.835 

19.107.874 
63.585 

31.893.097 
42.333.515 
17.080.918 

9.435.494 
9.483.156 
4,131.871 

13.363.908 
1.582.030 

17.528.724 
N.703.637 
3.208.452 

12,687.021 
964.365 

23.808.299 
13,335 

S a 1.795.569 
37.450.483 
14,905,390 

3.574.646 
8,604.165 
3.764.886 

10.914.896 
1.586,630 

17.092,972 
13.239.045 
1.813.426 

11.946.216 
856.772 

22,391.824 

75 133 431 
.16 133.976 
13.8.14,443 

B.I85.77B 
8.691.031 
3.638.918 

10,890.055 
1,486,139 

14,958.112 
12,177.622 
1,942.967 

11,165.557 
919.064 

16.106.559 

-

10.170.000 8.965.000 9.065.000 8.680.000 
7.679,190 6.226,791 6.624,593 7.118.545 

290.484.434 266.387,613 250.626.513 231.042.197 

(13.193.183) (7,046.174) (6.085.139) 3.076.636 

(14.135.0001 (3.417.394) 
2IJ84 17,866 

13.185.000 47.410.000 

62J94.287 59.051.561 52.138.803 50.339.103 
(62.594.287) (59.051.561) (52.138 803) (50.3.19.103) 

(918.416) 44.010.572 

S (13.111.599) S 36.364J9a S 16.083.129) 5 3.076,636 

7 58% 6 87% 7 35% 



ST. TAMMANV PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OK T.\XABLE PROPERTY 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(Unaudited) 

Table 5 

Kisca) 
Ywir 

2009 

200S 

2007 

2006 

2005 

2004 

2O03 

2002 

2001 

2000 

Real Esiaie 
Ascsscd 
Value 

$ 1.420,237,736 

1,244,467.016 

1.131.583.88! 

1.039.413,980 

1.05I.2S2.371 

825.090,572 

765.553,876 

721.944.949 

677.730.005 

615.274.982 

•Actual Valuation (Market Value) 

Commercial and 
Other Propeny 

Assessed 
Value 

S 530,052,013 

285,489.975 

261.141.810 

249.263.960 

239.661.039 

224.343.887 

215.754.926 

203.625,498 

193.753.558 

178,671.405 

Assciscd 
Value 

Esiimaied Aciual 
Value 

Parish orSl.TammaMY 

$ 1.960,289,749 

1,529,956,991 

1.392.725,691 

1.288.677,940 

1.290.943,410 

1.049.434.259 

98l.3O8,«02 

925.570.447 

871.483.563 

793,946.38? 

as CoiriDared to Assessed Valuation 

S 17,836,057,447 

15,000,610.610 

13,056.784.210 

11,293.390.938 

11.361,552.884 

9.237.034,865 

8.619.853.365 

8.043.876.643 

7.872,082.277 

7.159,968.947 

Tolal 
Dircci 

Tax Rate 

69.45 

77.84 

77.84 

77.84 

74,59 

87.10 

87.10 

87,10 

87.10 

87.10 

Ratio of Tolal Assessed 
Value lo Total (taiimaied 

Aciual Value" 

10.99% 

10.20% 

10.67% 

11.41% 

11.36% 

11 36% 

11.38% 

11.51% 

11.07% 

11.09% 

Residential propcnics are assessed ai lO%ofrairmarkel value; other property and electric cooperative piijperties, excluding land, 
arc to be as,sesscd at 15%; and public service properties, cxchiding land, are to be assessed al 25% of fair market value. 
The overall assessed value is estimated to be 11 % of actual market value. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOI. BOARD 
Covlngtuii. LouKiaiia 

PRINCH'AL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS 
CURRKNT YKAR AND NINE YEARS AGO 

(Unnuditcd) 

Table 6 

June 30,2009 Jure 30. 2000 

Ta.\payer 

Ceniral I J . Klcclric Co. 

BcllSoiilh 'lelecommunication? 

Capital One Rank 

J.P, Morgan Chase Bank 

Verizon Wireless 

Whitney Nationol Bank 

AT&T Mobility 

Washington St Tammany Electric 

Stirling Mandeviile 

Central Prourtssive Bank 

Bank One Manaijcmeni 

Hibcmia Naiional Bank 

l A Gas Service Co, 

Southern Naiuml Gas 

Hp'rC Development 

McKesson Corp. 

Type of Business 

Uliliiy 

Telephone 

B.I Ilk 

Bank 

Telephone 

Bank 

Tck;phDiie 

Utility 

Real Estate 

Dank 

Bank 

Bank 

UUIity 

[Jlilily 

Real Hstalc 

llcaltticarv 

Assessed 
Valuation 

S .17 J98.500 

!9.7.M.'33n 

1 1.1 1 1.010 

7.3'13.26n 

5.9I9.0:0 

5.909.55'! 

5.746.V'15 

5,359.600 

5.057.275 

4.994.620 

-

-

S IOS.571.714 

Rank 

i 

• > 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

Perce nta[;e 

of Total 

Assessed 
Valuation 

2.56 % 

1.35 

0 76 

0.50 

0 40 

0.40 

0,39 

0.37 

0,35 

0.34 

7,42 Vo 

ASSCSSCLI 

Valuation 

S 27.645.9ff0 

20.144.380 

-

2.935.810 

-

3.496,470 

8.681.170 

8.956.070 

3.920.600 

2.832.160 

3.574.130 

3.708.080 

$ 85.894.850 

Rank 

1 

• > 

9 

8 

10 

6 

I'erccniaue 

ofToial 
A«e£scil 

Valuation 

5 86 % 

4,27 

0.62 

0 74 

t 90 

1 34 

0 83 

0.60 

0.76 

0.79 

18.21 % 

( I ) Source. St, Tammany Ponsh Assessor's Oflicc 

http://27.645.9ff0


ST. TAMMAJVy PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covineton, Louisiana 

PROPERTY TAX RATES - DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS 

Year 

2009 

2008 

2007 

2006 

2005 

2004 

2003 

2002 

2001 

2000 

School Board 
Millage 

69.45 

77.84 

77.84 

77.84 

74.59 

87.10 

87.10 

87.10 

87.10 

87.10 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

Parish 
Millage 

Other Governments 
(Parishwide) 

Law 
Enforcement 

Millage 
Assessor 
Millage 

RATE PER $ 1,000 OF ASSESSED VALUE 

20.74 

19.54 

23.05 

23.05 

19.74 

15.74 

19.05 

19.05 

19.05 

18.66 

11.73 

12.10 

10.72 

10.72 

10.72 

12.94 

12.94 

12.94 

12.94 

12.94 

2.73 

3.21 

2.66 

2.66 

2.66 

3.21 

3.21 

3.21 

3.00 

3.05 

Table 7 

City of 
Abita Springs 

Millage 

16.86 

16.86 

16.86 

16.86 

17.86 

17.86 

17.86 

17.86 

15.72 

15.72 

(continued) 
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Table 7 

City ot 
Covington 

Millage 

23.04 

24.27 

24.27 

20.18 

20.18 

24.15 

24.15 

24.15 

24.15 

24.55 

Other Governments 
(Parishwide) 

City of 
Madisonville 

Millage 

City of 
Mandeviile 

Millage 

City of 
Peari River 

Millage 

RATE PER SKOOO OF ASSESSED VALUE 

8.59 

11.6.i 

10.51 

10.51 

n .63 

1L63 

.1.63 

11.63 

11.63 

11.52 

16.07 

17.29 

17.39 

17.59 

17.64 

19.75 

20.25 

16.30 

16.40 

16.80 

Source: St. Tammany Parish Assessor's Office. 

9.67 

10.00 

10.00 

10.00 

10.00 

10.00 

10.00 

10.00 

5.83 

5.83 

City of 
Slidell 
Millage 

27.82 

30.98 

30.21 

30.21 

31.59 

34.15 

34.58 

34.64 

34.79 

36.25 

(Concluded) 
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S r . TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Coving(on. Louisiana 

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(Unaudited) 

Table 8 

Fiscal 
Year 

2009 

2008 

2007 

2006 

2005 

2004 

2003 

2002 

2001 

2000 

Total Tax Le\'y 

$ 101,529,080 

85,059,132 

75,718,411 

68,770,656 

64,835.951 

57,680,678 

53.110,286 

49,560.110 

46,310.731 

41.120,255 

Current Tax 
Collections 

$ 95,833,849 

82,325,377 

73,292,028 

66,288,648 

62,465,018 

55.662.237 

51,074,450 

47,180,514 

44.240.854 

39,759,869 

Percent 
of Lc\7 

Collected 

94.4 

96.8 

96.8 

964 

96.3 

96.5 

96.2 

95.2 

95.5 

96.7 

Collections F- r 
Prior Years 

% 1,851,519 

1,317,8:2 

325.200 

1.618.838 

337,184 

1,171,755 

1,266.600 

1,163.793 

337,184 

1.532.486 

Total 
Collections 

S 97,685,368 

83,643,199 

73,617,228 

67,907.486 

62,802.202 

56,833.992 

52,341,050 

48.344.307 

44.578,038 

41,292.355 

Ratio of Total 
Collections to 

Ta:< : Levy 

96.2 

98.3 

97.2 

98.7 

96.9 

98.5 

98.6 

97.5 

96.3 

1004 

Sources: St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office anci the St. Tammany Parish School Board Business Affairs 

Department. 

Note: The St. Tammany Parish Tax Collector, which is the St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office, is unable to 
provide information on which year the prior year taxes are for. 
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ST TAMMAJVY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

SALES TAX REVENUE 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(Unaudited) 

Source: Audited Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports. 

Table 9 

Fiscal 
Year 

2009 

2008 

2007 

2006 

2005 

2004 

2003 

2002 

2001 

2000 

1% 
Sales Tax 

1966 

$ 38,661,896 

46,640,906 

44,835,686 

44,871,882 

32,848,133 

30,324,419 

27,693,092 

26,423,883 

24,397,800 

23,775,657 

1% 
Sales Tax 

1977 

% 38,697,941 

46,640,906 

44,835,686 

44,871,882 

32,848,133 

30,324,419 

27,693,093 

26,423,883 

24,397,800 

23,775,657 

Total 
Sales 
Tax 

77,359,837 

93,281,812 

89,671,372 

89,743,764 

65,696,266 

60,648,838 

55,386,185 

52,847,766 

48,795,600 

47,551,314 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(Unaudited) 

Tabic 10 

Fiscal 
Year 

2009 

2008 

2007 

2006 

2005 

2004 

2003 

2002 

2001 

2000 

General 
Obligation Bonds 

$ 236,920,000 

163.185.000 

174,320.771 

195.840.000 

179.495.QQQ 

127.035,000 

135,610,000 

143.820.000 

106.550.000 

113.520,000 

Revenue 
Bonds and 

Notes 

S 

' 

1.855,000 

3.605,000 

5.255.000 

6,820,000 

8,885,000 

10.335,000 

11,690.000 

Federal Di>iastcr 
Loans 

$ 67.843.971 

67,843,971 

67.843.971 

52,287.875 

-

-

-

-

-

Ccrtificales of 
Indebtedness 

$ 

-

-

-

-

-

835.000 

1,625.000 

2,365,000 

Total Debt 

S 304,763.97) 

231.028.971 

242.164,742 

249,982,875 

183,100,000 

132.290,000 

142,430,000 

153,540.000 

118,510,000 

127,575,000 

CO 
percentage of 

Personal 
Income 

(2) 

2 32% 

3.11% 

4.02% 

2.61% 

2.01% 

2.28% 

2.60% 

2.21% 

2.52% 

{1} 

Debt Per Capita 

S 1.305 

1,001 

i.069 

1,135 

R71 

654 

707 

794 

620 

689 

Note: Details regarding the School System's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the basic financial statements. 

(1) See the Schedule of Demographic Statistics. Table 14, for personal income and population data. 

(2) Information not available. 
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ST. T A M M A N V PARISH SCHOOL nOAR]) 

Covlnglon, Louisiana 

RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(Unaudited) 

Tabic I I 

Fiscal 

Year 

3009 

2003 

2007 

2006 

2005 

2004 

2003 

2002 

2001 

2000 

General 

Obliyaiion 

Honds 

S 236.920.000 

163,185.000 

174,320,771 

195.840.000 

179.495,000 

127.035,000 

135.610.000 

M 3.820.000 

106.550.000 

113,520,000 

Revenue 

Bonds and 
NniL-s 

S 

-

1.855,000 

3.605,000 

5.255,000 

6.820,000 

8.885.0(JO 

10,335,000 

1! ,690.000 

R-dL-rai 

Disasicr \xn\ni 

$ 67.843.971 

67.843.971 

67,843.971 

52,287,875 

• 

-

-

-

. 

CtnificalcK of 

Indcbictlneas 

i 

• 

-

-

-

835,000 

1,625,000 

2.365.000 

Total llcbi 

$ 304,763.97! 

231.028.971 

242,164,742 

249,982,875 

183.100,000 

132,290,000 

142,430.000 

153,540.000 

118,510,000 

127.575.000 

(1) 

[>cbi Per 

Capita 

S 1.305 

i.OO! 

1,069 

i.!35 

871 

654 

707 

794 

620 

689 

(1) 

Debl Per 
s hid cm 

S 8.494 

6.504 

6,861 

7,130 

4,987 

3.757 

4.133 

4,67 t 

3,626 

3.926 

(2) 

PorccnlayL' ol 
Total Debl to 

Assessed 
value 

15,55% 

!5.10% 

17.39% 

19 40% 

14 18% 

12.61% 

14.51% 

16,59% 

13.60% 

16 07% 

Percentage of 

Toial Debt to 

i;siirnated 
Acuial Value 

1.71% 

! 54% 

1.85% 

2.21% 

! 6 1 % 

1.43% 

1.65% 

1,91% 

1 51% 

1 -78% 

Note. Details regarding ihc School System's ouisianding debt can be found in the notes to the busic financial siatcmenls. 

(1) Sec ihc Schedule of Dcmoijraphic Statistics. Table 14, Tor personal income and population and siudeni daln. 

(2) Sec the Schedule orAsscised Value and lisiimaied Actual Value oriaxablc Properly. Table 5. for assessed value data and aciual value. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN 

L.-VSTTENTAX VEARS 

(2000 througli 2009) 

(Unaudited) 

Table 12 

Year 

2009 

2008 

2007 

2006 

2005 

2004 

2003 

2002 

2001 

2000 

Assessed 

Value (2) 

$ 1,960,289,749 

1.529,956,991 

!.392.725,691 

1,288,677.940 

1.290.943,410 

1.049.434,259 

98I.479.32S 

925,592,937 

871,483.563 

793,946,387 

Debt Limit orTTiirty-
FivcPca;entf35%)of 
Assessed Value (1) 

I 686,101.412 : 

535.484.947 

487.453.992 

451.037.279 

451.830.194 

367.301.991 

343,517.765 

323.957.528 

305,019.247 

277.881.235 

Less; Total 
Bonded 
Debt(3) 

Parish of SI Tan 

S 236.920.000 

163,185,000 

174,320.771 

195.840,000 

179.495.000 

127,035.000 

135.610.000 

143,820.000 

106.550.000 

113,520.000 

Add: Amount 

available for 

repayment of debt (3) 

imanv 

% 19,619.889 

11,906.700 

8,571.906 

18.927.228 

16.053.860 

9.986.456 

8.923.505 

9.302.207 

7.629.613 

7,230.791 

Legal 

Debt 
Margin 

S 468,801.301 

384,206.647 

321.705.127 

274.124,507 

288,389.054 

250,253.447 

216,831.270 

189,439.735 

206.098,860 

171.592.026 

Legal Debt Limit 

as a % of the 
Debt Limit 

68,33% 

71,75% 

66.00% 

60,78% 

63,83% 

68.13% 

63.12% 

58.48% 

67.57% 

61.75% 

Sources: 
(1) Legal debt limit of35% is established by Louisiana Revised Statute Title 39. Section 562, 

(2) See the Schedule of Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property, Table 5, for assessed value data. 

(3) Coitiprehensivc Armual Financial Reports. 
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ST. TAMMA.NV PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covinuton, Louisiana 

COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT 
JUNE 30. 2009 

(Unaudited) 

Table 13 

Gross Debt 
Outstanding 

Percentage 
Applicable 

Share of Overlapping 
Debt 

Direct 
St. Tammany Parish School Board $ 304,763.971 00.00% 163,185,000 

Overlapping Debf 
City of Abita Springs 
City of Covington 
City of Mandeviile 
City of Slidell 
Fire Protection Districts 
Gravity Drainage District No. 5 
Sub-drainage Districts 
Communnication District No I 
Recreation Districts 
Sewage Districts 
Water District No. 2 
Parish Council 

1,109,310 
13,290,900 
6.015.000 

18,240,975 
14,858,529 
2,090,000 

620,000 
480,000 

25,092,000 
824,880 

1,240.000 
110,355,219 

100.00% 
100.00% 
100.00% 
100.00% 
100.00% 
100.00% 
100.00% 
100.00% 
100.00% 
100.00% 
100.00% 
100.00% 

1.109,310 
6.646,000 
6,015.000 

18,240,975 
14.858.529 
2.090.000 

620,000 
480.000 

25,092,000 
824,880 

1,240,000 
110,355,219 

194.216,813 187,571,913 

TOTAL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT $ 498.980,784 350,756,913 

Source: Comprehensive Annual Report and most current financial statements for each governmental entity. 

Overlapping governments are those that coincide at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the parish. This process recognizes 
thai, when considering the government's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and 
businesses should be taken into account. However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for 
repaying the debt, of each overlapping govemment. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
PLEDGED - REVENUE COVERAGE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(UNAUDITED) 

Sales Tax Bonds 

Table 14 

Fiscal 
Year 

Sales 
Taxes 

Debt Service 
Principal Interest Coverage 

2000 $ 47,551,314 $ 1,270,000 $ 712,800 23.98 

200 48,795,600 1,355,000 642,950 24.42 

2002 52,847,766 8,885,000 568,425 5.59 

2003 55,386,185 6,065,000 488,675 8.45 

2004 60.648,838 1,565,000 375,100 31.26 

2005 65,696,266 1,650,000 289,025 33.! 

2006 89,743,764 1,750,000 98,275 46.06 

2007 89.671,372 1.855,000 76,105 46.44 

2008 93,281,812 0.00 

2009 77,359,837 0.00 

NOTE: Details regarding the School Board's outstanding debt can be found 
in the notes to the financial statements. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Fiscal Year 

2000 

200! 

2002 

2003 

2004 

2005 

2006 

2007 

2008 

2009 

Note: 

(0 

(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

Population (I) 

185,273 

I91,26« 

193.466 

201,462 

202,203 

210,296 

220,295 

226,625 

230,846 

233,475 

All information is 

Covington, Louisiana 

DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(Unaudited) 

Total Personal 
hicome (1) 

S 5,063,841,000 

5,358.891,000 

5,898,786,000 

6,234,985,000 

6,565,576,000 

7,027,647,000 

6,214,212,000 

7,794.222,000 

9,973,932,276 

(2) 

parishwide. 

Per Capita 
Personal 

Income (1) 

$ 26,245 

27,859 

30.097 

30,899 

31,639 

32,886 

28.270 

34,760 

43,206 

(2) 

Sources: 
St. Tammany Parish Economic Development Foundation. 

Information is not available at this time. 

Estimates - Louisiana Tech University for the U.S. Bureau 

Median 
Age (3) 

36 

36 

36 

35 

35 

35 

35 

37 

37 

37 

of Census. 

St. Tammany Parish School System - May 1, 2008 enrollment. 

Louisiana Department of Labor. 

Public 
School 

Enrollment 
(4) 

32,495 

32,680 

32,870 

34,463 

35,214 

36,718 

35,061 

35.294 

35,523 

35,878 

Table 15 

Unemployment 
Rate (5) 

2.5 

3.5 

4.5 

4.4 

4.5 

3.9 

4.2 

4.0 

2.9 

3,5 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS 

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO 
(UNAUDITED) 

2009 

Table 16 

2000 

Employer 

% of Total % of Total 
St. Tammany St. Tammany 

Parish Parish 
Location limployecs Rank Employment Employees Rank^ Employment 

St- Tammany Pari.sh School Board 

St. Tammany Parish Hospital 

Slidell Memorial Hospital 

Lakeview Regional Medical Center 

St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office 

Textron Marine & Land Systems 

Southeast Louisiana Hospital 

Northshore Regional Medical Medical Ce Covington 

City of Slidell 

Louisiana Medical Center & Heart 

Slidell Memorial Hospital 

Southeast Louisiana Hospital 

City of Slidell 

Goux Enterprises/Goux Health Care 

St, Tammany Parish Govemment 

Slidell/Covingtoi 

Covington 

Siidcll 

Covington 

Parishwide 

Slidell 

Mandeviile 

Covington 

Slidell 

I^combe 

7,716 

1,684 

1,008 

745 

734 

621 

480 

448 

394 

213 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

6.66% 

1.45% 

0.87% 

0.64% 

0.63% 

0.54% 

0.41% 

0.39% 

0.34% 

0.18% 

4,227 

811 

589 

539 

513 

-

-

-

1 

3 

4 

6 

7 

-

-

-

4.60% 

0.88% 

0.64% 

0,59% 

0.56% 

-

-

-

Slidell 

Mandeviile 

Slidell 

Mandeviile 

Parish wide 

TOTAL - 10 LARGEST EMPLOYERS 

TOTAL - ALL EMPLOYERS 

NOTE: Information listed is for St. Tammany Parish. 

14,043 12.12% 

115,856 

957 

578 

337 

299 

297 

9,147 

2 

5 

8 

9 

10 

1.04% 

0.63% 

0.37% 

0.33% 

0.32% 

9.96% 

91,839 

Sources: 
2009 information: Book of Lists 2008-2009, New Oricans City Business 
2000 information: Book of Lists 1999-2000, New Oricans City Business 
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"Marsh Beauty" 
Claire Roberts - Grade 6 
Robin Kennedy - Teacher 
Mandeviile Middle School 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOl- BOARD 
Covington. Louisiana 

GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(modified accrual basis of accounting) 
(Unaudited) 

Table 17 

Fiscal Yeai Ended June 30, 

EXPENDITURES 
Curreni 
Instruction; 

Regular education programs 

Special cducaiion piograins 

Other education programs 

Suppon scr\'iccs: 
Pupil support 

(nstruciional staff support 

General adniiniiitration 

School administralion 

Business administration 

Operation and maintenance of plant 

Pupil transportation 

Central services 

Food Service 

Community Service Programs 

Facility acquisition and construction 

TotaJ 

2009 2008 

$ 130.207.662 S 125.334,360 ! 

38 5% 38 5% 

63.837.725 
18.9% 

19.483,249 
5.8% 

13,034.102 
3.9% 

11.454,83] 
3.4% 

5,310.519 

1.6% 

20,700,136 

6.1% 

2.439.653 
0.7% 

31.501.168 

9.3% 

29.398,044 
8.7% 

7.685.796 

2.3% 

2.824.364 
0.8% 

42.226 
0,0% 

498.371 
0.1% 

J 338,417,846 5 

60.639.649 

18,6% 

(9,534,808 

6,0% 

12.517,677 
3,8% 

11,172,252 

3.4% 

5.468,199 

1.7% 

18.860.194 

5,8% 

2,394.116 

0.7% 

32.005,941 
9.8% 

37.577.394 

8,5% 

6,751.697 

2.1% 

3.000.253 
0.9% 

44,254 
0.0% 

550.755 
0-2% 

; 325,851,549 5 

2007 

i 116.533.437 1 

39.9% 

55.207.855 

18.9% 

!ff.059.434 

6.2% 

11,341.485 
3.9% 

9.966,612 

3.4% 

4,481.066 
1.5% 

16,391,966 

5.6% 

2.209,097 

0.8% 

27,668,889 
9.5% 

22.643.116 
7.7% 

4.395.586 

1.5% 

2,887,032 
1.0% 

43.817 

0,0% 

569.187 
0.2% 

2006 

i 107.681,928 S 

40,1% 

52,170.569 

19 4% 

15.503.672 

5.8% 

10.761,158 

4,0% 

8.605^18 

3.2% 

3,941.547 

1.5% 

15,635.798 
5.8% 

2.051,238 

0 8% 

24.166.782 
9.0% 

21,381.303 
8.0% 

3.551,372 

1.3% 

2.890.212 
1.1% 

41.598 
0.0% 

429.498 
0,2% 

2005 

, 104,174.09! 

39,7% 

51.107,095 
19.5% 

16.645.679 

6.3% 

10,497.568 

4,0% 

9,483,692 

3.6% 

3,919,232 

1.5% 

14,873.424 

5.7% 

1.988,667 

0.8% 

23,348.511 
8,9% 

19,637.903 
7,5% 

4.046.080 
1,5% 

2,414.169 
0.9% 

45,091 

0.0% 

383,153 
0.1% 

; 292,398.579 S 268,811.893 S 262.564.355 

Pupi I count - October I * (1) 

Average expenditures per pupil 

35.878 35.523 35.294 35,061 

S 9.432 S 9.173 S 8.285 $ 7,667 

36,718 

$ 7,151 

* The enroflmcnl date for fiscal year 2006 is May Isl Due to the Hurricanes Katrina and Rita, die Slate changed the 

official count dale for those years. 

Source: Audited financial statements. 

(I) Source. Table 13 

(continued) 
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Tabic 17 

)-"i.sca) Year landed June 30. 

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 

93,858,083 S 
39.6% 

46,795.764 
19.7% 

14,908.551 

6,3% 

9,661.638 
4 ,1% 

8,484.073 
3.6% 

3,580,826 
1.5% 

13.364.291 

5 6% 

1.910.530 
0 8% 

21.078.588 
8.9% 

17.443.710 
7 4% 

3.210.861 
1 4% 

2.114,503 
0.9% 

43,717 
0.0% 

492,262 
0.2% 

; 90.394.429 S 

40.6% 

42,786.317 

19.2% 

13.749,879 

6.2% 

9.041,397 
4,1 % 

7.608.052 

3.4% 

2.625.116 
1.2% 

12.727.501 

5 7% 

1.630,206 • 

0 7% 

19.049.667 

8,6% 

15,814,159 

7 1% 

5.143.488 
2.3% 

1,885,929 

0,8% 

42.436 

0.0% 

205,627 
0.1% 

; St.623.426 i 

40.6% 

39.304.082 

19,5% 

12.082,853 

6,0% 

8.431.597 

4.2% 

7.463.799 

3 7% 

3,027.343 

1.5% 

11,896,939 

5,9% 

1.582.030 

0,8% 

17,333.312 
8.6% 

14.270.323 
7.1% 

2,208.452 
1.1% 

1,641.058 
0,8% 

42.604 

0.0% 

197,401 
0 .1% 

; 80.263,966 5 

42,3% 

35,661.404 

18.8% 

10.992.005 
5.8% 

7,665,798 

4.0% 

6,560,117 

3 5% 

2.772.849 

1 5% 

10,901,678 
5.7% 

1.586.630 

0 8% 

16.917.530 
8 9% 

13.088.088 
6.9% 

1.813,426 
1 0% 

1,441,995 

0,8% 

40,758 
0.0% 

223,103 
0.1 % 

; 73.7S5.154 

41.6% 

34.445,565 

19,4% 

9.878,663 
5,6% 

7.352.035 
4,1% 

6.703,377 

3,8% 

2.650.489 

1 5% 

10.890.055 

6 1% 

1,486.139 

0,8% 

14.789,523 
8 3% 

12.008.109 

6 8% 

1,942.967 
1 1% 

1,102.879 

0 6% 

43,751 
0,0% 

385,336 
0,2% 

S 236,947.697 5 222.704.203 S 201,105,219 S 189,929,347 I 177,464,042 

35.214 34,463 32.870 32.680 32.495 

S 6.729 S 6,462 J 6,1 18 $ 5,812 S 5,461 

(concluded) 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Coyinelon, Louisiana 

GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION PER PUPIL 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(modified accrual basis of accounting) 
(Unaudited) 

Tabic 18 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 
2009 1008 2007 2006 2005 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 
Instruction: 

Regular education programs 

Special education programs 

Other education programs 

Suppon services: 
Pupil suppon 

Instructional staff support 

Genera! admmistraiion 

School administralion 

Business adminislralion 

Operation and maintenance ofplant 

Pupil transportation 

Central services 

Food Service 

Community Service Programs 

Facility acquisition and construction 

Total 

Pupil couni - October 1 * (1) 

s 

s 

3.629 S 

38 5% 

1.779 S 

18 9% 

543 

5.8% 

363 

3.9% 

319 

3.4% 

148 

1.6% 

577 

6.1% 

68 

0.7% 

878 

9.3% 

819 

8.7% 

214 

2,3% 

79 

0 8% 

1 
0 0% 

14 

0 .1% 

9,432 $ 

3,528 $ 

38.5% 

1.707 

18 6% 

550 

6 0% 

352 

3 8% 

315 

3 4% 

154 

1,7% 

531 

5,8% 

67 

0.7% 

901 

9.8% 

776 

8.5% 

190 

2 .1% 

84 

0 9% 

I 

0.0% 

16 

0.2% 

9,173 $ 

3.302 S 
39.9% 

1,564 

18,9% 

512 

6.2% 

321 

3 9% 

282 

3 4% 

127 

1,5% 

464 

5.6% 

63 

0.8% 

784 

9.5% 

642 

7.7%, 

125 

J. 5% 

82 

1 0% 

1 

O.Q% 

16 

0 2% 

8.285 S 

3.071 $ 

40 1% 

1.488 

19 4% 

442 

5.8% 

307 

4.0% 

245 

3.2% 

112 

1.5% 

446 

5,8% 

59 

0 8% 

689 

9,0% 

610 

8,0% 

101 

} J % 

82 

1.1%. 

I 
0 0% 

12 

0.2%. 

7.667 S 

2,837 

39,7% 

1,392 

19 5% 

453 

6.3% 

286 

4,0% 

258 

3.6% 

107 

1.5% 

405 

5 7% 

54 

0.8% 

636 

8 9% 

535 

7.5% 

110 

i ,5% 

66 
0 9% 

1 

0,0% 

10 
0 1% 

7,150 

35,878 

* The enrollment dale for fiscal years for 2006 were May Isl. 
changed the fficial count date for diis year. 

Source: Audited financial statements, 

(1) Source: Table 13 

35,523 35.294 35.061 

Due to Hurrioanes Katrina and Rita, the State 

36,7 l i 

(continued) 
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Table. 18 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 

s 

$ 

2.665 S 
39.6% 

1.329 

19 8% 

423 

6.3% 

274 

4,1% 

241 

3.6% 

102 

1,5% 

380 

5 6% 

54 

0.8% 

599 

8,9% 

495 
7,4% 

91 

1 4% 

60 
0,9% 

1 
0,0% 

14 
0 2% 

6,728 S 

2.623 $ 
40.6% 

1,242 

|9 2% 

399 

6.2% 

262 

4 1% 

221 
3 4% 

76 

1.2% 

369 
5,7% 

47 

0.7% 

553 

8.6% 

459 

7.!% 

149 

2,3% 

55 
0 9% 

1 
0.0% 

6 

0.1% 

6,462 S 

2.483 5 
40 6% 

1.196 

19.5% 

368 
6.0% 

257 

4.2% 

227 
3.7% 

92 

1 5% 

362 

5.9% 

48 

0,8% 

527 

8.6% 

434 
7 1% 

67 

I 1% 

50 

o,a% 

1 
0 0% 

6 
0,1% 

6.118 S 

2.456 S 

42.3% 

1.091 

18,8% 

336 

5 8% 

235 

4.0% 

201 

3,5% 

85 

1 5% 

334 

5.7% 

49 

0,8% 

518 
8,9% 

400 
6.9% 

55 
1 0% 

44 

0,8%. 

1 
0.0% 

7 

0.1% 

5.812 

2.271 

4 1 (>% 

1.060 

J 9 .4% 

304 

5,6% 

226 

4 . 1 % 

206 

3.8*5:. 

8'' 

l,.^/o 

3,-55 

6 ; % 

46 

c,8% 

455 

8.3% 

370 
6,8% 

60 
1.1% 

34 
0 6% 

I 
0.0% 

12 

0.2% 

5,462 

35.214 34.463 32.S70 32.680 32,495 
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ST. TAMMANY PARJSH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington. Louisiana 

BOARD MKIViBERS' COMPENSATION 
JUNE 30, 2009 

(Unaudircd) 

Table 19 

Name 

Ray A. Alfred 

Mary K. Bellisario 

Ronald "Ron" Bettencourtt 

Michael J. Dirmann 

Charles T. Harrell 

Elizabeth B. Heintz 

Neal Hennegan 

Carmen H. Johnson 

Michael J. Gambrell 

John C. Lamarque 

Stephen J. "Jack" Loup, in 

Sorola "Jody" Palmer 

James "Ronnie" Panks, Sr. 

Donald J. Villere 

Robert R. "Bob" Womack 

Daniel G. Zechenelly 

Comp', 
Bast 

$ 

$ 

-nsation 

-'(1) 

9,600 

^,600 

',600 

9 600 

9 :)00 

9,c00 

10,200 

5.7 

3,880 

10,20(^ 

9,600 

9,600 

9,600 

9,600 

9,600 

9,600 

145,200 

Additional 
Compensation 

S 

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

$ 

Total 

$ 9,600 

9,600 

9,600 

9,600 

9,600 

9,600 

10,200 

5,720 

3,S80 

10,200 

4,800 

9,600 

9,600 

9.600 

4,800 

9,600 

$ 135,600 

Notes: 

(1) Base compensation per member is $800 per month. 

(2) Presiding President of the Board receives $900 per month in base compensation. 

(3) Carmen Johnson resigned in February 2009 and was rcpla-.cd by Michael Gambrell. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

FULL-TIME EOUiVALENTS fFTE) EMPLOYEES 

LAST TEN FISCAL VEARS 
(Unaudited) 

Table 20 

Fiscal Year 

Regular Employees: CERTIFICATED 
Instructional: 

Supcirising Intructors 

Classroom Teachers - Regular Programs 
Classroom Teachers - Special Education 
Classroom Teachers - Vocational Education 

Classroom Teachers 
Classroom Teachers 
Classroom Teachers 
Classroom Teachers 

Other Instructional Programs 
Special Programs 
Adult/Continuing Ed Programs 
Cormnunity College Programs 

Tolal Classroom Teachers 

Th crap is t/Spccia list/Counselor - Instructional Programs 

Sabbatical Leave - Instructional Programs 

Total Certifcated - Instructional Progams 

2009 

1.767 
596 

65 
111 
75 
3 

2008 2007 2006 2005 

1,752 
588 

66 
114 
80 

3 

1.699 
574 

68 
152 
76 

3 

L651 
581 

68 
150 
78 

3 

1,652 
620 

68 
154 
75 

3 

2,617 

131 

40 

2,788 

2,603 

131 

28 

2,762 

2,572 

129 

39 

2.740 

2,531 

123 

24 

2,678 

2,572 

128 

27 

2,727 

Instructional Support: 
Supervi.sors - Instructional Support Functions 
Librarians/Media-based Teachers/Staff Instructors - Inslr Spt 
Therapist/Spccialist/Counselor- Instructional Support Functions 
Sabbatical Leave - Instructional Support Functions 

Total Certificated - Instructional Support 

37 
67 

155 
1 

260 

41 
67 

143 
3 

254 

50 
67 

141 
4 

262 

55 
55 

136 
1 

247 

30 
58 

137 
3 

228 

Support Services: 
Superintendents 
Assistant/Associate/Deputy Superintendents 
School Principals 
School Assistant Principals 
Other School Adminisnrators 
Non-Classroom Teachers - Support Services 
Sabbatical Leave - Support Services 

Total Certicated - Support Services 

Total Certificated 

1 
3 

55 
78 

1 
3 
53 
74 

1 
3 
53 
69 

1 
3 
52 
64 

1 
3 
53 
63 

-
137 

3,185 

2 
133 

3,149 

1 
127 

3.129 

I 
121 

3,046 

3 
123 

3.078 

(continued) 
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Table 20 

Fiscal Year 
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 

1,706 

601 
67 
69 
57 
3 

2,503 

125 
27 

2,655 

24 
57 
139 
4 

224 

1 
2 
52 
59 

1,643 

567 
67 
70 
58 
3 

2,408 

125 
35 

2,568 

25 
56 
131 
4 

216 

1 
3 
53 
57 

1.579 

523 
73 
67 
39 
3 

2,284 

122 
38 

2,444 

24 
54 
126 
5 

209 

1 
2 
52 
56 

1,568 

459 
74 
64 
37 
3 

2.205 

184 
44 

2.433 

22 
56 
123 
4 

205 

1 
2 
51 
53 

1,556 

508 
76 
54 
37 
3 

2,234 

125 
66 

2.425 

23 
56 
122 
6 

207 

I 
2 
51 
50 

2 
116 

2,995 

1 
115 

2,899 

1 
112 

2.765 

-
107 

2,745 

3 
107 

2,739 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

FULL-TIME EOUIVALENTS (FTE) EMPLOYEES 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(Unaudited) 
(Continued) 

Table 20 

Regular Employees: NON-CERTIFICATED 

Instructional: 

2009 

Fiscal Year 

2008 2007 2006 2005 

Aide - Instructional Programs 
Total Non-Certificated - Instructional Programs 

Instructional Support: 
Supervisors - Instructional Support Functions 
Therapist/Spccialist/Counselor - Instructional Support Functions 
Clerical/Secretarial - Instructional Support Functions 
Aide - Instructional Support Functions 
Service Worker - Instructional Support Functions 
Skilled Craftsman - Instructional Support Functions 
Degreed Professional - Instructional Support Functions 
Other Personnel - Instructional Support Functions 

Total Non-Certificated - Instructional Support 
Support Services: 
Supervisors/Managers/Administrators/Support Services 
Clerical/Secretarial ~ Support Services 
Aide - Support Services 
Service Worker - Support Services 
Skilled Craftsman - Support Services 
Degreed Professional - Support Services 
Other Personnel - Support Services 

Total Non-Certificated - Support Services 

Total Non-Certificated 

Total Regular Employees (Certificated and Non-Certificated) 

Other Reported Personnel 

School Board Member 
Total Other Reported Personnel 

Grand Total 

534' 

534 
537 
537 

529 
529 

542 
542 

566 
566 

55 
34 

126 

143 
208 
111 
919 

93 
53 
23 

56 
37 

20 

18 

131 

129 
200 
104 
945 

89 
39 
24 

51 

36 

1 
19 
18 

125 

133 
194 
96 

864 
84 
28 
24 

49 
36 

1 
20 
20 

126 

129 
195 
101 
859 

87 
29 
23 

49 
34 

1 
21 

17 

122 

126 
192 

166 

817 
92 
23 
24 

1,550 1.530 1.423 1,423 1,440 

2,210 2,198 2,077 2,091 2,128 

5.395 

15 
15 

5,410 

5,347 

15 
15 

5,362 

5,206 

15 
15 

5,221 

5,137 

15 
15 

5,152 

5,206 

15 
15 

5,221 

Source: Louisiana Department of Education Planning, Analysis, and Information Resources website. 
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Table 20 

Fiscal Year 

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 

553 
553 

539 
539 

491 
491 

469 
469 

460 
460 

49 47 44 48 48 
31 33 32 32 28 

1 I 
1 1 4 4 3 

21 21 20 23 20 
15 14 n 1 i_ 

117 116 111 109 101 

124 123 78 76 76 
197 189 186 185 183 
154 147 75 75 72 
801 786 852 855 838 
93 96 110 106 99 
23 13 13 11 12 
22 20 10 3 3 

1,414 1,374 1,324 1,311 1,283 

2,084 2,029 1,926 1,889 1,844 

5,079 

15 
15 

5,094 

4,928 

15 
15 

4,943 

4,691 

15 
15 

4,706 

4,634 

15 
15 

4,649 

4,583 

15 
15 

4,598 

(concluded) 
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ST. TAMMANV PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

CAPITAL ASSET INFORMATION 

Schools 
Abita Spnngs Elementary 
.-Vbncy Elementary 
Alton Elementary 
Bayou Woods Elementary 
Bonne Ecole Elementary 
Brock Elementary 
Chahta-Ima Elementary 
Covington Elementary 
Cypress Cove Elementary 
Florida Avenue Elementary 
Foisom Elementary 
Honey Island Elementary 
Linle Pearl Elementary 
Lyon Elementary 
Madisonville Elementary 
Magnolia Trace Elementary 
Mandeviile Elementary 
Pontchartrain Elementary 
Riverside Elementary 
Sixth Ward Eiementar>' 
Whispering Forest Elementary 
Woodlake Elementary 

Tota 

Schools 
Abita Springs Middle 
Bayou Lacombe Middle 
Boyet Junior High 
Cartilyn Park Middle 
Clearwood Junior High 
Creekside Junior High 
Fifth Ward Junior High 
Folsom Junior High 
Fontainebleau Junior High 
Lake Harbor Middle School 

JUNE 30, 2009 
(Unaudited) 

Year 
Opened 

1978 
1964 
1957 
1985 
1973 
1930 
1952 
1956 
1994 
1956 
1949 
1987 
2008 
1963 
1956 
1999 
1966 
1994 
1986 
1949 
1989 
1962 

Is 

Year 
Opened 

1923 
1956 
1963 
1966 
1978 
2002 
1949 
1957 
1996 
2001 

Elementary Schools 

Square 
Footage 

80,699 
100,728 
41,604 

101,722 
83,000 
48,170 
52,454 
81,561 

101,061 
80,108 
76,941 
79,100 
42,124 
79,882 
87,508 
87,825 
72,693 

103,318 
87,489 

103,792 
80,028 
71,810 

1,743,617 

Junior Hieh/M 

Square 
Footage 

59,618 
53,722 
92,940 
68,785 
93.561 
93,790 
95,133 
53,431 

133.306 
80.714 

Enrollment 
771 
940 
201 
879 
764 
294 
311 
580 
676 
570 
496 
623 
151 
602 
760 
879 
525 
816 
486 
398 
527 
651 

12,900 

iddle Schools 

Enrollment 
449 
191 
634 
591 
568 
527 
546 
217 
801 
653 

Table 21 

Estimated 
Capacity 

755 
950 
400 
900 
750 
500 
500 
600 
800 
575 
500 
675 

-
700 
670 
950 
625 
900 
800 
450 
600 
750 

14,350 

Estimated 
Capacity 

500 
300 
800 
650 
650 
600 
625 
325 
950 
675 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
CovinEton, Lpuisiana 

CAPITAL ASSET INFORMATION 
JUNE 30,2009 

(Unaudited) 
(Contmucd) 

Table 21 

Junior High/Middle Schools 
(Continued) 

Schools 
Lee Road Junior High 
Little Oak Middle 
Madisonville Junior High 
Mandeviile Junior High 
Mandeviile Middle 
Monteleone Junior High 
Pine View Middle 
Pitcher Junior High 
St. Tammany Junior High 
Slidell Junior High 
Tchefuncte Middle 

Year 
Opened 

1964 
1980 
1949 
1956 
1985 
2005 
1965 
1964 
1966 
1956 
1994 

Totals 

Schools 
Covington High 
Fontainebleau High 
Mandeviile High 
Northshore High 
Pearl River High 
Salmen High 
Slidell High 

Year 
Opened 

1973 
1994 
1977 
1982 
1967 
2006 
1949 

Totals 

Square 
Footage 

96,603 
111,455 
79,414 
97,071 
79,676 
92,406 
88,474 
97,500 
89,956 

114,734 
95,667 

1,867,956 

Enrollment 
788 

High Schools 

Square 
Footage 

217,564 
285,688 

1,735,509 
203.924 
128,393 
143.729 
214,433 

2,929,240 

985 
698 
641 
746 
419 
609 
344 
476 
788 
861 

12,532 

Enrollment 
1,456 
2,146 
1,601 
1,497 

695 
823 

1,594 
9,812 

Estimated 
Capacity 

825 
1,025 

625 
700 
700 
500 
650 
350 
475 

1,000 
875 

13,800 

Estimated 
Capacity 

1,600 
2,250 
1,700 
1,500 

750 
800 

1,900 
10,500 
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ST. TAMM.\NY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Schools 
Covington Pathways 
St. Tammany Center 
Operation Jumpstart 
Slidell Pathways 

Covincton, Louisiana 

CAPITAl. ASSET INFORMATION 
JUNE 30, 2009 

(Unaudited) 
(Continued) 

Year 
Opened 

1953 
Leased 
Leased 

1949 
Totals _ 

Special Education 

Square 
Footage Enrollment 

50,886 28 
341 

12,478 170 
42 

63,364 581 

Table 21 

Estimated 
Capacity 

40 
350 
170 
50 

610 

Source: St.Tammany Parish School Board Department of Business Affairs and Louisiana 
Department of Education website. Student enrollment is as of 06/30/2009 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington. Louisiana 

PERCENTAGE OF FREE AND REDUCED STUDENTS IN LUNCH PROGRAM 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(Unaudited) 

Table 22 

School Year 

1999-2000 

2000-2001 

2001-2002 

2002-2003 

2003-2004 

2004-2005 

2005-2006 

2006-2007 

2007-2008 

2008-2009 

Free 

23.02% 

22.10% 

23.63% 

24.70% 

26,61% 

28.95% 

20.61% 

34.41% 

32.95% 

35.01% 

Reduced 

5.26% 

5,46%, 

6.03%. 

5.89% 

6.74% 

7.08% 

5.07% 

7.41% 

7.68% 

8.36% 

Tolal 

28,28% 

27.56% 

29.66% 

30,59% 

33.35% 

36,03% 

25 68% 

41.82% 

40.63% 

43.37% 

Source: Louisiana Department of Education website. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Covington, Louisiana 

Table 23 
HISTORY OF HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATES 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

School 
Year Total 

2000 1,841 

2001 1,800 

2002 ** 1,795 

2003 1,896 

2004 1,967 

2005 1,960 

2006 1,994 

2007 * * 2,072 

2008 *** 2,199 

2009 2,115 

Source: St. Tammany Parish School Board Information Technology Department. 

* * Preliminary information only does not include summer school graduates. 

* * * Preliminary information only does not include the dropout count. 
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"Blue Bird of Happiness" 
Katrina Rivers - Grade 2 

Irit Sirkes - Teacher 
Abney Elementary School 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

SINGLE AUDIT REPORTS 

JUNE 30, 2009 
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GO VERNMENTA UDITING STANDARDS 

The Members of the 
St. Tarrmiaiiy Parish School Board 
Covington, Louisiana: 

We have audited the fmancial statements of the govenunental activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund infomialion of the St. Tammany Parish School Board 
(the School Board), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009, which collectively 
comprise the School Board's basic fmancial statements and have issued our report 
thereon dated January 28, 2010. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable 
to fmancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United Slates. 

Intemal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In plaiming and performing our audit, we considered the School Board's intemal control 
over fmancial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose 
of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School Board's intemal control over 
fmancial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the School Board's internal control over fmancial reporting. 

Our consideration of intemal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose 
described in the preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies 
in intemal control over financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or 
material weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in 
internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant deficiencies. 

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, 
to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control 
deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies that adversely affects the School 
Board's ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a 
remote likelihood that a misstatement of the School Board's fmancial statements that is 

1 
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more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the School Board's 
intemal control. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs to be significant deficiencies in intemal control over 
fmancial reporting, indexed as 2009-1 through 2009-3. 

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant 
deficiencies, that results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of 
the fmancial statements will not be prevented or detected by the School Board's intemal 
control. 

Our consideration of the intemal control over financial reporting was for the limited 
purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify 
all deficiencies in intemal control that might be significant deficiencies and, accordingly, 
would not necessarily disclose all significant deficiencies that are also considered to be 
material weaknesses. However, of the significant deficiencies described above, we 
consider items 2009-2 to be a material weakness. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School Board's financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance 
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial 
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions 
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
The results of our tests disclosed one instance of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which are described in 
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2009-4. 

We noted certain other matters that we reported to the management of the School Board 
in a separate letter dated January 28, 2010. 

The School Board's response to the findings identified in our audit described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the School 
Board's response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board, the School 
Board's management and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, such as 
the State of Louisiana and Legislative Auditor's Office, and is not intended to be and 
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

'i^oi.lU^oucu.U *- AJtllvdV-

Metairie, Louisiana 
January 28, 2010 
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO 
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 
AND THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

The Members of the 
St. Tammany Parish School Board 
Covington, Louisiana: 

Compliance 

We have audited the compliance of St. Tammany Parish School Board (the School 
Board), with the types of compliance requirements described in the U. S. Office of 
Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are 
applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2009. The 
School Board's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results 
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with 
the requirements of laws, regulafions, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major 
federal programs is the responsibility of School Board's management. Our responsibility 
is to express an opinion on the School Board's compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to fmancial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material 
effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence about the School Board's compliance with those requirements and performing 
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that 
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal 
determination on the School Board's compliance with those requirements. 

In our opinion, the School Board complied, in all material respects, with the requirements 
referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year 
ended June 30, 2009. 

Intemal Control Over Compliance 

The management of the School Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective intemal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations. 
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contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our 
audit, we considered the School Board's intemal control over compliance with the 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in 
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on 
compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
intemal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the School Board's intemal control over compliance. 

A control deficiency in an entity's intemal control over compliance exists when the 
design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal 
course of performing their assigned fiinctions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a 
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely 
affects the entity's ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a 
remote likelihood that noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the 
entity's intemal control. 

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant 
deficiencies, that results in more than a remote likelihood that a material noncompliance 
with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented or 
detected by the entity's intemal control. 

Our consideration of the intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose 
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all 
deficiencies in intemal control that might be significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in intemal control over compliance to 
be material weaknesses, as defmed above. 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

We have audited the financial statements of the govemmental activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the St. Tammany Parish School 
Board (the School Board), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009, and have issued 
our report thereon dated January 28, 2010. Our audit was performed for the purpose of 
forming our opinions on the fmancial statements that collectively comprise the School 
Board's basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards is presented for the purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB 
Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such 
information has been subjected to die auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
fmancial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in 
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board, the School 
Board's management and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, such as 



the State of Louisiana and Legislative Auditor's Office, and is not intended to be and 
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

'PosjUlk<^a,^ ^ A^ /̂/̂ /J'l(<^ 

Metairie, Louisiana 
January 28,2010 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
For the Year Ended June 30. 2009 

Federal Grantor/ 
Pass-Through Grantor/ 

Program Name 

528ST 
52809 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 
Passed Through Louisiana Department of Agriculiure.{USDA) 

Food Distribuiion Program 

Passed Through Louisiana Department of Education: 
School Breakfast Program 
National School Lunch Program 

Total - United States Department of Agriculture 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 
Teaching American History 
Teaching American History 
Teaching American History 
Total -Teaching American History 

Passed Through Louisiana Department of Education: 

Adult Education-Staig Administered Program 

Adu)t Education 
Adull Education 
One Slop 
Total - Adult Education 

21 St Century Community Lemming Centers 

21st Century CLC 

Total - 21st Century Community Learning Center 

No Child Lef̂  Behind fNCLB) 

Title I: Helping Disadvantaged 
Title I: Stimulus 

Title II: Dwight D. Eisenhower 

Title in Immigrant Set Aside 

Title III English Language Acquisition 

Title rV: Safe and Drug Free 

Total - NCLB 

Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA): 

IDEA B - Stimulus 
Part B-Regular Education 

Pass Through 
Grantor 

CFDA Number Award Number 

S4.002A 2809^-52 
84 002A 2809-44-52 
84 002A 2809-13-52 

84.287 28-08-CC-52 

Expenditures 

10.550 

10.553 
10,555 

84.215 
84.215 
84.215 

NONE 

NONE 
NONE 

U215040231 
NONE 
NONE 

$1,025,178 

1.704.378 
5,568.004 

8,297,560 

709 
4.210 

14,530 
19,449 

198,636 

23.558 

3.674 

225.868 

453,295 

453.295 

84.010A 
84.389 

84.367A 

84.365A 

84.365A 

84.I86A 

84.39IA 

84 027A 

S010A0800I8 
S389A090018 

S367S0800I7 

09-S352 

T365A080018 

Q186A080019 

H39IA09O033 
H027A050033 

6,251,072 
187 

6.25l;259 

1,726,075 

1.726,075 

11.872 

89.148 
101,020 

172.671 

172.671 

8.251,025 

42,359 
7.823,769 

7.866.128 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
COVINGTON. LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
For the Year Ended June 30. 2009 

508ST 
50809 

vsc 
VE9 

61609 
616 
62310 
62308 
62309 

60209 

Federal Grantor/ 
Pass-Through Grantor/ 

Program Name 

IDEA Pre-Stimulus 
Preschool Education 

Total - IDEA 

Vocational Education Basic Grants to States 

Cari Perkins do 
Carl Perkins 
Total- Vocational Education 

Education Technology State Grants 

TLTC '09 
TLTC '08 
EEI 1 '08 
EETI 'U8 
bhri '09 
Total - Education Technology State Grants 

U Serve Commissipn 

Lcam& Serve (KISS) 
Total - CSRP Demonstration 

Math and Science Partnerships 

CFDA Number 

84.392A 
84.173A 

84.048 
84.048 

84 318X 
84.318x 
84.318x 
84.318x 
84.318x 

94.004 

Pass Through 
Grantor 

Award Number 

H392A09OO82 
HI73A070082 

28-08-02-52-C 
28-09-02-52 

28-09-14-52C/0 
280814-52 
28-10-49-50 
28-08-49-52c/o 
280949-52 

NONE 

Expenditures 

24,561 
191,148 
215.709 

8,081,837 

25.782 
333.816 
359.598 

104,900 
71.097 

19 
15.852 
55,632 

247.500 

4.564 
4.564 

69706 Math and Science Partnerships 
Total - Math and Science Partnerships 

Advanced Placement Program 
201 Advanced Fee Placement Prognmi 

Total - Advanced Placement Program 

Hurricane Education Recovery 
69909 Homeless Ed. Disaster Assistance 

84.366B 06-MC-52 

84.330B 28-07-26-52 

84.938 S383A090033 

4,459 

TOTAL UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 

UNfTED STATES DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN DEVELOPMENT 
Passed Through the Louisiana Department of Education: 

60107 TANF LA4'07 (35% Federal) 93.558 28-06-35-52 
60309 TANF Jobs for American Graduates 93.558 28-09-JE-52 

Total United States Department of Health and Human Development 

DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY 
82906 Disaster Grants 

Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disasters) 
97.036 NONE 

4,459 

424 

424 

19,305 

19.305 

17.667,324 

200.490 
39,774 

240,264 

35.370.034 

35,370,034 



ST. TAMMANY PARJSH SCHOOL BOARD 
COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Federal Grantor/ 
Pass-Through Grantor/ 

Program Name CFDA Number 

Pass Through 
Grantor 

Award Number 

SAFE & DRUG FREE SCHOOLS AND COMMUNITIES-NATIONAL PROGRAMS 

Expenditures 

619 

GF 
GF 
GF 
GF 

Safer St. Tammany Schools 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE 
Air Force-JROTC 
Army - J ROTC 
Marines-JROTC 
Navy-J ROTC 
Total United States Department of Defense 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
See accompanying Notes to Schcdu/e of FederBl Awards 

84.I84E 

12 998 
12 998 
12 998 
12.998 

NONE 

NONE 
NONE 
NONE 
NONE 

343,414 
343,414 

82.860 
125,806 
52.385 

202.067 
463,118 

$62,381,714 



St. Tammany Parish School Board 
Covington, Louisiana 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
June 30, 2009 

General 

The accompanying Schedule of Federal Awards presents the activity of all federal awards 
programs of the St. Tammany Parish School Board (the School Board). The School Board 
reporting entity is defined in the notes to the financial statements for the year ended June 
30, 2009. All federal awards received directly from federal agencies are included on the 
schedule as well as federal awards passed through other govemment agencies. The 
following programs are considered major federal programs for single audit purposes of the 
School Board: 

School Breakfast Program (CFDA No. 10.553) 
National School Lunch Program (CFDA No. 10,555) 
Food Distribution (CFDA No. 10.550) 
Individuals widi Disabilities Education Act (CFDA No. 84.173A, 84.392A, 84.027A, 
and 84.391 A) 

2. Basis of Accounting 

Schedule of Federal Awards is presented using the modified accrual basis of accounting, 
which is described in the notes to the School Board's financial statements for the year ended 
June 30, 2009. Commodities received, which are non-cash revenue are valued at prices 
provided by the U.S. Department of Agriculture. Any received but unused commodities are 
recorded as deferred revenue until used. 

3. Relationship to General Purpose Financial Statements 

Federal award revenues are reported in the School Board's financial statements as follows: 

Statement E, Federal Sources: 

General Fund $ 665,428 
Katrina Funds 35,370,034 
Special Revenue Funds 26,126,871 

Sub- total Federal Sources 62,162,333 
Carryover Expenditures 219,381 

Total Reported on Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 62,381,714 

4. Loans Pavable to Federal Agency 

The School Board has Federal Community Disaster Loans (the "Loan") of $67,843,971 as of 
June 30, 2009. The terms of the Loan caU for interest to accrue at rates ranging from 2.67% to 
3.12% annually to be repaid with the principal when the Loan becomes due in 2011. 



St. Tammany Parish School Board 
Covington, Louisiana 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
June 30, 2009 

5. Relationship to Federal Financial Reports 

Amounts reported in the Schedule of Federal Awards agree with the amounts reported in 
the related federal financial reports, except for the amounts in reports submitted as of a date 
subsequent to June 30, 2009, which will differ from the schedule by the amount of 
receivable as of June 30, 2009, liquidated to the dates of the reports. 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Covington, Louisiana 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended June 30, 2009 

(1) Summary of Auditors' Results 
(a) The type of report issued on the financial statements: unqualified opinion 
(b) Reportable conditions in intemal control were disclosed by the audit of the financial 

statements: yes Material weaknesses: yes 
(c) Noncompliance which is material to the financial statements: no 
(d) Reportable conditions in intemal control over major programs: none reported 

Material weaknesses: no 
(e) The type of report issued on compliance for major programs: unqualified opinion 
(f) Any audit findings which are required to be reported under Section 510(a) of OMB 

Circular A-133: no 
(g) Major programs: 

Louisiana Department of Educafion: 
School Breakfast Program - CFDA No. 10.553 
Nafional School Lunch Program - CFDA No. 10.555 
Individuals with Disabilifies Education Act - CFDA Nos. 84.391A and 
84.027A 
Preschool Program - CFDA Nos. 84.393 A and 84.173A 

Louisiana Department of Agriculture: 
Food Distribufion Program - CFDA No. 10.550 

(h) Dollar threshold used to disfinguish between Type A and Type B programs: 
$1,871,451 

(i) Auditee quahfied as a low-risk auditee under Secfion 530 of OMB Circular A-133: 
yes 

(2) Findings Relafing to the Financial Statements Reported in Accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards: 

11 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Covington, Louisiana 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Finding 2009-01 

MUNIS Conversion 

Condition: The School Board underwent a system conversion in 2009. We noted 
condifions that indicated weaknesses in the School Board's informafion technology 
change management and access general controls which also impacted its financial 
controls. 

Criteria: The School Board has general controls over informafion technology. 
General controls are policies and procedures that relate to many applications and 
support the effecfive ftinctioning of application controls by helping to ensure the 
continued proper operation of information systems. General controls commonly 
include controls over data center and network operafions; system software acquisition 
and maintenance; access security; and application system acquisition, development, 
and maintenance. General controls as well as financial reporting controls should be 
adequate to provide for timely processing of informafion and prevention and/or 
idenfificafion of any issues. 

Effect: As a result of the impact of the above, delays occurred in the timely 
complefion of bank account reconciliafions. 

Cause: The School Board does not have a formalized change management process 
whereby all tasks impacfing all steps to be performed was not outlined and/or staffed 
accordingly, key functions are tested prior to implementation and/or timelines are 
managed /met to achieve financial control objectives. 

Recommendation: The School Board needs to establish a change management process 
for friture system conversions and provide for adequate staffing. Specifically related 
to the above items, the bank reconciliation process was resolved subsequent to year 
end. 

Agency Response: The School Board is in the process of resolving the software issue 
with the preparafion of bank reconciliations. All bank reconciliafion issues will be 
corrected by March 31, 2010 and all future bank reconciliations will be prepared in a 
fimely manner. 

12 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Covington, Louisiana 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Finding 2009-02 

Property Conversion Impact 

Condition: As previously described, the School Board underwent a system 
conversion in 2009. We noted conditions that indicated weaknesses in the School 
Board's information technology change management processes. As part of the 
system conversion, the School Board uploaded the data file for fixed assets which 
was inadvertently incorrect. In addition, depreciation was not properly recorded in 
prior years. 

Criteria: The School Board has general controls over information technology. 
General controls are policies and procedures that relate to many applications and 
support the effecfive fianctioning of application controls by helping to ensure the 
continued proper operation of informafion systems. General controls commonly 
include controls over data center and network operations; system software acquisition 
and maintenance; access security; and applicafion system acquisition, development, 
and maintenance. General controls as well as financial reporting controls should be 
adequate to provide for timely processing of information and prevention and/or 
idenfification of any issues. The School Board should have a system of intemal 
accounting control, which provide for the proper accounting and financial reporting 
for capital assets. 

Effect: The School Board recorded significant adjustments to correct the data upload 
file related conversion of the system, as well as adjust accumulated depreciation from 
prior years. 

Cause: The School Board's policies and procedures did not provide for adequate 
oversight of depreciation calculafion and system conversion to ensure the data was 
converted accurately. 

Recommendation: The School Board should develop policies and procedures to 
adequately ascertain that information related to system conversions is accurate and 
complete. 

Agency Response: The School Board was able to correct the fixed asset errors before 
the issuance of the audit report. The net effect of the fixed asset error was immaterial 
to the financial statements as it was less than one percent of total net assets. All 
fixed assets information is reported correctly in the financial statements for the year 
ended June 30, 2009. 

13 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Covington, Louisiana 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Finding 2Q09-Q3 

PavroU 

Condition: We noted conditions that indicated weaknesses in the School Board's 
information technology general controls relating to access security. 

Criteria: The School Board has general controls over informafion technology. 
General controls are policies and procedures that relate to many applications and 
support the effective ftinctioning of application controls by helping to ensure the 
continued proper operation of information systems. General controls commonly 
include controls over data center and network operations; system software acquisifion 
and maintenance; access security; and application system acquisifion, development, 
and maintenance. 

Effect: A School Board employee inadvertently changed a setting on the employee 
benefits deducfion changing the deduction from pre tax to post tax resulting in a 
substantial overpayment of withholdings. 

Cause: The School Board did not have adequate policies and procedures in place to 
ensure access was properly restricted within the payroll module and changes were 
properly reviewed. 

Recommendation: The School Board should consider developing exception reports 
that are periodically generated to show changes made and document the review 
performed by the Executive Management team and/or the Board. 

Agency Response: The School Board has implemented new software effective April 
1, 2009. This error occurred prior to the implementation of the new software. The 
new softAvare has audit trails and exception reports that prevent these types of errors 
from occurring. New procedures have been established in the accounting department 
relating to review and documentation, so that this type of error does not occur in the 
ftjture. 

14 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Covington, Louisiana 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Finding 2009-04 

Timely Issuance of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

Condition: The School Board underwent a system conversion in 2009 coupled with 
the departure of the Director of Business Affairs in the middle of the audit 
engagement led to the delay of issuing the report on fime. 

Criteria: The School Board and the Accounting Department should have adequate 
support and help to prepare the necessary information to timely issue the 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

Effect: The delay in providing adequate support resulted in requesting an extension 
for completing the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

Cause: The School Board lost key personnel during the audit engagement along with 
the system conversion delayed the issuing of the Financial Statements. 

Recommendation: The School Board should consider obtaining adequate support and 
help for preparafion of the Financial Statements. Also with growth in School Board 
over past few years, re-assessment of skill sets and level of personnel needed in the 
Accounfing department needs to be re-assessed. 

Agency Response: The main cause of the delay in the financial statements was the 
sudden departure of the Director. The dufies of the Director were assumed by the 
Chief Accountant who is mainly responsible for the preparation of the financial 
statements. The School Board is in the process of replacing the Director and has 
hired an additional supervisor to assist with the accounting duties for the School 
Board. The School Board will be able to issue the financial statements in a timely 
manner in the future. 

(3) Findings and Questioned Costs relafing to Federal Awards: none 

15 
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January 28, 2010 

The Members of the 
St. Tammany Parish School Board 

Covington, Louisiana: 

In planning and performing our audit of the basic financial statements of St. Tammany Parish School Board (the 
Organization) as of June 30, 2009, we considered the Organization's intemal control in order to determine our 
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the financial statements and not to provide 
assurance on intemal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Organization's internal control. 

However, during our audit, we became aware of several matters that aie opportunities for strengthening intemal 
controls and operating efficiency. We previously reported on the Organization's internal control in our report 
dated January 28,2010. This letter does not affect our report dated January 28, 2010 on the financial statements 
of the Organization. 

We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. We have already discussed 
these comments and suggesfions with Organization personnel and we will be pleased to discuss these cormnents 
in further detail at your convenience to perform any additional study of these matters, or to assist you in 
implementing the recommendations. Our comments are summarized as follows: 

Current Year Findings: 

Compliance with Internal Control Polices 

Observation: 
Over the course of testing, we identified inconsistencies with following procedures as implemented by 
the Board. We noted missing appropriate approval on one repairs invoice. We also noted that approved 
employee hire reconmiendation forms and/or contracts could not be located in employee persormel files. 
We noted approval was not properly documented over all journal entries prior to their posfing to the 
general ledger. 

RecommerTdation: 
We recommend that management reinforce policies and procedures to document all appropriate 
approvals and keep appropriate documentation in personnel files. 

30th Floor-Energy Cenre - 1100 Poydras Street • New Orleans, LA 70163-3000 • Tel: 504.569.2978 

2324 Severn Avenue • Metairie, LA 70001 • Tel: 504.837.5990 • Fax: 504.834.3609 



Executive Department Activity 

Observation: 
Generally, in most governments, the expenditures incurred by those in the Executive Department are 
generally sensitive in nature due to the public accountability of that office to tax payers. In addition, 
personnel in the Executive Department generally set policy, monitor policy and enforce policy which can 
conflict with the role of subordinates in the processing of transactions. 

The School Board should implement a policy regarding nature of expenses and/or define approval levels 
for the nature of certain expenditures. 

Recommendation: 
We recommend that procedures be established to define approval and nature of allowable non routine 

expenditures. 

Timelv Reporting of Fraud 

Observation: 

The School Board experienced two instances of theft by employees in 2009 and did not report the 
instances of fraud identified internally to the appropriate parties. The School Board as a govemmental 
entity follows certain state statutes including R.S. 24:523. An agency head of an auditee who has actual 
knowledge of any misappropriation of the public funds or assets of his agency shall immediately notify, 
in writing, the legislative auditor and the district attorney of the parish in which the agency is domiciled 
of such misappropriation. The district attorney, or other prosecutorial agency, notified of such 
misappropriation may request audit assistance from the legislative auditor with respect to the 
misappropriation. In June 2009, an investigation was held in which the school bookkeeper at Magnolia 
Elementary School was found taking funds. The bookkeeper admitted to taking the funds in the amount 
of $2,816.67. The employee repaid the stolen funds and was terminated from the School System. The 
security officers in charge of investigations have been instructed to give copies of investigation reports to 
the Superintendant and the Director of Business Affairs when instances of theft occur. The proper 
authorities will be notified when these reports are received for all fiiture frauds committed by employees. 

The School Board should review their own policies and procedures in accordance with State Statutes and 
to provide training to ensure compliance. 

Prior Year Findings Still Applicable: 

Journal Entries 

Observation: 
We noted that during walkthroughs and testing of intemal controls that not all journal entries have 
evidence of the review approval. 

-2-



Recommendation: 
We recommend that management establish procedures whereby all journal entries, including year end 
government-wide journal entries, have evidence of the approval of the reviewer. Joumal entries should 
be reviewed by someone other than the preparer. 

Status: Not resolved 

The attached Schedule reflects that status of prior year comments. We wish to thank the Chief Accountant and 
the Accounting Department persormel for their support and assistance during our audit. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the School Board, the School Board's management, 
and federal awardmg agencies and pass-through entities, such as the State of Louisiana and the Legislative 
Auditor's Office, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
However, under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a 
public document. 

Very truly yours. 



Schedule 
Status of Prior Year Comments 

Bank Reconciliations 
Bank reconciliations are prepared monthly on all accounts and utilized as a management tool for financial 
accountability. The account and balances in question are immaterial but were recognized as part of the 
reconciliation process. The School Board's payroll account is a zero balance account whereas all funds are 
transferred to the account on the day that the payroll is run and thus once all checks are cleared should have no 
balance remaining. Tlierefore, any remaining balances are most likely the result of payroll checks that were 
issued and subsequently discovered to be lost by payee and voided. In July 2008, the School Board began 
implementation of a new softv/are system that includes a reconciliation module as well as other cash 
management tools. The payroll modules are anticipated to go live on or about the first of the year in 2009. It is 
also anticipated at that time that we would research any reconciling items and if necessary, remove any items 
such as the stale checks noted. 

Status: Repeated in A-133 reports 

Joumal Entries 
The School Board has in place procedures for preparing, review, approval, and posting of joumal entries and 
we agree that all joumal entries should have evidence of approval by an independent approver. The general 
ledgers are the primary charge of the accounting department and specifically the Chief Accountant. Joumal 
entries are prepared by the accounting staff as necessary at the request of supervisors and the chief accoimlant 
as she deems necessary in the normal course of conducting School Board business transactions. The joumal 
entries mentioned here are the result of year-end type closing entries and/or entries necessary for preparing the 
government-wide financial reports. Government-wide reports are prepared on a different basis of accounting 
then the fund accounting utilized for the general ledgers. Due to the complexity of these types of joumal 
entries, they are prepared by the Chief Accountant instead of her staff. The Chief Accountant's duties are 
separated from the day-to-day transactions. The government-wide financial statements along with the 
corresponding reconciling schedules are subject to review of the Chief Accountants immediate supervisor, and 
we feel additional approval should not be necessary. However, as an abundance of caution, in subsequent 
transactions, we will have the journal entries prepared by staff and the Chief Accountant will approve them as a 
"normal" type journal entry and all joumal entries wiH thus be independently approved. 

Status: Repeated 

Executive Department ActivJtv 
All expenditures of the executive office are performed in the normal course of conducting official business of 
the School Board. These expenditures are subject to the constraints of the Board authorized budgets, state law 
pertaining to purchasing requirements, and in accordance with OMB Circular A-87 for allowable expenditures. 
All expenditures of the executive office are reviewed by the School Board Secretary before submission to the 
Department of Business Affairs for recording. The Board Secretary prepares a sununary of these expenditures 
and this summary is subject to review by members of the Board if it feels necessary. In ftiture months, we will 
begin including a copy of this summary in the monthly packet of information sent to the Board President for his 
review. 

Status: Repeated 
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Schedale 
Status of Prior Year Comments 

Grants 
The initial draft of schedule of federal expenditures was prepared based upon the most currently available 
information in the general ledger system and this report was prepared in the midst of a conversion to a new 
financial reporting package. In addition, a "summary update" of all grants is prepared and sent to supervisors 
for monitoring purposes of grants and corresponding budgets and expenditures at least two times during the 
year. Subsequent to the report in question being prepared, adjustments were needed based upon more current 
information and particularly additional receipts of Federal Emergency Management Agency project work 
orders. We regret that this occurred and hope that with the completion of the new software implementation this 
will not reoccur. 

Status: Resolved. 

Budget Monitoring 
Budgets are prepared annually on all legally required funds of the School Board and adopted in accordance with 
State of Louisiana budget laws. Construction ftmds and special revenue funds are subject to these and other 
provisions as well as the General ftind and Debt Service funds. Amendments to the budgets are prepared and 
approved as needed to meet the 5% provision of the States budget requirements and a final amendment was 
prepared and approved in the May 2008 Board Meeting. Subsequent to the May meeting, but prior to close out 
of the year end, it became apparent that certain Federal grants related to FEMA and other State grants would 
not meet expected budget projections. These grants are expenditure driven and receipts are determined by 
reimbursement approvals from those expenditures. Thus, any unexpected shortfall in revenue is the result of an 
offsetting unexpected reduction in expenditure. In the future we will attempt to monitor these projects more 
closely to ensure any amendments needed could be reviewed and approved prior to year end closeout. 

Status: Resolved. 
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Attachment 

Management's Responses 

Compliance with Internal Control Policies 

The School Board has in place policies and procedures for the approval of invoices. All 
purchase orders and invoices are approved by appropriate School Board supervisors and 
administrators. The one invoice selected that was not approved was an isolated incident. 
The School Board will obtain approvals on all invoices before payment in the future. 

The School Board also has in place procedures for preparing, review, approval, and 
posting of joumal entries. The joumal entries mentioned here are a result of year-end 
type closmg entries and/or entries necessary for the preparation of the govemment-wide 
fijiancial statements. These entries arc prepared by the Chief Accoimtant and reviewed 
by the Director of Business Affairs. The Director of Business Affairs resigned before 
the complefion of these entries and was not replaced unfil after the financial statements 
were complete. The Chief Accountant assumed the dufies of the Director dirring the 
interim; as a result no Director approval was available for these joumal entries. In the 
fiiture, the School Board will have the Director of Business Affairs approve all entries 
prepared by the Chief Accountant 

The School Board has policies and procedures in place relating to hiring of employees. 
All employee files should contain the necessary documentafion as required by School 
Board policy including recommendation forms and contracts when applicable. In the 
fiiture, the School Board will-continue to make sure all employee files are complete and 
accurate. 

Executive Department Activity 

All expenditures of the executive office are perfomied m the normal com:se of conducting 
official business of the School Board. These expenditures are subject to the constraints 
of the Board authorized budgets, state law pertaining to purchasing requirements, and in 
accordance with OMB Circular A-87 for allowable expenditures. All expenditures of the 
executive office are reviewed by the School Board Secretary before submission to the 
Department of Business Affairs for payment. Revised policies and procedures will be 
implemented in the near fiiture for the monitoring and approval of executive 
expenditures. 

Timelv Reporting of Fraud 

The School Board did report the two instances of fraud to the appropriate local officials 
when the incidents occurred and notified the Louisiana Legislative Auditor of the fraud 
by letter m December 2009 before the issuance of the report. The School Board will 
make every effort to timely comply with the requirements of R.S. 24:523 in the fiiture. 
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Independent Accountants* Report 
On Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures 

To the Members of the 
St. Tammany Parish School Board 
Covington, Louisiana: 

We have perfomied the procedures included in the Louisiana Governmental Audit Guide and 
enumerated below, which were agreed to by the management of the St. Tammany Parish School 
Board (the School Board) and the Legislative Auditor, State of Louisiana, solely to assist users in 
evaluating management's assertions about the performance and statistical data accompanying the 
annual financial statements of the School Board and to determine whether the specified schedules 
are free of obvious errors and omissions as provided by the Board of Elementary and Secondary 
Education (BESE) Bulletin. This agreed-upon procedures engagement was performed in 
accordance with standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. 
The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of the specified users of the report. 
Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described 
below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other purpose. 

Our procedures and findings relate to the accompanying schedules of supplemental information 
and are as follows; 

General Fimd Instructional and Support Expenditures and Certain Local Revenue Sources 
(Schedule I) 

1) We selected a random sample of 25 cash receipts and 25 disbursement transactions and 
reviewed supporting documentation to determine if the sampled receipts/disbursements 
are classified correcfiy and are reported in the proper amounts for each of the following 
amounts reported on the schedule: 

• Total General Fund Instmctional Expenditures, 

• Total General Fund Equipment Expenditures. 

• Total Local Taxation Revenue, 

• Total Local Eamings on Investment in Real Property, 

• Total State Revenue in Lieu of Taxes, 

• Nonpubhc Textbook Revenue, and 

• Nonpubhc Transportation Revenue. 

We noted no exceptions 

- 1 -
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Education Levels of Public School Staff (Schedule 2) 
2. We reconciled the total number of full-time classroom teachers per the schedule 

"Experience of Public Principals and Full-time Classroom Teachers" (Schedule 4) to 
the combined total number of fiill-time classroom teachers per this schedule and to 
school board supporting payroll records as of October 1, 2008 respectively. 

Number of teachers per Schedule 4 3,046 
Number of teachers per Schedule 2 2,666 
Difference 380 

The differences relate to the timing the School Board's IT department prints the 
report to support the schedules. The Department of Education obtains the 
information as of October L By the time the testing is performed, the IT 
department cannot go back to that certain point in time and print the support that 
agrees to the schedules reported to the Department of Education. Management's 
response is to ensure reports are printed out on October 1 that agree to the 
schedules provided to the Department of Education and maintain the records for 
the following agreed upon procedures testing. 

3. We reconciled the combined total of principals and assistant principals per the schedule 
"Experience of Public Principals and Full-time Classroom Teachers" (Schedule 4) to 
the combined total of principals and assistant principals per this schedule. 

Number of principals and assistant principals per Schedule 2 129 
Number of principals and assistant principals per Schedule 4 125 
Difference 4 

The differences relate to the timing the School Board's IT department prints the 
report to support the schedules. The Department of Education obtains the 
information as of October 1. By the time the testing is performed, the IT 
department cannot go back to that certain point in time and print the support that 
agrees to the schedules reported to the Department of Education. Management's 
response is to ensure reports are printed out on October 1 that agree to the 
schedules provided to the Department of Education and maintain the records for 
the following agreed upon procedures testing. 

4. We obtained a list of fiill-time teachers for four schools, principals, and assistant 
principals by classification as of October 1, 2008 and as reported on the schedule. We 
were traced a random sample of 25 teachers to the "Data Verification Report" and 
determine if the individual's education level was properly classified on the schedule. 
We obtained a listing of principals and assistant principals as of October 1, 2008 and as 
reported on the schedule. 

We noted no exceptions. 



Number and Type of Public Schools (Schedule 3) 
5. We obtained a list of schools by type as reported on the schedule. We compared the list 

to the schools and grade levels as reported on the Title 1 Grants to Local Educational 
Agencies (CFDA 84.010) application. 

We noted no exceptions. 

Experience of Public Principals and Full-time Classroom Teachers (Schedule 4) 
6. We obtained a Ust of full-time teachers by classification as of October 1, 2008 and as 

reported on the schedule and traced the same sample used in procedure 4 to the "Data 
Verification Report" to determine if the individual's experience was properly classified 
on the schedule. We obtained a listing of principals and assistant principals as of 
October 1, 2008 and as reported on the schedule. 

We noted no exceptions. 

Public School Staff Data (Schedule 5) 
1. We did obtain a list of all classroom teachers including their base salary, extra 

compensation, and ROTC or rehired retiree status as well as fiill-time equivalent as 
reported on the schedule and trace a random sample of 25 teachers to the individual's 
personnel file and determined if the individual's salary, extra compensation, and full-
time equivalents were properly included on the schedule. 

We noted no exceptions. 

8. We recalculated the average salaries and full-time equivalents reported in the schedule. 

We did recalculate the average salaries as reported on the schedule; however, the 
amounts recalculated did not total the amount on Schedule 5. The average salaries 
recalculated based on the support provided did not agree to the amounts provided 
to the Department of Education. The Department of Education obtains the 
information as of October 1. By the time the testing is performed, the IT 
department cannot go back to that certain point in time and print the support that 
agrees to the schedules reported to the Department of Education. Management's 
response is to ensure reports are printed out on October 1 that agree to the 
schedules provided to the Department of Education and maintain the records for 
the following agreed upon procedures testing. 

Class Size Characteristics (Schedule 6) 
9. We did obtain a list of classes by school, school type, and class size as reported on the 

schedule and were unable to reconcile school type classifications to Schedule 3 data as 
obtained in procedure 5. We were able to trace a random sample of 10 classes to the 
October 1, 2008 roll books for those classes and determined if the class was properly 
classified on the schedule. 

We noted no exceptions. 



Louisiana Educational Assessment Program (LEAF) for the 2 r ' Century (Schedule 7) 
10. We obtained test scores as provided by the testing authority and reconciled scores as 

reported by the testing authority to scores reported in the schedule by the School Board. 

We noted no exceptions. 

The Graduation Exit Exam for the 21' ' Century (Schedule 8) 
11. We obtained test scores as provided by the testing authority and reconciled scores as 

reported by the testing authority to scores reported in the schedule by the School Board. 

We noted no exceptions. 

The iLEAP Tests (Schedules 9a and 9b) 
12. We obtained test scores as provided by the testing authority and reconciled scores as 

reported by the testing authority to scores reported in the schedule by the School Board. 

We noted no exceptions. 

We were not engaged to, and did not perform an examination, the objective of which 
would be the expression of an opinion on management's assertions. Accordingly, we 
do not express such an opinion. Had we performed additional procedures, other 
matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. 

This report is intended solely for the use of management of the School Board, the Louisiana 
Department of Education, the Louisiana Legislature, and the Legislative Auditor, State of 
Louisiana, and should not be used by those who have not agreed to the procedures and taken 
responsibifity for the sufficiency of the procedures for their purposes. Under Louisiana 
Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public 
document. 

January 28, 2010 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
COVINGTON. LOUISIANA 

Schedules Required by State Law (R.S. 24:514 - Performance and Statistical Data) 
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Schedule 1 - General Fund Instrucfional and Support Expenditures and Certain Local 
Revenue Sources 

This schedule includes general fimd instructional and equipment expenditures. It also contains 
local taxation revenue, eamings on investments, revenue in lieu of taxes, and nonpublic textbook 
and transportation revenue. This data is used either m the Minimum Foundation Program (MFP) 
formula or is presented annually in the MFP 70% Expenditure Requirement Report. 

Schedule 2 - Education Levels of Public School Staff 

This schedule includes the certificated and uncertificated number and percentage of fiill-time 
classroom teachers and the number and percentage of principals and assistant principals with less 
than a Bachelor's; Master's; Master's -f-30; Specialist m Education; and Ph. D or Ed. D. degrees. 
This data is currently reported to the Legislature in die Annual Financial and Statistical Report 
(AFSR). 

Schedule 3 - Number and Type of Public Schools 

This schedule includes the number of elementary, middle^unior high, secondary and combination 
schools in operation during the fiscal year. This data is currently reported to the Legislature in the 
Annual Financial Statistical Report (AFSR). 

Schedule 4 - Experience of Public Teachers and Full-time Classroom Teachers 

This schedule includes the number of years of experience in teaching for assistant principals, 
principals, and fiill-time classroom teachers. Tliis data is currently reported to the Legislature in 
the Aimual Financial and Statistical Report (AFSR). 

Schedule 5 - Public School Staff Data 

This schedule includes average classroom teachers' salary using fiill-fime equivalents, including 
and excluding ROTC and rehired retiree teachers. This data is currently reported to the 
Legislature in the Annual Financial and Statistical Report (AFSR). 

Schedule 6 - Class Size Characteristics 

This schedule includes the percent and number of classes with student enrollment in the following 
ranges: 1-20, 21-26, 27-33, and 34+ students. This data is currentiy reported to the legislature in 
the Annual School Report (ASR). 

- 5 -



Schedule 7 - Louisiana Educational Assessment Program (LEAP) 

This schedule represents student performance testing data and includes summary scores by 
district for grades 4 and 8 in each category tested. Scores are reported as Advanced, Proficient, 
Basic, Approaching Basic, and Unsatisfactory. This schedule includes three years of data. 

Schedule 8 - The Graduation Exit Exam 

This schedule represents student performance testing data and includes summary scores by 
district for grades 10 and 11 in each category tested. Scores are reported as Advanced, Proficient^ 
Basic, Approaching Basic, and Unsatisfactory. This schedule includes three years of data. 

Schedules 9a and 9b - The iLEAP Tests 

This schedule represents student performance testing data and includes a summary score for 
grades 3, 5, 6, 7and 9 for each district. Tlie summary score Reported is the National Percentile 
Rank showing relative position or rank as compared to a large, representative sample of students 
in the same grade from the entire nation. This schedule includes one year of data. 

6-



S t Tammany Parish School Board 
General Fund Instructional and Support Expenditures and 

Certain Local Revenue Sources 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008-2009 

Schedule 1 

General Fund Instructional and Equipment Expenditures 
General Fund Instmctional Expenditures: 
Teacher and Student Interaction Activities: 

Classroom Teacher Salaries 
Other Instructional Staff Activities 
Employee Benefits 
Purchased Professional and Technical Servicies 
Instructional Materials and Supplies 
Instructional Equipment 
Total Teacher and Student Interaction Activities 

Other Instructional Activities 

Pupil Support Activities 
Less: Equipment for Pupii Support Activities 

Net Support Activities 

Instructional Staff Services 
Less: Equipment for Instructional Staff Seririces 

Net instructional Staff Services 

School Administrat'on 
Less: Equipment for School Administration 

Net School Administration 

Total General Fund Instmctional Expenditures 

Total General Fund Equipment Expenditures 

130,213,231 
21,082,003 
56,283,258 

492.404 
3,917,501 
1,022,768 

404,776 

13,066,630 
(13,680) 

11,479,004 
(7.292) 

20,747,572 
(566,862) 

213,011,165 

404,776 

13,052,950 

11,471,712 

20.180,710 

237,940,603 

3.367,329 

Certain Local Revenue Sources 
Local Taxation Revenue: 

Constitutional Ad Valorem Taxes 
Renevi/able Ad Valorem Taxes 
Debt Service Ad Valorem Taxes 
Up to 1 % Collections by the Sheriff on Taxes Other Than School Taxes 
Sales and Uses Taxes 
Total Local Taxation Revenue 

Loca! Eamings on Investments in Real Property: 
Eamings from 16th Section Property 
Eamings from Other Real Property 
Total Loca! Earnings on Investments in Real Property 

State Revenue in Leiu of Taxes: 
Revenue Sharing - Constitutional Taxes 
Revenue Sharing - Other Taxes 
Revenue Sharing - Excess Portion 
Other Revenue in Lieu of Taxes 
Total State Revenue in Lieu of Taxes 

5,222,340 
60,241,561 
30,091,690 
2,129,777 

77,359.837 
175,045,205 

160.618 
1,810,758 

0 
0_ 

1.971,376 

Non Public Textbook Revenue 

Non Public Transportation Revenue 

181,148 

472,383 
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Schedule 3 
St. Tammany Parish School Board 

Number and Type of Public Schools 
For the Year Ended June 30,2009 

Type 
Elementary 
Middle/Jr. High 
Secondary 
Combination 
Total 

Number 
35 
9 
8 
3 
55 

Note: Schools opened or closed during the fiscal year are included in this schedule 
Connbination schools: Covington Pathways. Slidell Pathways and Operation Jumpstart 



8L Tommeny Parish School Board 
Experience of PubOc Principats and Full ThnQ Claisroom Teachers 

As of October 1,2008 

Schfl<jul6 4 

Assfetant PrinOpais 
Principals 
Classroom Teachers 
Total 

0-1 Yr. 
0 
D 

179 
179 

2-3 Yr«. 
0 
0 

191 
191 

4-IOYrs. 
3 
1 

812 
816 

11-14 Vra. 
14 
6 

406 
426 

15-19 Yra. 
10 
7 

478 
496 

20-24 Yrs. 
16 
12 

333 
361 

25+Yrt. 
27 
29 

647 
703 

Total 
70 
55 

3.046 
3.171 



St. Tammany Parish School Board 
Public School Staff DMa 

For the Year Ended June 30,2009 

Schedule 5 

All aassroom 
Teachers 

Classroom Teachers 
Excluding ROTC 

and Rehired Retirees 

Average Classroom 
Teachers Salary 
Including Extra Compensation 

Average Classroom 
Teachers Satary 
Excluding Extra Compensation 

Number of Teacher Full-time 
Equivalents (FTE's) used in 
Computation of Average Salaries 

$51.77fi 

$51,123 

2.609 

$51,744 

$51,091 

2.594 

Note: Figures reported include aB sources of funding (Le. Feder^, State and Local) but exclude employee 
benefits. Generally, retired teachers rehired to teach receive lass compensation than non-retired teachers 
and 80TC teachers receive more compensation because of federal supplement. Therefore, these 
teachers are excluded from the computation In the last column. This schedule excludes day-to-day 
substitutes and temporary employees. 

10/7/2OO9 
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St Tammany Parish School Board 
The Graduate ExH Exam for the 21 st Century 

Fiscal Year EndecJ June 30, 2009 
Schedule a 

Dsirict AchievemenE 
Level Results 

StutJents 

Grade 10 
Advanced 
Mastery/Proticient 
Basic 
ApprcMChinq Basic; 
Unsattsfactory 

Total 

ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS | 

2009 
Number 

57 
395 

1234 
d82 
170 

2338 

Percent 

2.44% 
16.89% 
52.76% 
20.62% 

7.27% 

100.00% 

2008 
Numtier 

54 
387 

J259 
457 
241 

•2396 

Percent 

2.25% 
16.14% 
52.50% 
19.06% 
10.05% 

100.00% 

2007 
Number 

• 59 
363 

1219 
492 
256 

2409 

Percent 

Z45% 
15.90% 
50,60% 
20.42% 
10.63% 

100.00% 

2CJ0b" 

N u m b e r 

82 

550 
12SS 

387 
149 

2 4 5 4 

Percent 

3 . 3 4 % 

2 2 , 4 1 % 

5S:.4Q% 

15.77% 
6,07% 

100.00% 

2005 1 
Numtwr 

70 
697 

1210 
358 
137 

• 2472 

Percent 

2.83% 
2 S ^ % 
48.95% 
14.48% 
5,54% 

100.00% 

Dstrict Achievement 

Level Results 
Students 
Grade 11 
Advanced 
Wasterv/Proficient 
Basic 
ApprcMChinq Basic 
Ufisatisfactory 

Tota! 

2009 _ 
Number 

180 
561 

1011 
331 
174 

2257 

Petcent 

7.98% 
24.86% 
44.79% 

190.23% 
7.71% 

100.00% 

2008 

Nurntwr 

122 
413 

1034 
467 
186 

W?? 

Percent 

5.49% 
18,59% 
46.53% 
2^02% 
8.37% 

100.00% 

SCtENCE 
2007 

Nhjmber 

176 
566 
993 
404 
183 

2322 

Percent 

7.58% 
24.38% 
42.76% 
17.40% 
?:s3% 

1 0 0 , 0 0 % 

2 0 0 6 

N u m b e r Percent 

119 
461 

1014 

457 
170 

2 2 2 1 

5.36% 
20.76% 
45.66% 
20.58% 

7.65% 
100.00% 

2005 1 
Number 

156 
563 
916 
378 
135 

2148 

Percent 

-. 7,26% 
26.21% 
42-64% 
17.60% 
6,28% 

100.00% 



St. Tammany Parish School Board 
The Graduate Exit Exam tor the 21 st Century 

Fiscal Year EncJed June 30, 2009 
Schedule 8 

Dsl/tct ActllevsmenI 

Level Results 

Students 
Grade 10 
Advanc^ed 
Mastetv/Protlclent 
Bflsic 
Approachinfl Basic , 
Unsatiafactor/ 

Total 

MATHEMATICS 

2009 
Number 

382 
449 

1080 
276 
149 

2336 

Percent 

16.35% 
19.22% 
46.23% 
n .82% 
6.38% 

100.00% 

2008 
Number 

377 
422 
995 
309 
293 

2396 

Percent 

15.73% 
17.61% 
41.53% 
12.90% 
12.23% 

100.00% 

2007 

Number 

297 
505 

1001 
332 
310 

2445 

Percent 

12.15% 
20.65% 
40.94% 
13.56% 
(Z6S% 

100.00% 

2006 

Numt3er 

341 
552 

WOO 
319 
244 

2456 

Percent 

13.88% 
22.48% 
40.72% 

12.99% 
9.93% 

100.00% 

2005 1 
Number 

301 
610 

i043 
245 
263 

2462 

Percent 

12.23% 
24.78% 
42.36% 

9.95% 
10.63% 

100.00% 

Dstrict Achievement 

Level Besuits 

Students 
Grade 11 

Advanced 
Maslery/Prollcient 
Basic 
A^foaching Basic 
Unsatisfactory 

SOCIAtSmJDIES j 

2009 

Number 

51 
368 

1311 
325 
203 

Total 225* 

Perc:ent 

2.26% 
16.30% 
58.06% 
14.39% 
8,93% 

100.00% 

2008 

Number 

32 
358 

1347 
350 
136 

2223 

Percent 

1.44% 
16.10% 
60.59% 
13.74% 

6.12% 

100.00% 

2007 

Nurrtor 

89 
359 

1287 
428 
176 

2319 

Percent 

2.98% 
15.48% 
55.50% 
18.46% 
7.59% 

100.00% 

2006 
Number' 

27 
303 

1426 
325 
135 

2221 

Percent 

1.22% 
13.87% 
64.21% 
14.63% 
6.08% 

100.00% 

2005 1 
Number 

47 
405 

1266 
308 
119 

2145 

Percent 

2.19% 
18.88% 
59.02% 
14.36% 
5.55% 

100.00% 
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